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Overview 

Who we are 

I ![;i .tt'Ji1i 
in numbers 
Our aim is to provide customers with the 
things that are important to them — from 
mail to their broadband package, from car 
insurance to their savings account. Whether 
customers come into a branch, are on the 
move or shop online, we work hard to 
deliver a great experience. That's the 
Post Office promise. 

Annual Report and Financial Staten:ents2Oi2-13 
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................................................................. 
Other highlights ................................................................. 
• Number one Mails retailer 
• Largest deployer of contactless 

enabled terminals in Europe 
• Sixth largest telecoms 

provider in the UK 
• 754 branches offer world-

leading identity technology 
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Overview 

Chairman's foreword 

Fit for the future 
founded on 
our history 
It is with great pleasure and pride that 
I write the foreword to the first Annual 
Report and Financial Statements for the 
Post Office as an independent business. 

Alice Perkins Chairman 
-----------------------------------------------------------------

Highlights 
• Revenues are up for of ici i lL 

we are on the road to ieduciu g of .r 
reliance on subsidy 

• We are modernising branches and 
providing new services to our customers 

• The transition to independence has been 
smooth without any loss of service 

-----------------------------------------------------------------

- - - Exhibit-WITNGG74G1G3 

This Report describes the way in which the 
Post Office has embarked on a remarkable 
journey of transformation. 

Thanks to our Shareholder, the government, we 
are investing millions of pounds into our network 
over three years up to April 2015. There is 
no longer a programme of Post Office branch 
closures. Instead, we are modernising the network 
and increasing our opening hours. We are offering 
new services and developing new methods of 
interacting with our customers, working with our 
key partners in new ways, cutting costs and 
increasing our revenues. 

All of this puts the Post Office on the path to 
securing financial sustainabilityfor the long term. 
We are reducing our dependence on the taxpayer 
to the minimum and changing our culture so that 
we respond proactively to changes in the world 
around us, in partnership with the key people on 
whom we depend for the de:ivery of our services. 

A series of important changes have already 
happened, and many more are in the pipeline. 

Moving to independence 

We ceased to be a subsidiary of Royal Mail Group 
Limited in April 2012 and began operating 
independently, as sister companies, under Royal 
Mail IIo'dings plc. Working closely with our 
colleagues at Royal Mail Group, good progress 
was made during 2012-13 in the complex process 
of separating the two organisations — so much 
so that the transition to date has been remarkably 
smooth, without any loss of service or impact 
on standards. 

I have completed the formation of my Board 
and we are now operating Board governance in 
keeping with best practice in the corporate world. 
Full details of the Board members and our Board 
committees can be found on pages 40 and 44. 
I am delighted to have been able to appoint such 
able people, with varied backgrounds, who are 
all committed to supporting and challenging the 
Post Office as it undergoes the changes which 
must be made if we are to secure its future. 

Annual Report and Financial Statements 2012-13 
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We ar e clear abuui tire; wcay forward for the Post 
' ... ..... . . .... . ........ . . .... ........... . .. ....... Office, arid the changes that need to Lake place to 

previ  u  upona

bui'd on the successes set out in this Report. We previous yeear 
. .... .... ......... .. 

are equally clear that there are significant 
t, % r additional challenges ahead; the going is not easy. 

his turnaround, like any other, requires people 
' 

1 
` the throughout the organisation anc, their partners to 

it work in new ways, We need to win new business 
on commercial terms and mana,e our fixed costs : 
more effectively, while at the same time finding Reduced CIOWIY 

I 
the resources to operate on our own two feet and t ditz ~c Ii e .LI to modernise and innovate. losses by 

. ............................... 

I j . tg 7t i t i ct ~- e i Litune. I wot;.Id like to thank the Post Office Chief 9r r;xecutive,Paula~'ennells,lier leamanc1 all the . ......... . ..:...... . ........ . . . 
. ..................................... . . ........ . . ....... . . ........ people who work to support the Post Office 

business and who have brought about the 
We achieved a number of notable successes last remarkable changes we have already seen and. 
year. For the second year running, our revenues will ;ee in the coming months and years. I would 
are upon the previous year, despite the difficult like also to thank all those stakeholders and 
economic environment, and we are on the road to partners with whom we work so closely. 
reducing our reliance on the Network Subsidy 
Payment received from the government. The Post Office has a long and honourable 

370-year history. \P e need. to retain the essence 

Modernisation and h of what has made it great and made it loved, while 

We have made great in our plan to at the same time making it fit for the future. It is 

r~-rotlernise'the networy .~~ .;.anchor run by in that context that this Annual Report and 

our agents, 1,450 have signed, up to be converted Financial SLalernerils should be seen. IL reports 

into new operating models which give much on the first steps of progress into the future -- 

better service to customers, resulting in hip, her a future which blends the trust, integrity and 

footfall and turnover. And we have made real accessibility for which the Pcst Office is renowned 

improvements to the running of our Crown with the contemporary relevance, innovation 

branches, where the operating loss has reduced a rid professionalism of a financially sound 

this year from P46 million to £37 million. 21st century be sinoss 

The Post Office has won a number of new 
government contracts under which we are 
providing some completely new services and 
enabling ceritraland local government to realise 
significant administrative savings. We are also 
offering new financial services, maintai nin g our 
appeal to customers who come to us for the 
reliability and transparency of our financialoffers 
Our mails business, meanwhile, remains the 
market leader and is increasingly innovative. 

We are also on the path to creating the right 
conditions for 1. he mutualisationof the Post Office, 
These require both financial sustainehilityand 
completely new ways of working with our key 
slakeholdersauross the board. In the last year, 
we have taken the first steps towards achieving 
both of these goals, with our strong financial 
performance cn the one hand and toe creation. 
and work of the Stakeholder Forum on t he other. 

POST 
OFFICt 
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Overview 

Chief Executive's review 

The oc,t ) cp Ic f on .iY1T I  .. t` ' ,; N r tr BtC y 

L'[-t- i1 :s le -i _  I iecustoinerexc-, hence 
rem._ lens at our core. 

Paula Ven.ells chief Executive 

.t . .. . 11 _ ,  ,; 
h i ) i u vVth in three 

U..k1 ioa.k ' A JUL ° L 1.1.Ic115 

• A major transformation programme 
delivering benefits to our customers 

• Developing digital strategy to 
coinplel.iset t unrivalled branch network 

-- -- - -- ---- -- - - - - ----------------------------

It is heartening to be able to report good progress 
during the 2012-13 financialyear. The psgcs that. 
follow show we have started to turn the business 
around-- remainingat the heart of communities 
while becoming increasingly commercial 
and entrepreneurial. 

Ina challenging economic climate, and with 
particular pressureson the high street, we have 
grown revenue in three of our four product pillars. 
Turnover increased by £44 million to £.1.02 billion, 
Mails and Retail revenue has grown by 4.3%, 
Financial Services by 6.4%, and Telecoms by 
7.5%, while Government Services revenue 
remained ̀ :at in the context of a very tight 
fiscal and competitive environment. 

This is an encouraging performance. 
It demonstrates our increasing appetite for 
innovation, the power of the Post Office brand, 
and the continued attract'_venessto customers 
of accessibility through a branch network of 
1.1.780 outlets. 

Sound financial performance 
It means we are able to report art increase of 
£33 million to £94 million in operating profit before 
exceptional items. This includes £210 million 
received from the government in 2012-13 as a 
subsidy to support the branch network. The Post 
Office is entrusted to provide key services to 
citizens nationwide, including the most remote as 
well as the most deprived areas of the country. We 
are proud as a cornmercialbusinesswith a public 
purpose to fulfil this critically important task, and 
are committed to real ntainingour network 

The subsidy payment constituted 17% of revenue 
in 2012-13. It will decline by £10 million in the 
coming year, and by a further £40 million in 
201415. Future extension of this payment will 
depend on government spending decisions 
beyond 2015. To achieve our ambition of reducing 
dependency on the subsidy and securing 
commercial susta`nability, it is critical to continue 
modernising and innovating, growing revenue 
and continuing to focus on our customers while 
keeping a strong control on costs. 

In 2010, the government agreed £1.34 billion of 
funding for the Post Office up to 2015..  While 
approximately half of this related to tho network 
subsidy, the remaincerwill support the 
modernisation of the Post Office. 

The activity undertaken in 2012-13 :n pursuit of 
this goal has been unprecedented in or r history. 
A major transformation programme to modernise 
the branch network began, with hundreds of 
branches converting to new, more customer-
friendly formats, and we are building momentum 
to convert marry more. 

Annual. Report end Financial Statement s 2012-13 
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v` 'e. 1 V I. ,r 111 "" i t tL' C t 

I J lr j ' y/ .k i (F )I t 

-.. t fl . 

E cCi rt ioi tc3i li U IL liliiEI 

q eA, of revenue 

Network subsidy 
payment 1% 

Other'- 
3% .

Telecoms 11% 

Government —
Services 13% 

r& 
Mail aiid'  ̀ ' 
R._tah 33% 

F.riancial"l￼ 
Services 23% 

There is no more visible indicator of a Post Office 
that is c flanging for the better than the changes 
customers see in their cities, towns and villages. 
The evidence is that these changes are meeting 
with approval, customersatisfactionwith the new 
'main'and'local' branch models runs at 95%r), 
while queue times in the local' model have fallen 
below a minute, and customers are benefiting 
from new opening hours stretching from early 
morning to late evening. Subpostmasters 
switching to the new models have increased their 
retail businesses. Moreover, the physical network 
that is so central to our business is now being 
complemented by a comprehensive digital 
strategy aimed at further enhancing our service 
to customers. 

Challenges ahead 

Naturally, a programme such as this involves 
challenge. The Post Office has made significant 
progress, for instance, in reducing the losses in 
the network of Crown branches directly managed 
by the btisiriess. There remains a long way to go 
to reach the point where this part of the network 
becomes profitable, and that is why it is so 
important that we complete the transformation 
of the Crown network. There will be other 
challenges ahead, but as our Chairman ties noted 
in her foreword, we are determined to complete 
a transformation which underpins the Iuture ct 
the Post Office and brings more benefits to our 
millions of customers, 

In 2012 we set up a Stakeholder Forum to begin a 
process which is a key step in our journey towards 
potential future mutualisation: that of defining the 
public purpose of the Post Office. In 2013-14 we 
will engage the public on this work with a view to 
embedding this public purpose in our business 
planning and processes. 

Our ambition is to he more proactive in delivering 
our public purpose. The Post Office is a long-
standing part of UK high streets and will work 
hard to support their revival, joining with others 
to lead and develop solutions which help high 
streets and other communities to survive and 
thrive. We will step up our work in supporting 
small businesses by ens ia.rir:g that we develop 
more of the, products and services they need. 

The Post Office will also work more closely with 
those seeking to close the digita skills gap. As a 
founder member of Go ON UK, the charity set up 
to make the UK the most digitally skilled nation iii 
the world, the business will focus on building the 
online skills of our people. And we will work with 
our partners to develop solutions that will help 
enable the 16 million people in the UK who do not 
have basic digital skills to access and enjoy the 
oenetits of being online. 

Support of our people 
I would like to say the nk you to all of those who 
have worked so hard for the Post Office over the 
past year; especially to those colleagues working 
in Post Office branches across the length and 
bree.idth of the UK, and to the Post Office Executive 
team for their outstanding commitment to the 
success of our strategy. 

Finally, lam grateful to Alice Perkins and to the 
Board for their guidance throughout the year. 
they have strengthened our strategic oversight 
anc brought a level of focus and challenge to 
decision making at the Post Office which has 
helped both revitalise the company and energise 
its commercial focus. 

The Post Office changed significantly over the 
course of 2012-13, artd for the better. We have 
rio illusions about the hard work ahead, but 
our determination to deliver the business 
transformation of the decade remains undimmed. 

Brass network 
transformation 
programme research 
A'..rgust 2012-March 2013 

'OS1 
OFFICE 
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Overview 

Strategl. .................................................................... 

~7I -11i VIlY/A OM IIOIIPik 

Growing as a Growth 
business while Increase In turnover 

serving the UK s +4.599
communities .......... 
Key objectives .................................................................................... . 
The Post Office's strategy is based on being 
commercially successful and growing as a 
business while maintaining the key role that 
Post Office branches play in supporting 
communities across the UK. We offer a range of 
products in Mails and Retail, Financial Services, 
Government Services and. Telecoms through 
our branch network, online and on the phone. 

Strategy model . ...................... ......... ............................ . ......... . ........... ......... . . ... 

Post Office 
people 

'No _ ...... ............... ~~'rti .• ' 
ran comma 

. ...............................................................:. 
Objective . ........ ......... ................................................. . 
To grow revenue by introducing new 
products and services across our 
portfolio to cftset declining revenue 
from traditional product areas. 

. .................................... 
Progress in 2012-13 
We grew revenue by £44 miLion during 
the.financial year, while also introducing 
new. products such as Post Office 
in-branch mortgages and the Drop 
& Go' priority mails service for small 
business customers. 

HSBC-and First Direct have linked up 
with the Post Office, meaning 95% of all 
UK debit card holders can now access 
their cash at our branches. 

We.attracted and retained clients in bill 
payments, rolled out additional Lottery 
terminals and introdiiceda new online 
shop www.postofficeshop.co:uk. 

We won key contracts such as the 
provision of counter services for 
the.Driver and Vehicle Licensing 
Agency (DVLA) and won a place 
on the government's Identnty 
Assurance framework. 

Annual Report and Financial Staternents2012-13 
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... . ........ .... . . . . . 

Br l :t (:iJPVECSJtiTiS : ' t -'O .Sai;S...3LCd4OI1 
........ . . ......... . ....... . . ....... . . . . . . ... . . . . . . ...... . . . .... ... . ....... . . •..... . . . . . . ... . . . . . . . ....... . ..... .............. • . ..... . 

179500 87?4 ............................................................................................................................ 
Idditional opening hours ............................. ......... . ......... . ........ . ......... . . . . ... . . . . . . ... . . . . . . ... . . . . . . . ......................... 

Objective 
Ix n odenrisetlie Past 0 C arid its 
branches through the network and Crown 
transformationprogr:rnmes(tobreakeven 
by 2015). 

Progress in 2012-13 ...... ............................ .. . ........ 
Luring 1'.0121 3, a tota I of 1,450 Post Office 
agency branches either converted to new 
models with longer opening hours or 
suhpostmasterssigne.d contracts to do so. 
With 507 of these converted during the 
fina_ncialyea , t means brancheswereopen 
for an additicnai 17.500 -lours per week by 
the end of 2012-13 

Our programmeto transform the Crown 
network of branches direct lymanaged lay the 
Post Office made progress to reduce losses, 
with financialperformanccimprovirl by 
£9 million 

Eie programme has also introduced new 
ways of working, inc.udinla increased 
automation in pilot branches. 

In-branch technology was also enhanced 
with more-automated Post & Go machines 
and the completion of the rollout of new PIN 
Pad payment devices. 

. . . ... . . ................................................ . ........
'active 

........ ............................ ....... ................ 

To put cl1 stumel s at t:le hear to 
everything we do, and invest in 
technology to offer more t esnonsive 
and oust' m et -iucuSed systeins. 

Progress in 2012-13 . .............. ..... ... ,, 
On average., clistomc:r satlstac'inn stood at 
87% in 201.2-13 in ourh ram f-es,while this 
figure rose to 95io''' in newly converted 
branches in the agency network h 

Customer wait times are down on the 
previous ye.a:, while our Voice of the dP 
Customer feedback scheme is row in ` 
placer. 2,000 be. .__chas Y 3 

We have improved our digital offering 
with a ful_ website redesign Tee site now 
receives four million r us turner views per 
month, with unique visitors up 30% year 
on year. 

We piloted a new online hook ':,,g system 
for fina~lcfa services customers and hope 
to build o this in 201314. 

IL Quad-angle Brand 
and Customer Insigh: 
Piograumie 2011-12 via 
201213 

Brass network 
transformation 
programme resea.-ch 
Aagust 2012-March 2013 

POST 
OFFICE 
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Operational review 

Business in detail 

. . .................................... . . . ........ . .......... ........ . . ....... . . ........ . 
Highlights . . . . . . . ..... . . .... . . . . . ... . ....... . . ...... . .. .... . ... , r~ 
+ Launch of Drop & Go, a new service for 5' 

small businesses to drop off parcels and 
pay quickly without queueing 

• New online retail shop offers mailing 
solutions, collectible's and of1icc' supplies

* 8% growth in parcels revenue 

..... ................ 
i. --. _ _ .he lal st 

-, J :9 ri t.-7 tw ft iL k .v, ;..1..Ie 

bli,, it > it :ft:. Li...O  .. t. .t i 

four cat( ,c is 7 . . iE vl ; i.ict 
pC)i `I.  i(; hs Il; I~ l3 

anc Loti rr° ...... . . ........ . . ................... ............................. 
We offer an unparalleled range of Roya: Mail 
Group mails and parcels products and services, 
trom next-cay guaranteed courier services to 
home shopping returns and collections, 

The Post Office is also one of the main Lottery 
distributors in the UK. offering Camelot's National 
Lottery products, including scratch cards and 
EuroMillions in more than 6,000 outlets. 

In 2012-13 the Mails and Retail area recorded 
its most successful ever year with revenue 
of £409 million, repre;sentinggrowth of 
£17 million compared to the previous year. 

This was driven by extremely strong commercial 
performance across the product portfolio, activity 
relating to the Olympics and i'aralympics and our 
best ever Christmas for mails and parcels sales. 

During the year, the Post Office Mails team. 
enhanced services with Royal Mail to maximise 
opportunities from online shopping collection 
and returns. 

Growth in Mails and Parcels business 
The launch of our new Drop & Go priority service 
for small business customers has helped us retain 
and grow our Mails business. Small businesses 
and online sellers can sign up for a pre-paid card 
to enable them to drop off their mail and have it 
processed in their absence. The Post Office now 
has more than 2,300 small businesses signed 
up to the service. 

We achieved an 8% growth in parcels revenue 
through a combination of an increase in online 
buying and selling arid continued impiovernerrts 
in frontline training and sales capability. 

A new online shop was launched in July 2012 
and has seen steady growth ever since. They 
shop offers an extensive range of mailing 
solutions, collectibles and office supplies. 

The rollout of an additional 1,850 Camelot Lottery 
terminalshelped the Post Office deliver a 
5.2% growth in Lottery sales over the course 
of 2012-13; this has been further facilitated by 
strong Lottery marketing. 

Looking ahead, the Post Office will continue to 
develop small business propositions to increase 
value and convenience for this critical cus torn er 
group. In partnership with Royal Mail, we will 
maximise opportunities to grow the services 
we provide in this sector, particr.ilarlyir: the 
Last-growing online shopping market. 

Annual Report and P'inanci al Statements2012-13 
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. ....... . ........ . ......... .......... I . .... . .. . . . ..... 

Fmaflri Servids

highlights ..... . .................. .......... ......... .......................................... 

Reaffirmed strong partnership with Bank 
of Ireland (UK) plc to build the Post Office
as a financial services challenger 

Reached agreement with HSBC and 
First Direct for their debit card customers, 
to have free access to their cash at all
Post Office branches from spring 2013 

• What Mortgage Awards 2012: Best Online
Lender, Best Fixed Rated Mortgage
Provider 1

z

L La. x S5 

1,     J  ii ; 4  .hn I _.st 

0. .io:o, seei_i L.c.  .r cup>. i_ _~~:: 

si_ 1ple, transp .i. . i irid e I °! 

money PrOCULCtS, S_.. ,:sport( I_
.,

anunrival[F. 1:to 'io -lnetwork. ........................ . . ......................................... 
The Post Office provides a comprehensive range 
of savings, insurance (including car, home and 
travel) and lending products (including mortgages 
and credit cards), and is the leading provider of 
retail foreign currency in the UK. We also offer 
over-the-counter payment services, personal and 
business partner banking and cash mac hines. 

The products are offered through strong 
partnerships with third-party providers, in 
particular Bank of Ireland (UK) plc, with whom 
we have built a successful partnership since 2003. 

In 2012-13, the Financial Serviceshusiness 
dr.:liveredP281 million in revenue - an increase 
01 6.4% on the previous year. 

Strong banking partnership 

A key development in 2012-13 was the 
renegotiation arid reconfirmation of the 
arrangements with the Bank of Ireland (PK) plc. 
This parInershira delivered significant grow rh 
in 2012-13, particularly in Growth Bonds, Online 
Saver and Reward Saver. Together we extended 
our award-winning mortgage range, offering 
competitive rates that featured reguiarly in 
Best Buy tables and customers can now access 
Post Office mortgages:rrbranches. 

We maintained our positionas the market leader in 
foreign exchange,and was voted by the public as 
Best Foreign Exchange retailer and Best Travel 
Insurance Provider at the 2012 British Travel 
Awards, for the sixth and seventh year respectively. 

Key contracts in the bill payment market were 
won and retained, ensuring that customers can 
continue to use Post Office branc des to pay hills. 

Contactiess payment termin .r Is were also installed 
across 30.000 counter positio ns, making the Post 
Office the largest d<epleyer of ::ontactless enabled 
terminals in Europe , these allow customers to pay 
for transactions of up to £20 using contactiess cards 
and Near Field Corn mu nicaticn (NFC)-enabled 
mobile phones. 

We also signed agreements with I-ISBC and First 
Direct, ensuring that 95% of UK debit card holders 
can access their cash in a Post Office branch. 

The Financial Sery ices business is a key focus for 
the Post Office and in May 2013 the Post Office 
announced it wti*Quid launch a current account, the 
next step in our strategy of growing our ;Financial 
Serv.ces business. 

Post 
OFFICE 
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Operational review 

Business in detail continued . . ........ . ......... . ......... . .................... .......... ...... 

I .. 

r _ 

A u , 

•-'ti- • _ : l 

. Ii t:,),11, 

,u. 

20. . . T.

. .. . ............................................... ......... .......... .................. . 
Highlights .. .. ..... . ...... ..... ............. 

Won the DVLA framework contract 
for the provision of Front Office 
Counter Services 

• Grew the Passport Check & Send service 
with an increased market share 

Awarded a place on the DWP Identity 
Assurance Framework contract 

...... . ... ..... ..... ....... 
The . rs a range 
of ... ........ ...  ? 5 i ¢ S l a A t I . ,_ tt

se.t  j . L to.  ✓i gu `v 

del :- rtr _ :-ii

We. 1 sritrier with t fl parlrneril for
Pensions for the Posr L 'lice card < r w :c 
allows customers to -, fact their i- -u.,, pF ri ur 
benefits in cash eittt. .n a Post Office but i or 
from a Post Office cacti machine. We also issue car 
tax discs on behalf of the DVLA and capture 
digital photographs for the renewal of driving 
licence photo counterparts 

The,, Post 0 ificeuses ground-breaking Application, 
Lnrolrrent and Identity technology to offer a 
paperless process for our customers in 754 
Post Office branches nationwide. 

Nearly 90% of Government Services reven ae 
is still generated by the traditional motoring, 
benefits and passport services. in 2012-13, we 
grew our passport Check & Send business and 
increased cur revenue from capturing customers' 
biometrics on behalf of the United Kingdom 
Border Agency (UKBA). This helped to off set the 
decline in benefits payments. Revenue ire. the 
Post Office card account . eclined as c 1, .r 
numbers continued torec.uce.Reve-il i om 
motoring, primarily the'ssuing of tax t 'scss in our 
branches, was broadly flat compared to 2011-12. 

Retained key contracts 

The retention in the face of strong competition 
of the contract for Front Office Counter Services 
provided on behalf of the Driver Vehicle Licensing 
Agency (DV LA) was a key development during 
2012-13. This framework contract will allow other 
government departments to contract with the 
Post Office without a further procurement 
process. The cant raci is for seven years with 
an option to renew fora further three years. 

In addition, the Post Office also won a place on the 
Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) Identity 
Assurance Framework contract now being 
managed by the Cabinet Office, Government 
Procurement Service. 

As well as these significant contract wins, the 
Application, Enrolment and Identity business 
generated more than £12 million of revenue 
and now accounts for more than 9% of total 
Government Services revenue. In 104 of the 
754 Post Office branches with Appli cation, 
Enrolment and Identity technology, we capture 
digital fingerprints, photographs and electronic 
signatures for the JKBA, and in the lull network 
of 754 branches we capture photographs for 
customers renewing their driving licences. 

In 2013-14 the Post Office expects to complete 
the rollout of new services with the DVLA and 
continue to grow the passport business, while also 
seeking to provide support for the government's 
Digital by Default age rida. 

Annual Report and Vinanci ai Statements2012-13 
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re~.~i~w~~ Gr_weau,;n~_e ~ ~ er° gents 

................... 

121 . 
... . , ... ....

. . 
............. .................. .................. 

~n r 
. ....... . . .... .... . . .......... .............................................. 

. .............................................. . . ........ . ....... . . .................. . .. 
highlights ...... ... . . . ..... . .................... . . . . ......... . ........, 
• increased revenue by £9 million 

igned new contract with Fujitsu. Services 
l ✓Iobile launch planned for 201314 

.........................................I........................ 

incOtiis ..  . 
Broadb bi a, ~ ~ I....- _.
Interns i i~ I .1fi. l.lr .~~:ards. .............. _. . .. . . . . ........ . ............................... 
HornePhn, iBroadbaridoffers,r,,, impeLltive 
fixed e suo! ie and broadband service to just 
under huu,uOO residential customers, making t.is 
the sixth largest fixed line telecoms provider in 
the U.K. 

2012-13 was a positive year for the'f'elecoms 
business, with an 8% increase in revenue from 
£120 million to £129 million. The HomePhone and 
Broadband business performed particularly we 11, 
with the revenue generated by the HomePhone: 
and Broadband husinessrising from £112million 
to £122 million, an increase of just under 10%. This 
achievement was driven by a slablecustoruer 
base and changes to our service making it more 
attractive to higher value customers. 

Mobile Top-Lip allows cus tomers to top-L:rp pre-pay 
mobile phones for the main UK mobile networks 
at any of our branches. We saw a reduction in the 
volume of mobile top up transactionsin branches 
as mobile networks look to migrate customers 
from pre-pay to post-pay packages and customers 
top-up less frequently. However, we still achieved 
15 million transactions and maintain the largest 
estate of top-up terminals in the UK. 

Improving our customer proposition 

During the year, the Post Office signed ari 
agreement with Fujitsu Services to provide the 
HomePhone and Broadband services from the 
summer of 2013.'i'his strategically important 
agreement provides a platform from which to 
develop and grow an agile and cost-effective 
business while strengthening our existing 
customer proposition. The new platform will 
make it easier for customers to sign up to our 
services through branches and online. The 
customer experience will be enhanced with 
improved online account management tools and 
access to higher speed broadband services over 
the TalkTalk network. The agreement with Fujitsu 
Services will also enable the development of 
bespoke services for the SME market. 

The International Phonecard business has been 
in decline for a number of years and continues to 
be impacted as customers move to other low-cost 
international calling options such as Voice over 
Internet Protocol solutions. 

The Post Office will aim to grow theTelecoms 
business 10 2013-14, but it will be a transitional 
year as we migrate our servlcesto our new 
supplier. The Post Office is also looking at 
opportunities to enter the mobile market. 
during the coming financial year. 
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Operational review 

Branch network 

.. ..................I . . ... .... . . ........ . ..... 

Introduction ................................................................................................ 

The P-Qt Of has an unrivalied network, with 
a bra c1 i three miles of more than 99% of 
the populatlu:i  _D other retailer can match the 
reach that puts ,: .e Post Office at the heart of 
communities across the UK. 

The business is committed to maintaining its 
branch network, ensuring services are readily 
accessible to communities across the UK. This 
network, increasingly enhanced by digital and 
telephone services, lies at the core of the business. 
97% of Post Office branches in the network are run 
in conjunction with retail partners on an agency 
an(. L. aichis.. basis. 

Underpinning our commitment to the network 
is an unprecedented branch modernisation 
programme — the largest investment in the 
history of the Post Office — which is creating 
modern, commercially sustainable branches 
that are improving customer experience. 

This modernisation programme involves 
transforming those branches that are 
operated by other businesses or independent 
subpostmasters on behalf of the Post Office 
and 370 Crown branches directly owned and 
managed by the Post Office. 
. ..................... . ........ . . ......................................................... 

Brass network 
transformation 
prog-amore research 
A.igust 2012-March 2013 

Network transformation programme 
Depending on size, independent operators of Post 
Office branches are able to convert to one of two 
new models. a main branch or a local branch. 

Main branches, of whichh there are now 178, 
continue to offer a dedicated Post Office counter, 
often open plan, in a brighter, more modern 
environment. In addition, the majority of services 
will continue to be available outside traditional 
hours — for as long as the host business is open — 
from the retail counter. 

Local branches, of which there are now 329, fully 
integrate the Post Office with the host business, 
offering services from the retail position rather 
than a dedicated Post Office counter. This often 
means services are available for much longer than 
before, in many cases from early morning until 
late at night, seven days a week. 

With 507 new-style main and local Post Office 
branches already established, subpostrrfaslers 
and customers across the UK are benefiting from 
a new, modern approach to offering Post Office 
services. Customers are responding positively. 
Independent research shows that customer 
satisfaction scores at both modernised main and 
local branches are consistently around 95%"'. 

Subpostmastersare also benefiting from more 
efficient ways of working and an increase in 
revenue both from their Post Office activities and 
their accompanying retail business. 

Interest in the new models remains strong, with 
subpostmasters at a further 943 branches already 
signed up to be the first to convert during 2013-14. 

Subpostmasters . ........ "" .. ........ . .......... . ..... 
Supporting local communities ..... . . . . ..... . . ........ . . ..... . .......... . ........ . . .. . . .... . 
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Case stud .. .. . ......................... 

... .. .... 
.

C iL _Ai( al. ~l I 

r: ieturbishrr ent of branches is essential. 
It means our oranches are improving their 
aesthetics, such as lino ring and lighting to 
really compete and look professic rta]. The i 

Post Office has sustained its trusted statua and 
now looks modern as well."

(Case................. . . .............................................................. 
All rlr- ...7 .... . . . . . . ... ............................................... ........ . . ..... 

11 ii ain Post Office branch, 
I :-} +i;hlands .... .... . . ...................................................................... 

.cw open plan counters fit very well  in 
rroundi igs of my convenience store. 

It helps our staff to have mere comfortable 
conversations with our customers.' 

GRO 

GRO 

Case study . . . . .... ... . . ....... ..:... . ... . ......................................I....... . 

1L.::1, 

I n 

'Our Post Office services ale now available foi 
an extra 69 hours every week, and this has 
already brought in new customers. We're a 
much more realistic option for everyone nova 
and the Post Office is d far more c:onvenieul. 
high street piopositiorl."

C A 

khirvOCh 
... ..... , -: 
(kitty

.. ............... ........................................................ .. 

t ay ParrOr local Post Office branch, 
mt London ............................................................................ _ 

"I've been able to extend my retail counter, 
and I've noticed new customers coming 
through the door who are now able to take 
advantage of Post Office services until 1.0.30pm 
on Sunday nights." 

GRO 

New branches: ......... ........... 

507 
In 2012-11 we 
converted 507 
brannes to the now 
mare arid'locai formats 

Contracts signed: .............................. 

943 
A turther 943 
subpostmctster r have 
already signed up to 
he cu iveasd to the 
new n-Ioclels irl 2013-14 

Increase in 
retail sales: .......................... 

10 
Ar'. average retail sales 
nu ease of 10% is being 

reporter]  across mai 
Irid local branches 

Waiting time: . .......................... 

55 secs 
Average waiting 
lines in h anrhes are 
55 seconds ill local 

oranches, two minutes 
in main branches 

POST
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Branch network continued 

Crown transformation programme QCase study .................... :....... ..:............._. : . 
The Post Office is investing in 292 of its Crown branches. These are 

usually N.. . ew Malden Post Office branch 
largerbranches in towns or city centres, and are directly many ed by the .. . . ............................ . . ........................_..... 
Post Office. 

Crown branches are fundamental to the future of the Past Office. and real 
progress has been made towards the target of turning around the current 
losses to achieve break-even by March 2015. During 2012-13, the losses for 
this part of the network reduced from £46 million to £37 million. The ongoing 
transformation builds on this progress and is based on increasing revenue, 
improving customer experience and controlling costs. 

Customers wl I I benefit from brighter, more modern branches with improved 
layouts. Many of these will give customers the option to use self-serve 
Post & Go machines, private consultation areas for financial services, and the 
benefit of longer opening hours. More open plan counters will be introduced, 
and we will have more team members on the shcp floor greeting and gu.fding 
customers. This new approach has been trialled with notable success, across 
both customer and financial measures, at a range of branches. 

In six locations where we have two branches in close proximity to each 
other, we are taking the opportunity of merging branches, which will create 
branches with improved facilities for cuslorriers. There are Iwo Iurlher 
instances where combining two branches into one new site will provide the 
best experience for customers. For a further 70 branches, we are looking for 
retail partners to operate branches on our behalf. This approach will ensure 
we maintain a high standard. of service while putting the branch on a stronger 
commercial footing for the future. 

i tIIdy  n  
.... ......... ........• .......".. ......-..': .....'..'.i '3li l 

r _1r~gham Post Office branch 

What's changed? .. .............................. .:..................I........,. 
• Redesign of the branch to improve 

customer flow 

• Retail area repositioned for customer 
convenience 

• New marls zone with one extra Post 
& Go and staff on hand to offer help 

• Private consultation room for 
financial services 

GRO 
Customer feedback 

Cu tomer set vice at this Post Office 
is fantastic 

"The counter clerk was ha r)py and 
informative. I was very impressed 

'It's very corven?ent, offers a lot of 
services, -ms pleasant staff and hay _ 
recently been refurbished " 

tt s changed? Customer feedback "There wasn't a long line to wait in. The ; 
;n of the hra n h R-_ally 1mprc sseci This has chap who set vecl me was very helpful, 

rupiove cus crue_ flow brought the Post Office into polite and friendly. You can't beat good 

• ia.Post & Go the 21st cent iry"" customer service with a smile." 

rn chines with staff "I like the self -se:,aice :nacl rues z w 
on hand to offer help very much. It Makes it so much

• Extended opening hours easier and quicker to come in 
• Two inters ial TM end do what you i:eed to -

machines added The changes arcs time
the helpful ar_d staff are very z 
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Overview ~ ~ =v.~ Cripei u< <

pporting our networi ................................................................................ 

................................................................................. 

I t

+I t

' ices

i1 ipr l= t , I~sic; f I ay r)erience. 
There hrr ,-;. r)een sign i i i K ; q livestmenl 
in the it r c stems t1 in our 
service to custornei 
.......... .................................... . . .................. . ......... .... 

, # i....r ` a p" I 4 d" . i" :- . f ,.:l s- u., i r il"t 

J
, 

Y, thers of th ltiation. Sc a key 
drir r for the L pro 

• o cash i ; ca s _ . ld 
n try - 

. . .... ... . 
 

......... ........

Collected: ............... 

£42b . 
In 201313 , our Cash Supply Chain -
business  collected and del vered, 
more than £42 billion of cash, ccira 
foreign exchange, secure stoc3.
(stamps postal orders, etc) and 
transactiorialstock (govertunelat 14 
forms and leaflets) 

Drop & Go 
Small business customers can now drop off their 
mail and parcels without waiting, 

Post & Go 
Additional Post & Go self-service machines: enable 
customers to save tirne by p0. sting m all acid 
parcels without the need for assistance from 
a branch colleague. 

Point-of-sale system 
This provides a service to 30,000 counter 
positions. At peak times, the system handles 
a,. ou i id 1,000 transactions per second. 

Extending helpdesk availability 
We have extended the helpdesk opening hcurs 
to support the increase in opening hours in 
branches. Branch colleagues can use the helpdesk 
for longer so that they can respond to customer 
queries quickly, 

New financial services customer 
booking service 
The Post Office undertook a pilot with sr-leca:ed 
cus lorners to enable lherri to book appoiritirerils 
online with in-branch financial services 
specialists, We are looking to extend this facility 
to all customers in the near future, 

i .... ....... .. ......... .... •...V. .... .': Y.. •.. 

Market share: ........................ ~F

31•a. lar est ...... ...... ...... . 
Our C:Vi operatlon is the third 
largest in the UK

I ~a 
B a is 'MyE'~~L~ 
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Operational review 

Customer excellence 

PuRingcustomer ~~~sP.. tl... 
Durham Crown branch~4i` 

Measuring satisfaction . ................................................................................. .............. 
For more than three centuries, the Post C :e 
has provided services central to t ese
lives of people in the UK. As v. . >ve forwdrd 
as a growing business, our rs remain 
at the heart of what v, _ to , . j we 
measure our success. ...................... I ......... ............... 

In 2012-13, we carried out extensive research to 
better understand our diverse customer base and 
their needs. 

Customers value the Post Office and rate our 
customer service highly, but they want the Post 
Office to be easier to do business with and offer 
them a greater choice of ways to interact with 
the business. 

Using this feedback will help shape the ongoing 
development of a multi-channel strategy for the 
futc.re that optimises convenience, choice and 
relevance for Post Office customers. 

Wait times down 
The Post Office made some significant progress 
over the past year with the relationships we have 
with our many customers. 18 million customers 
visit our branches every week, a third of small 
businesses (SMEs) in the UK use our services 
each week, 41.7 million individual customers visit 
our website each year and nearly eight million 
customers talk to our 34 UK and Republic of 
Ireland contact centres each year. 

In 2012-13, the Post Office achieved impressive 
customer satisfaction rates, with 87% of customers 
saying they were happy with the service they 
received, a figure consistent with 2011-12 71. 

Underlying these high ratings was a reduction in 
wait times. The average wait time in 2012-13 was 
three minutes, which was 12 seconds quicker than 
in 2011-12 and one minute and eight seconds 
quicker than in 2 01 0-1 1121, 

Our research also showed we need to re-engage 
customers with the overall Post Office brand in 
order to achieve future growth. We therefore 
launched a brand campaign in October 2012 
inviting customers to consider the Post Office 
in a different way. 

The Post Office understands the importance of 
customer service during the leac-up to Christmas. 
We put extra effort into making Christmas easier 
for our customers. This formed a business wide 
project during November and December which 
contributed to improved sales performance and 
customer perception. Christmas Makers (Post 
Office management and support staff work'ng 
in branches), longer opening hours, online help, 
pop-up Post Office branches and discounted 
stamp arrangements were highlighted tc customers 
by press, outdoor and digital advertising and PR. 
All of this delivered our best ever Christmas 
performance, with our core Mails product 
range exceeding last year by 3.8%, with 86% of 
customers saying they were satisfied with their 
experience in branch""'. 

There was also a positive impact on wait times in 
December. with an average wait time curing that 
busy month of three minutes and 47 seconds -
80 seconds quicker than the previous year, and 
three minutes and 27 seconds quicker than 201.1121, 

Annual Report and Financial Staternents2012-13 
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Voice  of the Customer programme 

Our new Voice of the Customer programme to 'tell 
us how we did today' was piloted in 150 branches. 
It uses pre-printed till receipts, cards and a Quick 
Response code to :nv:te customers to give 
feedback online, via mobile or by telephone. 

At the end of March 2013, we had feedback from 
36,500 customer visits. This feedback helps 
the Post Office address customer issues at 
branch level qu'ckly (for example, by making 
plans for dealing with busy times and reducing 
queue times) as well as helping to develcp an 
overall strategy to address common themes 
across our network. 

Customers also have the opportunity to praise 
service where it is 'above and beyond', and more 
than 700 individual wows' are received weekly'41. 

Following our successful pilot, the Voice of the 
Customer is now in place in more than 2,000 of 
our largest branches, and will be rolled out to all. 
newly transformed branches in 2013-14. 

Quadrangle Brand and 
Cus tome r In sight 
Programme 201112 and 
2012-13 (1,000 largest Post 
Office branches) 

"' ABa Mystery Shopping 
Programme 2.012-13 

Empathica Voice of the 
Customer Programme 
December 2012 

Empathica Voice of the 
Customer Programme 
2012.-13 

1 Brass network 
transformation 
programme research 
August 2012 to March 
2013 

ei Quadrangle Small 
Business Insight 
Programme April 2011 to 
December 2012 
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Performance review 

Our. people .................................... ......... .......... ............ .......... .................. ..................................................... 

u . ----------- -- 
The Post Office will attract and develop 
great people who have pride in and 
a passion for delivering value for 
customers and reflect the diverse 
communities we serve 

• Everyone will have a strong sense of 
ownership for their work, demonstrating 
initiative and flexibility, working well 
together to adapt to the rapidly changing 
needs of our markets 

• We will have an environment where our 
people work in partnership with all those 
who contribute to the success of our business 

• The Post Office will be a place where 
people are valued and respected, 
and are encouraged and supported 
to fulfil their potential and rise to the 
commercial challenge ........................................................................... 

The Post Office is proud of its heritage and equally 
proud of the unique role our colleagues play at 
the heart of communities. The Post Office also 
recognises the important role our support teams 
play in delivering the business strategy. We strive 
to nurture our people, so they feel valued, trusted, 
and committed to putting the customer first. 
We also continue to place a high emphasis on 
Ilie health, safety and wellbeing of our people. 

This year saw the introduction of our core values: 
Care, Challenge and Commit. These three criteria 
sit at the centre of everything we do, and are 
intrinsic tc how the Post Office interacts with 
customers and colleagues. Our values underpin 
our employee proposition and help to deliver the 
best possible customer experience, while at the 
same time giving everyone within the business 
the chance to fulfil their potential. 

Q Case study 
James Reid 
Property Lead. 
Network transformation programme `M 
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• QC,dse study 
. ................ ............................................... 

Ashley Hall 
Change Analyst, Finance 

I remake tc, tl a w der usiness. ................................... . ........ . ......... . ... ......... 
!! ............................................. ...................... 

The Post Office is particularly proud of the 
progress made in relation to talent, diversity, 
people development and engagement. 

Engaging with our people 
We value the opinions and ideas of our colleagues. 
Our employee engagement survey, which was 
conducted in 2012, is managed by independent 
research company Ipsos MORI. The survey helps 
the Post Office understand how colleagues are 
feeling about the business, what is going well and 
where we can improve. 

Learning and development 
The Post Office continues to support the 
development of people right across the organisation 
Our people have undertaken a broad range of 
development activities this year, including: 

- introduction of D'scovery Days for new 
managers, ensuring they have the tools to 
succeed in their new roles; 

• supporting the development of a Post Office 
procurement function. utilising internal expertise, 
external training and professional qualifications. 

• introduction of the. Certificate of Professional 
Business Practice in the Information Services 
team in partnership with Sheffield Hallam 
University, sharing skills, knowledge and best 
practice across the organisation; and 

• building the capability and commercial skills of 
our managers through the development of the 
Crown Leadership Excellence programme. 

POST 
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Our people continued . . ........ . ......... . ......... . .................. . . 1. 

...... . ........ . . . ..... . . . ................... .................... 

I've star L) really believe 
in mys l r i feel like I have 
a future 'nere. 

...... . ........ . ......... . .................... . . ........ . . ........ . 

Talent and diversity 
Becoming an organisation working independently 
of Royal Mail Group Limited has required an 
increase in capability and expertise across a range 
of areas. New-found corporate responsibilities 
have been taken on across the breadth of the 
professional functions. Coupled with the goal of 
ensuring a high performing sustainable business, 
we have put in place a robust assessment and 
development approach, looking at both 
performance and the future potential of our 
senior leaders with the overall aim of raising 
the capability of our people. 

Raising our leadership capability and performance 
standards will continue to be an Important focus, 
which the Post Office will deliver through its 
Leadership Development programme. 

At this stage of our development, building talent 
and diversity merits special attention.The 
Board has therefore delegated authorityto 
the NominationsCommitteeto monitor the 
development of a talent management programme 
for senior levels of the organisation. 

We have also introduced a range of initiatives to 
promote an inclusive workforce. These include 
eslablishirrga diversity for urn, recruiting young 
people under 24 or. the Paid Work Experience 
programme, and launchingour Trainee 
Manager scheme, 

The ?ost Office is also proud of the progress made 
in gender equality. Our Chairman and CEO are 
women. The Board has equal numbers of male 
and female Directors, and women make up half of 
the Executive Committee. To ensure we maintain 
this focus, we have pledged our support to the 
government's Think, Act, Report initiative, 
which is aimed at improving gender equalil y 
in the workplace. 

Our general policy will be to recruit for talent, 
using a range of tools including encouraging 
open applications through our attraction 
website, engaging specialist recruitment 
consultancies, end operating specitic talent 
attraction campaigns. 

Challenges remain, but we are confident our 
commitment to building a culture of inclusion 
will continue to make the Post Office relevant 
to its increasingly hiverse customer base. 

We view our approach to diversity as an integral 
part of talent manager_rient.This year we have 
developed two programmes, taking positive 
action on both fronts. 

RR'"Ma rr~ •omr r rc 

Paid Work Experience programme 
Over the last 12 months, the government and 
media have both highlighted the problem with 
high unemployment in inner city areas, especially 
among young people. The Paid Work Experience 
programme aims to provide a period of paid 
employment during the Christmas period for 
young people and those furthest from the labour 
market. The Post Office employed 61 individuals 
in the lead up to Christmas in some of the busiest 
Crown branches across London and Greater 
Manchester.The initiative led to 39 individuals 
being offered further employment. Due to the 
success of the scheme, in 201314 the Post Office 
intends to extend the programme within the 
branch network. 

Case study ' u 

Shahidul Islam , 
................ .......................... r e ra „.'.. 
Paid Work Experience programme 
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Trainee Manager scheme 
The scheme was designed to take positive action 
to attract young people to consider a career with 
the Post Office, working with our colleagues and 
customers in our Crown branches. We employed 
eight'.ndividuals under the age of 24 to work in 
the London area. The trainees have subsequently 
undertaken a development programme including 
a foundation degree, senior manager mentoring 
and regular learning sessions. The scheme has 
already seen positive results, with three 
progressing to other managerialroles in the 
business. The trainees continue to prcgress and 
have provided a welcome injection of new ideas 
and enthusiasm. 

Accelerated Development 
scheme for senior leaders 
We are currently piloting a high-potential 
development programme for new entrants 
at the senior leadership level. This focuses on 
accelerated career progression across a range 
of roles within the business, alongside targeted 
personal development in which individuals 
draw on a range of available activity including 
coaching, mentoring and behaviouralworkshops. 

Safety, health and wellbeing 
The safety and wellbeing of our people is of 
paramount importance to the Post Office. This 
year, we have embarked on an extensve 
programme of health checks that will enable al 
our employees to understand how healthy they 
are and learn about what they can do to reduce 
the risk of illness and improve their wellbeing. 

The Post Office aims to fulfil its business mission 
without compromising the safety of customers, 
employees, suppliers, and all those affected by 
our activities. We want to make healthy and safe 
working a way of life. 

To this end, the business ensures that: 

• we comply fully with the relevant legislation; 
• the health and safety responsibilities of 

our employees are clearly defined, allocated 
and understood; 

• we encourage and help all our people to 
carry out their responsibilities under effective 
health and safety management systems, with 
safe premises, equipment and processes; 

• through instructionand training, we 
improve our employees' capability to 
manage and work safely; 

• we support and encourage our people to get 
involved in the health and safety performance 
of our business and pursue a healthy and 
safe lifestyle; and 

• we monitor and review how well we put on r 
health and safety policies into practice. 

Q Case study .............. ................................................. 
Bushra All 

Trainee Manager, Network 

Looking ahead 
The Post Office wants people who are capable of 
delivering a turnaround strategy. Therefore, we 
aim to continue building people capability; to 
foster a culture of continuous learning; to increase 
our people's understanding of our business in 
a commercial context, along with our social 
purpose; to develop a proactive talent and career 
management process that recognises the value 
in diversity; and to continue to nurture a culture 
where people are actively encouraged and valued 
as role models of Care, Challenge and Commit. 
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Corporate responsibility ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Supporting 
colleagues and 
communities 

-----------------------------
ne°s with a public 
Cr 5 strongly 
t operate 
y and. with a 
ring accessibility 

ID I iity and accessibility 
The ?ost Office strives lobe one of the most 
accessible organisations in the UK, ensuring that 
colleagues with disability needs are prcvlded with 
all the support they need and disabled customers 
receive an excellent experience, 

In 2012-13, the Post Office: 

• launched the Post Office Disability Helpline to 
provide solutions and specialist equipment to 
employees with disability or accessibility issues; 

• provided grants to agency branches to upgrade 
their outlets to make them more accessible; and 

• created and met a panel of accessibility experts 
from disabilityorganisationson a regular basis, 
whose role is to advise on the accessibility 
issues facing disabled people arid our people. 

Environment 
The ?ostt Office recognises its environmental 
responsibilities,and is committed to minimising 
its adverse environmental impact by means of a 
continuous improvement process. 

We set ourselves some challenging goals for 2012-1:1; 

5% reduc tiort in building energy use; 
5% reduction in CO,. from vehicle fuel; 
5% reduction in water use; and 

• 55% of all waste generated to be recycled. 

Year-end performance against these goals was 
encouraging in that we achieved or exc. eed.ed 
three of i ;f ,t i 'oats, Our performance in 
redociri, ,.i ..i .;g energy use was significant1v 
tffe,, _ unusually severe weather 

conditions during the winter of 2013-13. 

Change control. 
All business projects and supplier cone r acl s are 
rev iewed for environmental impacts. 

Buildings 
A large percentage of Post Office buildings now 
have low energy lighting and low water usage 
ratilities,and all fixtures and fittings are obtained, 
wherever possible, from sustainable sources 
or from materials that can easily be reused 
or recycled, 

Vehicles 
A new concept vehicle will go on trial in the 
second financial quarter of 2013-14 which will also 
utilise telemetry systems that will enable us to 
improve overall fuel efficiency.0ur aim is that this 
will become oiar flagship vehicle for the future. 

Waste 
Most of our buildings are now participating in the 
Dry Mixed Recycling scheme, where everything 
that can be recycled is segregated into separate 
bins or bags. In addition, 100% of all our 
confidential waste is now shredded, pulped, 
and sent to manufacture recycled paper. 

Sustainable operations 
We actively look for opportunities to ensure that 
all the paper we use is from sources accreditedby 
the Forest Stewardship Council (FSC), and include 
the FSC logo on all of our point-of-sale literature. 
Currently, some 90% of all the paper we buy is 
from FSC-accredited mixed sources. This meads 
the pulp used has come from well-managed 
forests, controlled sources, or recycled wood 
or fibres. 
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Charity giving 
We have been majcr supporters of BBC Children 
in Need for several years. 10 2012, the branch 
network played a leading role n Children in 
Need's BearFaced initiative:. Our activities helped 
ra'semore than £1 million for Children in Need, 
a record amount for the Post Office. 

Digital inclusion 
As a founder partner of Go ON UK, the Post Office 
is committed to helping the 16 million people in 
the UK who lack the skit's or confidence to benefit 
from new digital services. 

We plan to launch the Online Centre Locator in all 
of our 11,7130 branches in June 2013, which for the 
first time will signpost customers across the UK 
to their nearest digital training location. We are 
working with a number of partners to delver thee 
database, which covers thousands of tear ning 
centres across the UK. 

By April 2015, 23 of the government's key services 
wilt be Digital by Default To help people who 
may not have access to, or know how to use, 
the intereet, the Post Office is working with the 
government and community partners to ensure 
people can go to a Post Office branch to get the 
help they need to access these services in a safe 
and trusted environment. 

The Post Office is also focused on providing basic 
digital skills training and support to all permanent 
Pest Office colleagues. We will be progressing this 
initiative during the next finarrcialyear, 

Business in the Community 

In 2012-13, the Post Office became a standalone 
member of theBusiinessin the Community (BITC) 
scheme, working to develop both our support for 
BITC and a wider community role in lines with our 
public purpose. 

Our work with the 13IT(: leri high street task force is 
offering the Post Office an opportunity to partner 
with three of the 27 government-backed. Town 
Teams to help redefine and regenerate their high 
streets. The Post Office is now working with the 
Sydenham, ,Stockton-on-Tees and Brighton teams 
and their local communities to help regenerate 
interest and activity and ultimately provide a 
long-termfuture for these areas so that they can 
survive and thrive. 

The Post Office also supports the BITC Rural. 
Action Group in its work to help communities in 
villages and rural areas across the UK, where often 
the Post Office plays an important social and 
economic role in providing services to those who 
otherwise may feel isolated. 
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Profit and loss summary 

the ~  2012* Variance Variance 

• • Turnover 1 02 ;i 980 44 45 

Network 
Subsidy 

sustainability 

„1 9' 

Si ii ary results 
I A ,r /iiit'-e has delivered a sound 

tts first year operating as an. 
indei 0 business. Turnover has increased 
by 4.5%., with strong results in three of the 
four core product pillars.'l'his has enabled 
investment in driving future revenue growth 
through building the Post Office bra rid and 
developing new and improved services. While 
the scale of transformational change required 
to reach the goal of commercial sustainability 
rema'ns considerable, our performance in 2012-13 
was a sigrlfficanlstep in the right direction. 

Payment 210 180 30 16.7 

Revenue 1,234 116() 74 6.4 

Fe plecosts  (259) (.254) (9) (2.0) o 

Other operating 
costs (9135` (876) (37) (4.2) 

Share cf profit 
from joint 
vent ures and 
associates 32 31 1 3.2 

Operating 
profitbefore 
exceptional 
items 94 61 33 54.1 

Note tha. Royal Mail Holdings plc Annual Report and 
Financial Statements 201112 reported operating profit after 
modernrsation costs but beforeother exceptional iterns 
of £59 million. The prior year result has been presented 
to exclude mode-nisatlon costs consistent with 2012-13, 
where results are reported before all exceptional items. 

Revenue 
The Post Office's revenue increased by £74 million 
(6.4%) to £1,234 million, including an increase of 
£30 mi:lion in the Network Subsidy Payment 
from the government. The Post Office segments 
revenue into four pillars: Mails and Retail, Financial 
Services, Governrrien1: Services and Telecoms. The 
pillars and their performance are analysed below. 
. ....... ......... ................. .... ... ..... ..................................._............. ,,....... ..............,....... 

2013 2012 Variance Variance 
Em Em Em % 

IvlailsandRetail 409 392 1.7 4.3 .. .................. ....................._,...:. . ....... .... .. ...............,..... ..,.,......, ,,........... ..........,....... 
"in tncial 

. . 

SerViCE's 281 26/ 17 64 ..,....... 
C overr, merit 

........, . ...... ...... ... .. ....... 

Services 164-:.. 164 -

'fell corns 
..:....................... .._ 

129 120 
..... ...... ........_.... ...... 

9 7.5 

Other 41 40 1 2.5 

Turnover 1,024 r)80 44 I 

Network 
Subsidy 
Payment s 210 7 180 30 15.7 

Revenue 1,234: 1 ,160 74 6.4 

Key Financial. Performance Indicators ...... . ........ . ......... . .................... . . ........................................ ........ . .......... ......... . ......... . . ........ . 
Turnover (£rn) Operating profit Operatinglossbefore Operating 

before exceptional exceptionalitems cash flow (Sm) 
((''~~ 
V~`t 

items (£m) .. .. ......... ......... . .... 
. 

andNetworkSubsi 
Paynient(£m) ' ..... ........._ .......... 151. ............ .... 

' 
....... . . ..... .... ... ..... 

2012: 980 ..... ..... (11 
2012 38 

2012 61 
2012:U19) ~~~ 
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2012 Mails and Financial Government Telecoms Other Network 2013 
Revenue Retail Services Services Income Subsidy Revenue 

Payment 

Mails and Retail 

The Mails and. Retail pillar includes all the services 
provided for Royal Mail and Parcelforce. It also 
includes Lottery and retail services such as sales 
of cohectiblesas well at; packaging and stationery. 

Mails and Retail revenue of £409 million increased 
by £17 million (2012-£392 million). Of this, 
turnover in relation to Royal Mail products 
increased by £13 million, driven primarily by 
strong parcel and premium product volumes and 
the impact of the stamp price rise introduced on 
30 April 2012. In addition, retail turnover increased 
by £2 rail: ion due to the collectibles relating to the 
Diamond .Jubilee and Olympics memcrabilia. The 
rollout. of 1,850 additional terminals contributed to 
an increase of £2 million in revenue from sales of 
Lottery tickets, 

Financial Services 

The Financial Services pillar includes Post Office 
branded personal financial servicesproducts, 
cash machines and travel servicesas well as 
traditional services such as bill payment and 
over-the-counter banking transactions. 

Financial. Services revenue in 2013 increased by 
£17 million to £281 mill; on (2012-E264 million). 

During the year, the Post Officer sold its 49.9% 
share in its financial services associate, 
Midasgrange Ltd, to the majority Shareholder 
and long-term banking partner, Bank of Ireland 
(UK) plc. This was part of a wider agreement to 
restructure this established relationship, aligning 
the partners to build. a significant long-term 
financial servicesbusiness.Through this 
agreement,the Post Office will offer an increasing 
range of tiarisparerit arid value-for-money 
financial products and services, providing benefit 
to customers, subpostmasters and the Post Office, 

Personal Financial Services revenue rose by 
£24 million, drivenby stronggrowth in savings 
products (particularlyGrowth Bonds, Online Saver 
and Reward Saver) and the introduction of new 
mortgage products, Revenue from traditional 
financ al services products, including bill payment 
servicesand Postal Order sales, declined. 

This was due to the increasing provision of 
electronic alternatives to paper-based products 
and the increasing use of alternative payment 
methods. Revenue was impacted by the winding 
down of the Department for Work and Pensions 
contract for cash cheques and green giros, and the 
decision by National Savings and Investments 
(NS&I) to provide most of their products through 
their own direct channel. 

Government Services 

The Government Services pillar covers services 
provided under contract to government 
departments. This includes services in relation to 
the work of the Department for Work and Pensions 
(DWP), the Driver and Vehicle Licensing Agency 
(DVI.,A) and the Identity and Passport Service CT PS). 

Government Services revenue of £164 million 
remained flat (2012- £164 millicn), though revenue 
from the Passport Check & Send service increased 
by £3 million due to higher volumes from growth in 
b th our market share and the overall market. 
Conversely, revenue from identity-related services 
did not grow as expected. Revenue from the 
payment of benefits through the Post Office Card 
Account was £4 million lower than in the previous 
year as customer numbers continued to decline. 

Telecoms 

The 'Telecoms pillar includes the Post Office's 
FlomePhoneand Broari.bandservices,mobile 
top-up services and international phonecards. 

Telecoms revenue of £129 million represented 
an increase of £9 million (2012- £120 million). 
Revenue from HomePhone and Broadband 
rose by £10 million, primarily due to increased 
customer numbers following the introduction in 
May 2012 of morecompet'_tiveservice packages. 

Revenue from our Mobile top-up business was 
£1 million below the previous year, as more 
customers migrated away from pre-pay and 
moble networks reduced their transaction fees. 
Despite this reduction in income. the Post Office 
is still a significant provider in the top-up market, 
and its share of the retail market has been 
maintained at approximately 5%. 

Other 

Other revenue was generated primarily from the 
Cash Supply Chain business, which manages and 
distributes cash for Post Offices and for third 
parties. It also offers warehousing services, mainly 
to Royal lviai1. This revenue increased marginally 
to £41 ml lie ii (2012-E40 million), reflecting the 
growth in cash iri transit income from third parties. 

Network Subsidy Payment 

The Network Subsidy Payment is government 
grant revenue towards the costs of maintaining 
the Post Office network. This payment increased 
by £30 million from the previous year to £210 
million (2012-080 million), a figure that will begin 
to reduce with effect from 2013-14 as set out in the 
current funding agreement with the government. 

sos1 
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Costs 
Total costs ',rose by £42 million to £1,172 million 
(2012-£1.130 million). 

Costs .......................................... 
Prior year to current year ........................... ............... 
Em 

(37) 

I 

'" )1le costs 
11r: - nle costs of £259 million (3011-£2b4 million) 
'ac isreased by £5 million, reflecting historical 

ements and the associated costs of 
a number of functions in-house following 

or.i.r separation from Royal Mail. 

Other operating costs 
Other operating costs have increased by 
£37 million to £913 million (2012-£876 m illion), 
driven largely by additional programmed 
investment spend mainly related to future revenue 
growth ambitions. This one-off investment spend 
included an increase in media spend to raise 
customer awareness of Post Office services: 
focused campaigns on travel-related services and 
mortgages: and the development of new and 
improved services. There were also increases in 
the cost of sales, reflecting greater sales volumes, 
and in property-related costs. 

Joint venture and associate 
Share of operating profit from the joint venture 
(First Rate Exchange Services Holdings Limited) 
and associate (Midasgrange Ltd, u.ntii its sale on 
1 September 2012) was £32 million (2012 £31 million). 
First Rate Exchange Services Holdings Limited 
results improved, despite lower retail sales due to 
market conditions. This was achieved mainly by 
driving efficiencies in operating costs Post Office 
Limited's interest in the associates company, 
Midasgrange Ltd, was sold during the year 
and made a loss on disposal of £30 r. ailli::ur. 

~rnmm~rrarrre►,tiru 

Exceptional items 

2013 2012 
£m £m 

Operating exceptional items: 
.....I . ... . ...... . .... .. . ..... . 

Restructuring costs inc lulling 
r i xrstr -iasters compensation (79) (2) 

1 -cent of 
r nt ass€its (66) (36) 

nment. 98 

(47) (38) 

Profit on disposal of property, 
plant and equipment 2;;

........................................................................................... ..... . _... ....................,....... 
Loss on sale of assordal e (30) ...... ....... 

Net exceptional items (75) (37 

Restructuring costs 

Restructuring costs include the costs of delivery 
of major change. N etwork transformation resulted 
in costs of £12 million for subpostrnasters' 
compensation and. £4() million of programme costs. 
costs of £1O million relate to IT transformation 
which will create the 1T infrastructure appropilate 
for a business with ambitious growth plans. 
Redundancy costs of £11 million were incurred 
during the year, mainly relating to the Crown 
network. Business transformation payments of 
£4 million (2012-£3 million) are payments that 
are periodically made to staff as an incentive 
in order to secure agreement for significant 
changes in working practices in order to 
improve business efficiency. 

Government grant 
In addition to the Network Subsidy Pay merit 
to support the network, the Post Office also 
receives government grant funding towards its 
transformation programme. Government grant 
funding of £200 million was received in the year. 
This is included within operating exceptional 
items to match the associated costs. £98 million of 
this government grant funding has been allocated 
in accordance with the designation setter, dated 
2 April 2012, from the Department of Business, 
Innovation and Skills, to cover £66 million capital. 
expenditure, £12 million network transformation 
related subpostmasters'compensation anc. 
£20 million network transformation 
programme costs. 

Cash flow and net debt 
1"'ollowing - jig '- I - tOfficerTirnittdfrom 
the ownership a I;~ +i s s i tF r to 
Royal MailHoldi .i- sip )i .liprii2012,PostOffice 
Limited has op . . lcpendenttreasury 
function and m, =s own financial assets 
(includingneto ) and financial:iabilities 
(mainly govern I
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The treasury function derives its authority from. 
the Board and provides regular reports for Board. 
review. It has the authority to undertake financial 
transactions relating to the management of the 
underlying business risks, but it does not engage 
in speculative transactions and does riot operate 
as a profit centre. The principal financial 
instruments utilised are deposits and borrowings 

The cash position of the business remains Strong, 
with cash and cash equivalents of £971 million 
(2012-£820 million), mostly in the Post Office 
branch network, and a net cash inflow during the 
year of £151 million. Within working capital, both 
client receivables and client payables increased 
significantly compared to the previous year, 
largely due to the year-end date falling on the 
Easter weekend, which increased cash flows 
and delayed settlements. 

Nel debt (excluding cash in the Post Office 
network) decreased by £119 million year on year, 
as shown in r.he table below: 

2013 
£m 

Net debt brought forward at 
25 March 2012 (325) 

Net cast`, inflow before financing 
activities (see page 62) 244 

Deduct: increase in cash in the network 
included in net cash inflow (121) 

lid' 1100 0ost5 paid (4) 
----------------------------------------- 
Total net debt carried forward at 

--------

31 March 2013 (206) 

Pc st Office Limited's borrowing facility from 
the government and the associated Framework 
Agreement imposes constraints on the purposes 
for which the facility can be used and the 
availability of external borrowing. Post Office 
Lim ited's treasury policy is to minimise the 
arnournt drawn down crl the loan in order to 
reduce the interest charge. The facility is limited 
to arc aximum of £1.15 billion or the amount 
of security available (mainly network cash), 
whichever is the lower. The maximum drawn 
down under the facility during the year was 
£499 mullion on 30 March 2012. The facility 
is available at two days' notice. 

At 31 March 2013: the Company was financed 
as follows 

------------------------------------------------- 
Borrower:  Average 
Post Office Interest Facility loan 
Limited rate* end Facility Utilised maturity 
Pun o'.c % date £m £m date 

Network. 
cash 10 ;: 2016 :,,.1150 291 2013 

Averige Interest rate o( loan drawn down. 

Pensions 

Post Office Limited is a participating employer 
within the Post Office section of the Royal Mail 
Pension Plan (RMPP) and is a participating employer 
within the Royal Mail Defined Contribution 
Plan (RMDCP). Royal Mail Group limited is the 
principal employer of the Royal Mail Senior 
Executives'Penslorl Plan (RMSEP?), and Post 
Office Limited is a participating employer within 
RMSEPP. RMPP and RMSEPP are botch defined 
benefit plans. 

On 1 April 2012 — after the granting of state aid 
by the European Commission on 21 March 2012 
-. almost all of the pension liabilitiesand pension 
assets of the Royal Mail Pension Plan (RMP ). 
built up until 31 March 2012, were transferred 
to HM Government. On this date, the RMPP was 
also sectionalised, with Royal Mail Group Limited 
and Post Office Limited each responsible for their 
own sections in future. This pensions transfer 
left the RMPP fully funded on an actuarialbasis 
in respect of historic liabilities at this date. 

The balance sheet pension position under IAS 19 
moved from a deficit of £206 million at March 
2012 to an asset of £97 million at March 2013. 
The improvement in position is primarily due 
to the transfer to government noted above. 

Both defined benefit plans closed to new members 
in March 2008, and RMSEPP closed to future 
accrual on 31 December 2012. New employees 
are offered membership of RMDCP. 

Pension cash payments for all plans 

The future funding of ongoing pension 
contributions into RMPP and deficit payments into 
RMSEPP is being discussed with the respective 
pension trustees. The payments for 2013 disclosed 
in the tabiti below were based on the arrangements 
that were iii placefor the 2012 frnanc'alyear. 

20133 2012 
£m Em 

Regular pension, contributions (24) (24) 

Funding of the pension deficit -
P V' ';PP (2) 
----------------------------------------- --------
P , , i N: 1 , „ , ': (2) (3) 

----- -- ------------------ --- 
Na (28): (27) 

T( r .11 arfutu.'eservicecontributionscash 
me LMPP expressed as a percentage, of 
lr '  my remained at 17.1% (201217.1%). 
T3; r < tz1, r rate of employee contributions for 
the Ella = P remains unchanged at 6%. 

Events after the reporting period 

In accordance with the funding agreement with 
government announced on 27 October 2010. 
for which state aid approval was received on. 
28 March 2012, Post Office Limited received 
£415 million of funding ending on 2 April 2013. 
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Business risk 

The information below details the key business risks, their impact and how the Post Office manages these risks. 

Key risk 

Changes in customer 
preferences 
Theie.isl decline inlb t•ad lions; 
Po'tOffice inrc inesti ri n i risfoni r;- 
preferencesrt .ring_

New ire orres lie am.s nay I il 10 glow 
sufficiently to :>x eed the losses frorn 
traditions productsirtdecilne 

'z . 

As set put in note 2, Post Office, Dinited 
has afu:ncling agreement with 
government until 31 March 2015, with 
a working capital facility un":i131 March 
201; .'l here is a risk that fun tint; 
beyond these dates cans of be 
negotiated or that st ate
is not granted in timi,. 

Business 
transformation 
programmes ....... ... ... ............ 
we are managing <., aigntf cant oa.imber 
of change progrnlunrs to i toilci i
the Post Ott(  and enable its proccssr~cc 
to cperame indc: endentiy of those 
ofPoyalMailG.- no ' hese include the 
network, Grown aid IT tray s orrraiiori 
programmes to success o. the Po5. 
Office Si- stag :c pmo depends on the 
successful reatisationof benefit:sfrom 
these programrrtec. 

Impact 

...................................... ................. 
The ost Office might not he able tc 
reduce its ref anc ' on government 
subxi;iy 

............................................. . ....... 
Mitigation

f X 

.................................................. 
We haveinhy:;ditc'ed new cervire.s !it 
growth areas as id contiriuorto refi nc- and 
develop I lie sep niiato`fetings There 
are del ailed ptaris in p1 rc e to deliver the 
growth t:isrjec_tory' and progress against 
these plans is monitored rigoro;i sly . 

.................................I.................. 
Planningis•well underway for We 
futureperiod beyond 2015, and 
discussionswtll commence shorty 
with government. 

....... ..... ... ....I........... 
Welmave,de=ailurlpl ..;sii.lrlacet0 
rrianagethe liaris-ornc-ii toriaud ensure 
it isdelrv6'red within bu .got arid on 
time. Delivery is .r sicked in on fly by 
a Transformation Bcarcl rude pup of 
Executive Cornmrttee triernbers whie l i 
provides direction ands crsigl.it over 
the programme delivery: 
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.................................................. 

Key risk 

Engagement risk 
'the.. upport cf our staff and 
subpostmasteisand engagernent 
with them during his sign ficani 
time of ens ge is key to the sur.cessful 
delfyeryoiour itratc.gy.Withdrawal 
cola kofsuppert 5roin ours aft 
subpostmastersrn T-nero two +kcould 
cause delays in the Post Office 
Iransforrnatioh prograrnrnesand'imit 
cur a X11 f y ton eel l u: i mesas oblec tiver 

4 E

5 5  0 

5 5 

5 55

u 

ti

Impact Miligatiof l .... ............... ..........I...............I............. .....I..... ......... 

.. ............... ...................................... 
Lack of sup nrt frorn our taff -mud 
subpostmasmers would ecpardise our 

ability to meet our strategic goals of 
growth rrof.tabililvand recucc d •,,. 
reliance on govcrrimcnt sur rdy x 

Regulatory 
& compliance 
There is a r isic of no's ern ;iplianoe with 
thecliarigini r_gcrl to yerrviioririii'Trt. 
ThePos( Office operates so d  in 
extensive regr-ilatory environrne*;t, 
'ncluding areas such a1 fnaricill an:i 

Postal sery c os procurement, 
competition law and data secunly. 

Business continuity .........................................I............... 
The Post Office has parts uia- 
operationalri5ks relati rig =o disruption 
of its services. 

This includes adverse weather conditions 
nib. stria action, systeinis breakdown 

and ccfailureofacr_toal .uppler 

rte: 

.... ........ .... 
Failuie to mm t Iegulatorvi-e ,rurenieiits 
could resultri=iiies iinii r dative 
impacts on our reputation, as well as :he 
costs of investigation and re vol alion. ' 

We rxtatntarn a fluid and comprehensive 
engagementprogranime with unions, 
staff and subpostm sters.These include 
-egular meeting,; with the National 
Federation or Sub' postmasters iNFSP), 
:he Communrcation  Woi kers Union 
(CWU) and Unite, senior management 
;riefings to staff and subpostrnasters. 
and even;sto engage ou r lieopiniri nrir 
vision and strategy. 

Wehavea people pt1uiaiined at claiessit.ig 
stafffinoli arionamdskillneeds.This 
includes development of new leadership 
and reward frameworks and increased 
focus on recruitment and training. 

Our legal and compliance  team works 
closely wi ti the ieievant bndiiess 
s:wners ir- identifying new requirements 
ane monitoring compliance against 
existing ones. 

The Risk and Corrpl:anceCominittee 
monitors key risks end our ac do is;to 
mitigate-thcm. 

....................................................... 
Disaster recovery and business 
continuity clans :ire under continuous 
:.'..evelopment and review in line with 
hustness change. 'fhis irrch_dcs 
contingency planning and training 
in the event of disruption such as 
industr'_alac tort or IT failure 

Keysuapleis mbihtytocontimmeito 
meet the Post Offi esiegoirenientsis 
:losely ~rnonitr re_; '.. 
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~~ . , r ~rr career in the 

civilservicewhichi' , r irledpolicyand 

operatsopa:rclesi if I ~1i 
ity 

sod 
,;rcialSecuI p - - Civil. 

i~ 7 ,~,~ ~~ t Service'sGrot.ir 'r in Cab inet Off ;ce 
hetween 200l ti rl r l'aa la,>r ,i e joining they, Post 

i  • _' Office as Chair nSeptember2(11,Ahce 
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t ' ~~ rE . ~," - i I ~, ;served as Non-Le (utive Director ontia boards of 

l,ittlewoods, BAA and TNS, where she also chaired 
I ! ( ` r®fl t -;fie (: 8 f V 111 t ( a the Remuneration Committee. Alice is n external 

inemberof the Oxford University Coun cil, a 
i siness coach at the JCA Group, and a member of 

faculty at Meyer Campbell, where she teaches 
SriIIOTE'XP.Ct.]iWFS how to coach. 

i i ::, t; i` I '.7 () 1 C1F` A ii 

~S(a i  ~~ Li ii ',.~. S
ic 

~. i~' cl l ;, t~i ,-ink; g -- ------------------------------
S n: )r no- e1 at .°~ atDirector at 

[)-, ,tt S~il tE C ' , lE :. p 
--- ------ ----- -------------- 

(Ct-. (. R ration 
sl ii -ol-vising l , managerri rie lOusiness Sub-Coins-nittee) 
ar lr L l'eportin:a „ ) the Sharer - ( ' 1a "r• 

-------------------------------------------------
Neil McCausland has nad a portfolio of NVon. 

i'I , 'rte ?Yea c f 1lrj91t 
Executive roles over the last 10 years. He is 
currently Chairman of three companies. 

!;11 f/`ll 1 ` "~~ i( r ?`' Snow+Rock,aretail chain selling skiing and 
i„ it i 1 r ; • i s outdoor brands bikes and tinning gear; sk n, ci

i ', '" ' '~' 
chain c f skin Ii ealrnentcbnlcs spec ialisin{,,in laser 

ac -I col rflee, nf. "1 ` t , hair rernoval; sand Create Health, a chain of 

pen`' "1 Ci senior r '? nut 1v F clinics, Until recently, he was Chairman of 
footwear company Kurt Geiger and a Governor of 

Each ci , E iS ch, ' i red I ' Nuffield Health, which operates hospitals and 

NC)rl ? Ve T 9is health clubs. Neil began his career at N arks & 

ti l ` ~' "_.. trl, C~ o 
Spencer before becoming Managing U:rector 

' of C&A and Chief Executive of lAAF 1, an 
T('11Tis 01 o1ef rc '. 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------- r ,. .. 

n 
------------------------------------------------- 

Tiro Franklinjoined `Ion-Execu:tivc> 
Director on 19 Septemf-. ,, " '1'i rn was 
Chief Operating Officer operative 
Banking Group until ti i c: .t c 2711, having 
previously served as in„ Director of the 
BritanniaBuild.fn' Society.Prior to that, he was 
Director of Customer Programmes and Loyalty 
and Managing Director of Savings at Barclays. 
Tim's experience extends across the private and 
public sectors, He is aso a Non-Executive Director 
of FfMl an I  Registry and was previously on the 
Boards of Recl aim Furid l.,imitecl. Mutual Plus 
l arniter and the Link Cash Machines Network, 
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Virgin a Holmes brings to the Board extensive 
V as' ii e of the financial services industry, 

Ah investment management and 
ii it t rexperienceincludesservingasChief 

1 )t AXA Investment Managers iri the UK 
xI rnos - , in a decade with the Barclays Bank 

Group, vro are she ultimately sex ved as Managing 
Director of the Barclays Bank Trust Ccmpany. 
Virginia currently serves on the boards and chars 
the investment committees of both the Alberta 
Investment Management Corporation in Canadr. 
and the Universities Superannuation scheme in 
the UK. She also serves on the boards of Standard 
Life Investments Limited arid JPMorgan 
Claverhouse investment Trust plc. 

Alasdair Marnoch 
-------------------------------------------------
Non-Executive Director 
--- ------ --- ----- -----------------

( ;lldlrl ]an ) i` t.1 11 : skC ai-ba 

Compliance Sub-Committee) 
-------------------------------------------------

AlasdairMarnochjoinedthe Board of the lost 
Office as a Non Executive Director on 23 May 2012. 
A chartered accountant, he chairs the Board's 
Audit, Risk and Compliance Su.b-Committee, 
which reviews the statutory accounts and 
financial controls. Alasdair has had wide 
experience as Finance Director of a number of 
FMCG arid servicebusiriesses,including listed 
companies. Most recently, he served as CFO of the 
Equiniti Group, a leading provider of complex 

Iministration and processing services to the 
aa id nh i' 'to se;-tries. 

1 ̀ ,n 

--- - ---- ---- --------------------

Sias . Storey is the representativeof the 
Dep rt,nent for Business, Innovation and Skills on 
the 1%o; ;t Office Board. She has recently been 
appointed Director of Corporate Strategy and 
Change at the Department of Energy and Climate 
Change. Susannah has been a civil servant since 
2006, working at the Shareholder Executive until 
2013 In a number of roles, including lead of the 
Royal Mail and PostalServices team and Chief 
Operating Officer. Prior to the Shareholder 
Executive, Susannah worked in investment 
banking at Cii:igroup and Schroders,specialising 
in UK corporate finance. 

Cl 
-------------------------------------------------

Paula Vennells has -he Post Office 
since 2007 in a no innei .,iinor roles, including 
Managing Director. She became Chief Executive= 
on 1 April 2012. Previously, Paula spent five years 
with Whitbread plc, latterly as Group Commercial 
Director. She began her career with Unilever and 
L'Oreal and held Directorships in sales and 
marketing with a number of major retailers, 
including Dixons Stores Group and Argos. Sh 
currently a Non-Executive Director ind'1'rl.t,
for the Hymns ns Ancient and Modern grr ui, 

C `jE '1

Chiet "a. .ia c`-,,, U`f cer 
Chrisi.h' ii i.d the Post Ofiiceiii August 2611 
from the I" +;_' where he had been Group Financial 
Controller .02005.  Prior to that, Chris spent 14 
years in FMn.G with Grand Metropolitan/Diageoin 
a succession of treasury and corporate finance 
roles in the UK nd as Finance Directorin the 
Netherlands; bsequent yin Germany! 
Aust  his career, Chris worked 

anagement consultant atKPMG, 
I I his careerwithBeecham.Group

A

k . ,t u

Alweni .yonsl.,i: ,a o, tOfficein1984asa 
graduate and 1 it a senior level in 
severaldirecicr irig Network, Finance 
and Marketing , r ~r.ame Company Secretary 
in July 2011, al t  <r .brig the protect to separate 
Post Office Limited from Royal Mail Group. 
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................................................................... 
The shares in Post Office T,iI rli!t"'("i 
(tii~ . oStCiij ,t . v>'c; .i ,c ," t d 'i i 

Rcili iii MaiTC11 i Hle i , .E I.. ) j 
tic' i. igs T 

is on 1 A t. . : ; iii, an. n toe Inc .. .. 
h f?' a4 1 -!( II '1 H r- Il y SIt :e t! rl +d Er::, 

p i  a oven......n- H e 

,a,, <a j.,d:1q vtrosesliares 
'1ic exchange, it is not 

i "ompliance with 
"o pE.. .v,tF ' )t , < , vcte (the Code). 
' 'Jose c a goaard _ t Post Office believes 

m appropriate benchmark for reporting on 
aerate governance. 

I airing the year, the Post Office has further 
established a full Board and Committee structure 
and has set principles for good governance which 
follow the provisions of the Code, so far as they can 
apply to a gcvernment-owned entity which has no 
private or institutional external Shareholders. 

Legal ownership structure 

The ?ost Office is a wholly owned subsidiary of 
Royal Mail Holdings plc. The Secretary of State 
for Business, Innovation and Skills (BIS) holds a 
special share in Post Office Limited. The Special 
Shareholder'srghts are set out in the Post Office 
Limited articles of association. 

A strong link remains between Royal Mail Group 
Limited and the Post Office: the Post Office has a 
strategic agreement in place to continue to supply 
Royal Mail Group Limited products and services 
through its network. That link is currently reinforced 
in the corporate structure by a common group 
holding company ('Royal Mail Holdings plc_) which 
holds shares in both Post Office Limited and Royal 
Mail Group Limited. 

Neither Royal Mall Holdings plc nor BIS, through 
its Shareholder Executive (ShEx), have any 
day-to-day involvement in the operationsof the 
Post Office or the management of its branch 
network and staff. 

The Board 

Alice Perkins was appointed as Chairman of the 
Board in July 2011, marking the first step on the 
road to building an independent Bcard for the 
Post Office. Neil McCausland joined in September 
2011 as the Senior Independent Director, and in the 
year under review a further four Non-Executive 
Directors have been appointed, each bringing 
particular skills and experience relevant to the 
business targets of growth, modernisation, 
customer focus and business efficiency. 

The Board is unusual in having a female Chairman 
and Chief Executive and being equally balanced 
between men and women. The Board comprises 
two Executive Directors and six independent 

. ..... . . ........ . . .................... ........................................................................................ . .......... 
1 roll. :. 0.ol 1tshLp Cirindt..role 
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Non-Executive Directors, including the Chairman. 
This provides a strong level of independent 
challenge to decision-makingand enables the 
Post Office to call on a wide range of experience 
and opinion. Short biographies of all members 
of the Board appear on pages 40-41. 

The Nominations Committee liaisesvOth ShEE:x 
in BIS to obtain the Special Shareholder's consent 
for all Directors' appointments. The Remuneration 
Committee agrees the terms under which they 
serve, including Non-Executive Directors' fees and 
any changes in the total remuneration fcr each 
Executive Director, The Executive Directors' 
contracts provide for six months" notice of 
termination to be given by the Director and 12 
months' notice to be given by the organisation. 

Non-Executive Directors are not employees of 
the Post Office, but provide services under ttie 
terms of an individual Letter of Appointment, 
signed at the commencement of their Directorship. 
All Non-Executive Directors are entirely 
independent of the Post Office, having no other 
connection or financial interest other than as 
customers and tarpayers. 

--------------- -------------- -------------- ------------- ----------------- 

Date of `C+-:: in sir at Committee 
D actor ar of w -e 3" 1 memberships 

firM ,f, 

Alice 21 July 12-n'r `h 
gins 201 cnrit i -ct 

------------------------------------------------
Ciul 19Septrss. r. 
rranklin 4 years, 

10' '2 3 years 

Neil 2. ... =tsi( An1,=r 
McCausland 201 1 4 years 
--------------------------------------------
lE.lasdair 23 May 
Marnoch 
--------------------------------------------

2012 3 years 

Susannah 1.8 April 
Storey 201 3 years 

Nominations 
(Chair), 

n/a Remuneration 

3 years, 
172 clays ARC 

Nominations, 
s Remuneration 

Remuneration 
2 years, (Chair), ARC, 

175 clays Nominations 
----------------------------

2 years. 
53 days 

----------------------------
ARC (Chair) 

2 years, ARC, 
1 8 days Pensions 

Board meetings 
The Board meets at :east eight times a year, with 
an additional strategy away-day, and has a formal 
schedule of matters reserved to it. 

The Board's responsihilitiesinclt, de setting 
the Post Office's strategic aims, putting in place the 
leadership to put them into effect, supervising the 
management of the business and reporting to the 
Shareholder. During the year to 31 March 2013,.
the Board has focused on financial performance, 
network transformation,and the people and 
capability of the business. Over the last six 
months, the Board's primary focus was on 
setting the strategic direction for the business in 
preparation for completion, during 2013-14, of the 
Strategic Plan and Funding Agreement with the 
government for the period after March 2015, 

During the year under review, the Board established 
sub-committees which met regularly to undertake 
more detailed reviews in specialist financial 
reporting areas, as recommended by the Code. 
Such focus areas included accounting policy and 
practices, risk and controls; pensions, executive 
remuneration, the processes for evaluation of 
performance, and the nomination and appointment 
of new Directors or the removal of Directors from. 
the Board. The full terms of reference for the 
Board sub-committees can be found on the 
Post Office website. 

The table on the fol lowing page shows tlhhe 
attendance of the Directors at meetings of the 
Board and its principal committees during 
the year. 
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From date of appointment 

Board sub-committees 
Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee 
The Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee (ARC) 
is made up of four Non-Executive Directors and is 
chaired by Alasdair Marnoch. The ARC considers 
Post Office Limited's financial reporting, including 
accounting policies and internal financial 
controls. It looks at the levels of risk which exist 
within the Post Office and the steps taken to 
mitigate those risks. 

One of the ARC's piimary responsibilitiesduring 
the period was to review both the half-year 
trading statement and the full-year financial 
statements to assess the validity of assumptions 
made, the accounting policies used and consider 
the ways in which the Post Office should present 
its financia: performance. 

A second major responsibility has been to 
promote the development of a risk management 
framework suited to the complex nature of 
the Post Office business. This will take some 
time, and is a key focus area for the coming year. 
The development of risk management and control 
procedures and the establishmentof a full internal 
audit programme are areas of high priority. 

In this period, a new Head of Internal Audit was 
appointed and the transition from using the Royal 
Mail Group himited's internal audit function to 
building a new internal team began. 

The ARC works with both the Internal audit 
team and East & Young, the external auditor. 
The appointment and terms of engagement 
of the external auditor, including the proposed 
fee structure, were considered and their 
independence assessed. The Audit Committee 
considered the scope and planning of the external. 
financialaudit and assessed the effectiveness 
of the audit process. There is no current intention 
to change the existing audit relationship, but the 
ARC will continue to monitor the independence 
of the auditor and will, in Iuta.reyears, consider 

whether the at.idit should be put out to 
competitive tender, in line with best practice 
applying to listed companies. 

Remuneration Committee 
The. Remuneration Committee is made up of 
three Non-Executive Directors and is chaired 
by Neil McCausland, the Senior Independent 
Director. The com mitee is responsible for making 
recommendations to the Shareholder on the 
remuneration of tlae Executive Directors in 
accordance with the articles of association. in 
doing so,it also reviews the remuneration policy 
and packages of the most senior leadership team, 
being the roles which report directly to the Chief 
Executive. it also obtains information on salary 
levels across the husinessand within external 
organisations of comparable size in order to set 
remuneration levels in an appropriate context, 

The Chief Executive may attend meetings, at t'ne 
invitation of the Chairman, to discuss matters 
relating to the remuneration of the Chief Financial 
Officer and members of the Executive Corrimittee, 
but the committee upholds the principle that no 
individual may be involved in discussions 
concerning their own remuneration. 

The committee is able to consult on remuneration 
matters with the Human Resources and Corporate 
Services Director, with other members of the 
Human Resources team and with external 
consultants. In the year under review, advice 
was primarily obtained from New Bridge Street 
on market practice and benchmark development. 
New Bridge Street consultants have no other links 
with the Post Office which could compromise 
their independence. 

No material changes can be mar'ie to Directors 
base salaries, benefits or incentives without the 
Special Shareholder's consent. Further details of 
the schemes now in place, and a table setting out 
the remuneration paid to all Directors in the year 
to 31 March 2013. are provided in the Directors' 
remuneration report on page 49. 

Nominations Committee 
The Nominations Committee is made up of 
three Non-Executive Directors and is chaired 
by Alice Perkins, the Chairman. It met for the first 
time in December 2012, with Director appointments 
up to that time having been made according 
to specific criteria, following discussions with 
the Specia: Shareholder, 

'the primary role of this committee is to recommend 
to the Board any changes in Board rnembership 
and manage the process for recruiti rig and 
replacing Directors. T he Board is complete and no 
immediate changes are expected. The core mi ttee 
will keep under review the balance of skills, 
experience and diversity available within the 
Board and each of the Board sub-committees, 

The Nominations Committee will also oversee the 
process for Board and committee performance 
eva:cation, and monitor talent and diversity 
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(see page 26). Tyre Chief Executive may attend 
meetings, at the invitation of the Chairman, to 
discuss matters relating to the talent and 
diversity policies. 

}'r reb us Committee 

~ . I aions Committee is made up of two 
r rnut1ve Directors arid one Executives 

i I and is chaired by Virginia Holmes, 
'Al_ ,._ =rsionstransferinApril2012 

t, c ad), government assumed the 
o, ,gations for past service liar as of the Royal 
Mail Pension Plan (RMPP) in rn I
substantialtrasasferofassets 'I i _ fc=rwas 
made possible fol lo ' rig I) u. . , U. an 
approval forUK C. . rnme_ie., gad. 

As part of the trec r, the pen i. fend was 
sectionalised,wit .assurning 
responsibilityfol t[ i - : t tUepensioufund 
which relates to Fe pioyees 
and pensioners. 

The Board has delegated authority to the Pension 
Sub-Committee to appoint professional advisers, 
to enter into negotiations with the trustees of the 
RMPP on the forthcoming valuation of the funds, 
to agree the investment strategy for the Post Officer 
section, and to monitor funding levels and 
investment performance. The committee reports 
back to the full Board so that its work can dovetail 
with executive recommendations and union 
negotiations on pay and benefits. 

in August 2012, the committee recommended to 
the Board the appointment of Aon Hewitt as its 
investment adviser. Working with Aon Hewitt and 
with Towers Watson, its actuarial adviser, the 
committee has satisfied itself as to the fair value 
of assets transferred into the Post Office section 
at I April 2012. The committee has agreed a 
revised investment strategy with the trustees 
of the RMPP, with the aim of maintaining the 
long-term sustainability of the scheme and 
protecting against an unmanageableincreasein 
liabilitiesfor the Post Office in the future. 

Mutualisation Sub-Committee 

The Mul;ualisation Sub-Committee is ch aired by 
Alice Perkins and its membership is the same as 
that of the full Poard_ it met for the first t'me on 
4 July 2012, the week in which the government 
published the response to its consultation 
'Building a Mul ual Post Office'. The committee is 
responsible for ensuring that the work to develop 
proposals for the mutualisation of Post Office 
Limited is providecl with strategic: direction, has 
the appropriate level of stakeholder involvement 
and has adequate support. 

The focus of the corrrmitteehas been toconsider 
the financial, cultural and business implications 
of mutualisation to ensure that progress on 
mutualisation supports and enables the successful 
delivery of the Post Offic' rr-:sformation 
programme. The cons m . a.rt mutualways of 
working toimprovetha , r ' nr er rot ihebusiness 
and the Post Office's progress towards ;mutualisation. 

Performance evaluation. 

The Board intends to carry out an annua' evaluation 
of the effectivenessof the Board and of the Board 
sub-committees. The initial performance 
evaluation will take the form of an assessment 
my the Chairman. Fxternealevalu.ations will be 
completed every three years. 

Executive Committee 
Below main Board level, the Executive Committee 
(ExCo) is the most senior management body and 
s made up of the Chief Executive and each of her 
direct reports, supported by some business unit 
Treads who report to members of the Executive 
Committee. The committee works within the 
delegated authorities establi she d by the Board. 

The ExCo implements the strategy agreed by 
the Board and monitors business performance 
and development at a day-tc-day level. it meets 
formally at least once a month to discuss 
proposals for new business development, receive 
financial and other performancereports, and 
address urgent issues that have arisen within 
the business and regr:rire senior-level resol ution. 
Twice yearly, it: reviews the results of persona. 
performance assessmentsundertaken throughout 
the organisation. 

'the Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer and 
Con-ipany Secretary attend both Board anc' ExCo 
meetings. This facilitates and strengthens the 
communicaticn channels between the senior 
leadership tearer and the Board and its committees. 

The Terms of Reference of the ExCo have beery set 
out in writing, ;and are available to download from. 
the Post Office website. 

Risk management 

The Post Office hi-:rs adopted the requirements 
of the FRC Guide to Corporate Governance and 
established an approach to the management 
of risk, tailored to meet the demands of a new 
business with ambitious plans for expansion 
in its chosen markets. 

The Board takes ownership of risk management 
through its Audit. Risk and Compliance 
C:ornmitteea (ARC). The business Risk and 
Compliance Committee reports into the; ARC 
and is responsible for: 

review and challenge of risk management; 
approval and endorsement of policies 
to mitigate risk; and 

•development of the; risk management 
framework. 

'Phis committee is chaired by the Director of 
CR and Corporate Services and reports to the 
Post Office ExCo.'i'he committee comprises 
members of the ExCo and other senior managers. 
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During the year under review, the Post Office set 
up its own Internal Audit department as part of a 
'three lines of defence' model (see diagram below). 
Internal Audit provides independent assurance 
and advice on the risk management framework 
and its futu.restrategy and evolution, and reports 
directly to the ARC. 

Compliance with the business'regulatory 
responsibilities in Financial Services is managed 
through established joint regulatory risk 
committees with the Post Office's partner, the 
Bank of Ireland (UK) plc. 

Risk framework 
The Post Office has set out the components of risk 
management in its risk framework. This framework 
is described at high level in the diagram below. 

task management as ro
• Identification Internal 
• ASspssrneni controls
• Management framework E 
•Reporting 

V 

C 
Business continuity , 

management

The framework utilises a 'three lines of defence' 
model to establish acccuntability and responsibility 
for the effective operation of this framework. 

1st line of defence is responsible for managing risk 
in day-to-day business operations. 

2nd line of defence comprises central functions 
which oversee regulatory compliance and provide 
advice on the operation of the framework. 

3rd line of defence provides independent 
assurance in respect of the Post Offices regulatory 
risk management. 

The risk framework is supported by the Risk and 
Compliance team, with dedicated resources in 
place to administer the tools and committees 
in use to manage risk. 

Progress 
Over the past 12 months, each directorate has 
gone through a process of identifying and 
assessing the risks associated with achievement 
of its respective objectives. In addition, the key 
strategic programmes of the business capture 
their own risks. 

The top 12 risks from each of these sources, together 
with the respective mitigation plans, are reviewed 
by the Risk and Compliance Committee to assess 
the robustness of risk assessment and management. 

The above assessment will be supplemented in 
the first quarter of the new financial year with a 
top down assessment of the Company's risks by 
the Post Office Executive Committee. 

Risk appetite 
Over the next 12 months, the Post Office will he 
fully developirig its risk appetite staternerrts for 
each of the key risks, with a view to establishing 
where additional risk may be taken to generate 
new opportun_ties and/or where further treatment 
of existing risks is required. 

Business continuity 
As part of the development of risk management, 
the Post Office is bringing together a wide range 
of business continuity arrangements throughout 
the business under one central policy and 
goverriaricefrarnework to ensure that the Post 
Office is capable of wilhslarrdirrg any significant 
threat to its ongoing operations. 
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Directors report 

The Directors present the Group Annual. Report 
and Financial Statements for Post Office Liinitc d. 
These financial statements relate to the 53 weeks 
ended 31 March 2013. 

Principal activities 

The Group's principal activities are the provision 
of access to a wide range of mails, goverrim~ ent, 
financial, travel and retail services through its 
network of Post Office branches and other 
channels across the United Kingdom (U.K), 

Review of the business and expected 
future developments 

Information contained within the Chief Executive's 
review (page 6) and the Financial review (page 30) 
constitutes the business review required by the 
Companies Act 2006 and is incorporated into this 
Directors' report by reference, 

Results and dividends 

The profit a. fter taxation for the year was 
£49 ~pillion (2012- £30 million). The Directors 
do not recommend the payment of a dividend 
(2012-nil dividend). 

Pensions 

In note 19 of the financial statements, on 1 April 
2012 almost all of the pension assets and liabilities 
cf the Royal Mail Pension Plan were transferred 
to HM Government:. On this date, the Royal Mail. 
Pension Plan was utlso sectionalised,with 
Royal Mail Group I imited and Post Office Limited 
responsible for their own sections. All employees 
were transferred to be directly employed by 
PostOfficet,imiten onthesarrie.late. 

Royal Mail Group I,imiteci is the principal 
employer in the Rcyal Mail Senior Executive 
Pension Plan arid for the Royal Mail Defined 
Contribu.tionPlan. Post Office Limited became 
a participating employer for both of these plans 
with effect from 1 April 2012. Post Office Limited 
continues to account for approximately 7% of the 
Royal Mail Senior Executive Pension Plan scheme, 
as it has done prev'ously. Both defined benefit 
schemes were closed to new members in 2008 
and the Royal Mail. Senior Executive Plan closed 
on 31 December 2012. New employees are 
offered membership of the Royal Mail Defined 
Contribution Plan. 

The consolidated balance sheet pension surplus 
of £97 million (2012-£206 million deficit:) has 
arisen principally due to the transfer of peiisio i 
assets and liabilities to HM Government. 

Prior to 1 April2012, Royal Mail Group Limited had 
the legal relationship with the trustees of both 
defined benefit plans and, as such, the trustees 
held Royal Mail Group Limited liable for the 
actuarial deficit in the scheme. All employees 
were employed. by Royal Mail Group Limited arid 
seconded to Post Office Limited under an 
agreement between Post Office Limited and 

Royal Mail Group Limited. Post Office Limited met 
he full costs of employment and was responsible 

Ion the funding of the pension deficit attributable 
to these employees. Consequently, Post Office 
I .invited recognised a balance sheet deficit on full 
adoption of lA S 19 by Royal Mail Holdings plc 
lased on employee numbers over 12 years. which 
represented approximately 7% of the total balance 
sheet deficit al h a l lime. The net pension interest., 
deficit recovery payments and actuarial gains or 
Losses were also allocated on this basis. The 
current servicecost, regular future service 
contributions and curtailments were computed 
>eparately for Royal Mail Group Limited and Post 
Office Limited based on common factors/rates. 

Political and charitable contributions 

During the year, charitable contributions of 
£989,702 (2012-£320,1.08) were made. No political. 
contributions were made in the year (2012 nil). 

Research and development 

Research and development expenditure di ire ig 
the year amounted to nil (2012-nill. 

Policy on the payment of suppliers 

The Post Office policy is to use its purchasing 
power fairly. Payment terms are agreed in 
advance. It is policy to abide by the agreed terms. 
The business has sought to comply with the 
Department for Business, Innovation and Skills 
(BIS) Better Practice Code. TIie number of clays' 
purchases in creditors at the balance sheet dare 
was 24 days (2012-33 days). 

Land and buildings 

'I'he net book value of land and buildings, based 
on a historic cost accounting policy and excluding 
fit-out, is El l million (2012 -Ell million). In the 
opinion of the Directors, the aggregate vah.ie of the 
Post Office'sland and buildings at the year end 
exceeded their net book vah.le by £73 million 
(201.2-£45 million). 

Directors and their interests 

The following served as Directors of Post Office 
I,irr: ited du. ring the year ended 31 March 2t113 and 
emain in: ost as at the date of approval of the se 

financial statements. 

A Perkins (: B 
N W McCau.sland 
V A Holmes (appointed 4 April 2012) 
S J Storey (appoiriled 18 April 2012) 
A Marnoch (appci:nted 23 May 2012) 
T A Franklin (appointed 19 September 2012) 
P A VenneLs* 
C M Day' 
*Executive Directors 

No Director has a beneficial interest in the 
share capital of Post Office limited. All the 

P0S1 
OFFICE 



WITNO0740103 
WITNO0740103 

48

Governance 
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Non-Executive Directors are considered to be 
independent, having no financial conne ction 
with Post Office Limited other than by virtue 
of the fees paid for their services as a Director. 
The emoluments of Directors are set out in the 
Directors' remuneration report opposite. 

Insurance and qualifying third-party 
indemnity provisions for Directors 
Post Office _united maintains Directors' and 
officers liability insurance for the benefit of all 
Directors and officers of Post Office Limited, 

A partial qualifying third-party indemnity 
provision (as defined in section 234 of the 
Companies Aet 2006) was and remains in force 
for the benefit of al' the Directors of Post Office 
Lim ited and former Directors who held office 
during the year. The indemnity is granted under 
article 129 of the articles of associationof Royal 
Mail Holdings plc, the ultimate parent company, 
The :ndemnity is partial in that it does not 
allow Post Office Limited to cover the costs of 
an unsucce ssfuiildefence of a third-party claim. 

People 
Our goal is to ensure that all employees are 
engaged and involved in the business and are 
aligned and equipped to meet business objectives, 
As part of our commitment to drive better service 
for customers, we continue to focus on improving 
the quality of cur leadership, professionalising key 
roles, recognising the importance of diversity and 
achieving greater employee involvement in 
decision-making. 

Training and development programmes have 
been put in place to support our ambition tc create 
a high-performance customer-oriented sales 
culture. This ambition is further supported by 
a range of bonus schemes which are based on 
the achievement of business targets. 

Underpinning all of this is a need for dignity at 
work, where everybody feels valued, and is treated 
fairly and ecually, with everyone playing a full 
part in helping the business to ac hieve its goals, 

Regular employee engagement surveys are 
conducted i:o al low employees an opportunity 
to express their views and opinions on important 
issues. This two-wary communication encourages 
all employees to contribute to making business 
improvements. 

Corporate responsibility 
Post Office: aniited.is committed tor ai 
its activities in a socially responsible a oart<ai at 
respect of the environment, employees, 
customers sod local communities. Further 
information can be found on page 28. 

Disabled employees 
The Post Office's policy is to give full consideration 
to applications for employment from disabled 
people. Employees who become disabled while 
employed receive full support through the 
provision of training and special equipment 
to facilitate continue`.  employment where 
practicable. The business provides training, 
career developmcentand promotionto disabled 
employees wherever appropriate. 

Post balance sheet events 
in accordance with the funding agreement with 
government announced on 27 October 2010, 
for which state aid approval was received on 
28 March 2012, Post Office Limited received 
£415 million of funding on 2 April 2013. 

On 21 June 2013,.  Post Office Limited launched 
a consultation with members of the Royal Mad 
Pension Plan, on a proposal to change the terms 
of the plan, which will conclude on 25 August 
2013. Post Office Limited will consider the 
feedbac:kbefcre making its final decision and 
con'nmunicatingit to colleagues. 

Going concern 

After analysis of the financial meson roes available 
and cash flow projections for Post Office Limited, 
the Directors have concluded it is appropriate 
to prepare the financial statementson a going 
concern basis. Further details are provided in 
accordance with the fundamental accounting 
concept in note 1 of the financial statements. 

Audit information 
The Directors confirm ll that, so far as they are 
aware, there is no relevant audit information 
of which the auditor is unaware, and each 
Director has taken al I reasonable steps to 
make themselves aware of any relevant audit 
information and to estab. ish that the auditor 
is aware of that information. 

Auditor 
The auditor, Ernst & Young LLP, is deemed to 
be reappointed under section 487(2) of the 
Companies Act 2006. 

By order of the Board. 

::.w ''.1.') •11 :at1. 

<'. E, qtr  y  -'i t ilk ' 11 Cl 
--------------------------------------------------

(company number 21!P-+540) 
148 Old Street, London EC1V 9H0, 
16 July 2013 
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Directors' remuneration report 

I Ii 

lr ~r t nuportunitytoi t re ;ri.irpr, ~r, ,s 
k, -unerationdi ti , the yeaC. 

Remei . . j -i highly sera. i- i eve ,.ssue ir) e 
challenging E v- environment in 
we operate. As publicly owned businc 7,' t aided 
by the taxpayer, with a commercial end public 
purpose, we recognise the need for transparency 
and accountability on Directors' remuneration 
and the need to establish a responsible approach 
to remuneration. 

Once the Post Office Board appointment process 
was complete in September 2012, a Remuneration 
Committee was set up to take responsibaity for 
executive remuneration. The members of the 
committee are independent Non-Executive 
Directors (NEDs), and no individual participate; 
in discussions c„bout their own remuneration. 
We have, used the recommended governance 
principles and proposed legislative changes on the 
disclosure of executive remuneration to prepare 
this report and to aid the development of the 
remuneration strategy. 

The corrim ttee recornmerids the strategy arid 
policy for Executive Directors' remuneration 
to the Post Office Board for its approval, taking 
into account their potential impact across the 
organisation. Prior written consent of the 
Special Shareholder is required in respect of any 
variation or amendment to the remuneration 
of the Executive Directors. During this first year, 
I have held regular dialogues with officials 
and ministers in the Department for Business. 
Innovation and Skills to build: working 
relationships and a common iinderstanding 
of the issues. 

The Post Office has begun the journey to turn 
around the business to become a sustainable 
organisation characterised by a strong performance 
culture and active stakel'iolderparticipation and 
engagement. We are planning for the future of the 

ousiness, so the longer-term remuneration policy 
becomes very important. We have deliberately 
made no changes to the remuneration policy for 
the Executive Directors during this first year, as 
we build a track record of solid achievements 
against challenging targets. 

The framework for the Exec five Directors' 
remuneration was inherited from Royal Mail 
Group. An extensive remuneration benchmarking 
exercise was undertaken during the year, and data 
from similar-sized organisations in three distinct 
sectors was considered. The organisations used 
For the benchmarkingactivity came from the 
muiva:, government owned and PLC sectors. 

The results of he benchmarking showed that the 
levels of Post Office executive reward for both 
fixed and tots '1 rerriun eration are substanti ally 
nielow the market median. The Remuneration 
Pommittee, mindful of the government's 
constraints on executive pay, agreed that while it 
would not recommend any changes, the relative 
market position of the Executive Directors would 
be kept under rev lew. Any recommended future 
change in remuneration for Fxecutive Directors 
would be sub-ect to Special Shareholder approval. 

The Chief Executive, Paula Vennells, arid the 
Chief Financial Officer, Chris Day, were appointed 
to their roles prior to I April 2012, the date at which 
the Post Office began operating independently 
from Royal Mail Group. While the responsibilities 
of the Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer 
have ii, creased significantly, their remuneration 
framework remains unc hanged. 

For the financial year ended 31 lviarch 2013, 
the corn mittee was satisfied that there had been 
a clear link between the performance of the 
business and payments under the two incentive 
plans, the Short Term Incentive Plan (STIP) and 
the Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP). Detai s of 
STIP and LTIP targets and the results achieved 
are shown on pages 53-54. 

The remuneration policy will remain largely 
i:.naltered for 2013-14, and the Remuneration 
Committee is in discussion with the Special 
Shareholder on the future remuneration 
framework for executive Directors, The Post Office 
is undergoing a fundamental transformation and 
we anticipate that each year progressively more 
'emanding targets will be set for the STIP and 
l.Tli in order to achieve our goa. of financial 
sustainability. 

the Remuneration Coma nitt:ee is comfortable that 
the current policy provides a strong link between 
reward and performance and I corn mend this 
report to our stakeholders. 

I-OSt 
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Directors' remuneration report continued 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------

The remuneration report 
This report has been prepared in accordance 
with the provisions of t he Companies Act 2006 
to the extent that they are applicable for an 
unlisted company. The committee has also, where 
practicable, adopted early the proposed legislative 
requirements for disclosure of Directors' pay being 
put forward for UK listed companies, 

Accordingly, the remuneration report has been 
split into two sections: a policy report and an 
implementation report. The policy report sets 
out the policy for the remuneration of Directors 
and its link to the bus:ness strategy. The 
implementation report sets out how this policy 
was applied during the year under review and the 
remuneration received by Directors. Both sections 
of the report (pages 49-55) have been approved by 
the Remuneration Comm tteeand the Board. 

iw L t 
iineral i  , •i Corrlmittee, 

1 iee Limite( 

l6July 2013 

---------- 

----E-4iibikuUlTN0o oul3--------------

The comrnitteeis responsible for setting the 
remuneration packages for the Chief Executive and 
Chief Financial Officer and determining the overall 
remuneration policy for the Chief Executive's 
direct reports and the Company Secretary. 

The committee's intention is that the remuneration 
policy should align with the business strategy 
and risk profile so that individuals are motivated 
to deliver the Post Office's objectivesand protect 
its brand value, The Post Office remuneration 
strategy is based on the following: 

attracting and retaining the right people 
within an agreed policy to lead and deliver 
the strategic plan; 
using incentives appropriately to reward 
the achievement of the turnaround strategy 
and promote the long-te=rn; viability of 
the organisation; 

• reinforcing an emerging culture of co-ownership 
and partnership; and 

• providing a transparent approach to the 
disclosure of pay. 

Remuneration policy summary 
The table opposite describes the current 
remuneration policy and the breakdown of the 
packages for the Executive Directors, which 
comprise fixed pay (base salary, benefits and cash 
in lieu of pension contributions) and pay at risk 
(STIP and LTIP). 

'nce rernunera tion framework for the Executive 
Directors requires consent from the Special 
Shareholder each year. The Board is reccmrnending 
that the framework remains the same for 2013-14 
as it was in 2012-13, with the exception of the STIP 
design for the Chief Financial Officer. 

Annual. Report and Vinsncial Statements2012-13 
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Remuneration policy table 

- --------- -- ----------------------------- -- ------------------------------•-- ------------------•-- -------------------------
Perrt T di , „% Operel_ion Performance Maximum values 

period 

55 15t5'/ 

Benefits 

Pension 

Short. Term. 
Incentive 
Plan 
(STIP) 

Long Term 
Incentive 
Plan 
(LTIP) 

c nme ! , reference to --
skilts anc_sesponibilities 

of the individual. 

Consideration is given to pay 
and employment conditions 
elsewhere in the Post Office 
when determining base salary 
increases, and to market data 
on comparable roles. 
-----------------------------
Participation in life and 
health assurance schemes, 
company car and private 
medical schemes are 
part of Post Office-wide 
heir: . -ogrammes, 

Pensie r, rovislon is provided 
by' the P ;t Office and is 
aver l . hi r_o all employees 
to ía ;ern meet their 
re t,: it needs and provide 
aen,.. . ... iiiveremuneration 
packi:,. ± l'd:ecutive Directors tors 
receive a,ilary supplen'ient 
in lieu at pension 
scheme membership 
-----------------------------

The STIP drives and rewards 
performance against a set of 
key financial and operational 
targets taken from the 
balanced scorecard, set each. 
year according to the current 
priorities for the business. 

STIP awards are also linked to 
the achievement of persona:. 
performance objectives 

The LTIP is designed to reward 
arid retain key executives 
and senior managers 
and to incentivise the 
achievement of longer-term. 
performance goals. 

The payout of the award is 
based on the achievement 
of strategic targets linked 
to the longer-term 
development growth of 
a sustainable husine.es. 

----- ---- - - ---
Dtrectore salones are reviewed 
annually ..n Jiely of c2c h yea r, 

The value of the benefits 
package ismonitoredby the 
Remuneration Committee 
and benchmarked against 
comparator organisations. 

A salary contributicniri lieu 
of pension is paid as a cash 
supplement to the Chief 
Executive and Chief 
Financial Officer, 

The metrics and target ranges 
are agreed annually with the 
Board and the Special 
Sliareholderas part of the 
annualbusiness and budget 
planning cycle. 

The STIP metrics are a mixture 
of financial (45%), customer 
(20%), modernisation (25%) and 
employee engagement (10%) 
measures which link directly 
to the overall strategy. 

80% of the STIP award is based 
on the balanced scorecard and 
20% is based on individual 
performance objectives, which 
are agreed with the Board and 
w 11 require approval by the 
Special Shareholder. 

Performance measures for the 
LTIP are drawn from the Post 
Office Strategic Plan agreed 
with the P:Special. Shareholder. 

The intention is to award 
an LTIP, sub!ect to Special 
Shareholder agreement. 
The proposed awards follow 
a three-year cycle. Awards 
for 2013 will be based on 
access criteria and a profit 
measure target. 

The current salaries for 
the Executive Directors 
are: 

Chief Executive 
£250,000 

Chief Financial Officer 
£215,000 

The total value of the 
benefits package for 
2012-13 was £9,779. 

-- ------------------
2!5% of salary 

------------------ ------------------ ------ 
One year The maximum STE 

opportunity for the Chief 
Executive is 80% of 
salary (with 48% of salary 
being payable for 
on-target performance). 

The STIP arrangements 
for the Chief Financial 
Officer are currently 
under review with the 
intention of aligning 
then with the 
Chief Executive's STIP 
framewcrk. The Special 
Shareholder's consent 
will be required for any 
changes. 

Three financal 
years 

70% of salary for the 
Chief Executive aria 35% 
of salary for the Chief 
Financial Officer is 
payable at target 
performance. 

Up to 98% of salary for 
the Chief Executive and 
t:rp to 49% of salary for the 
Chief Financial Officer is 
payable at m axi mu m 
performance. 

Post 
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Directors' remuneration report continued 
. . ........ . ......... . ......... . .................... .......... ........ . . ........ .......... ....... 

Performance scenarios 2t113-2014 
The charts below show the cu.antum and 
composition of the current remuneration 
policy for the Px ecutive Directors unde,' three 
performance scenarios. These are scenarios 
showing potential remuneration mac .ming there 
is no STIP or LTIP frayout (fixed pay only), on-
target performance (STIP and. LTIP paying out 
at a target level), and nr:aximum performance 
(full payout of STIP and LTIP). 

ce scenarios 2013-14 . . . . . . . . . ..I. .. . .... ....... . ........ ...................... 

EU Minimum On Target Maximum Minimum On Target Maximum 
Paula Vennells Chris Day 

Chief Chief
Executive Financial Ofhcei 

For the Chief Financial Officer, the above values 
are indicative, as the proposed changes to the 
Chief Financial.Officer'sSTIP are Stillsubject to 
the agreement of the Special Shareholder. 

Statement of pay considerations elsewhere 
in the Post Office 
The committee takes into account the pay and 
employment conditions of employees elsewhere 
in the Post Office when setting the remuneration 
policy [or the Executive Directors. For exarrrple, 
when determining salary increases for the 
Executive Directors, consideration is given 
to the policy and budget applied elsewhere 
to other employees. 

The balanced scorecard used for the SUP 
for Executive Directors is also used to assess 
performance in the STIP for Post Office managers, 
providing alignment between performance 
reward for a:I employees at manager level 
and above. 

Contracts and loss of office payment policy 
H,,ach of the Executive Directors has a signed 
a ccntr;,ct with the Post Office. 

Key terms of the contract ......... ................. ... ... ... ... ...... ................. ........... ... .... ... .................. 
Notice period 12 months to be given 

by the Post Office 
and six months by 
the Director. ....__ ........_._ 

Remuneration-related Salary andbenr fits 
provisions including health cover, 

a company car or car 
allowance, life and 
health insurance and 
cash allowance in lieu 
oil pension equivalent 
to 25% of base solar y-

(lIl a 1, . iaorai.r  .a ,: oll 

Executive Directors have clawback clauses in 
their contracts, as well as the STIP and (.,TIP 
rules, which provide for the return of any over-
payments in the event of misstatement of the 
accounts, error or gross misconduct on the part 
of an executive. These provisions are in line 
with market best practice. 

Non-Executive Directors 
'l'he tees paid to the Chairman are approved 
by the Special Shareholder. Fees for the Non 
Executive Directors are determined by the 
Executive Directors and are submitted to the 
Specie] Shareholder for approval, taking into 
account time commitment and responsibilities. 

The fees paid to the Chairman and Non-Executive 
Directors are not pensionable and they receive 
no other benefits. 

Noni-Executive Directors' letters of appointment 
are described in the Corporate governance 
statement on page 43. 

Statement of r ~n rl r rrtion of 
Shareholder Saws 
The Chairman o one Committee communicates 
regularly with the Shareholder Executive on 
behalf of the Special Shareholder or, all matters 
concerning executive remuneration, and the 
Special Shareholder approves all aspects of the 
frareeworkfor Executive Director remuneration, 

Annual Report :and Vin.lnci al Statements2012-13 
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Name 
Annualised 
sal ryl'fees 

Actual 
salary/fees 
7017 7011 Benefits 

Cash in 
lieu of 

pension STIP I.CiP Total 

NonExecutive Directors 

TimFranklin £35)00 £18667 £18,667 

Virginia -Holmes £35,000 £34,708 - £34,708 
----------------------------------------------•-------------- 
AlasdairMarnocli £45,000 

----------- 
£38,589 

----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- -----------
- £38,589 

----------------------------------------------•-------------- 
Neil McCausland £50,000 

----------- 
£50,000 

----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- -----------
£50,000 

----------------------------------------------•-------------- 
?.lice Perkins £10n000 

----------- 
EI 00.000 

----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- -----------
- 71 00.000 

------------------------------------------------------------- 
Susannah Storey
----------------------------------------------•-------------- 

----------- 
£0 

----------- 

----------- 

----------- 

----------- 

----------- 

----------- 

----------- 

----------- -----------
7:0 

----------- ----------- 

----------------------------------------------•-------------- 
Executive Directorst

----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- -----------

----------------------------------------------•-------------- 
?aula Vennellr> £250,000 

----------- 
£250,000 

----------- 
£9,779 

----------- 
£62,500 

----------- 
£157,936 

----------- -----------
£217,508 £697,723 

------------------------------------------------------------- 
Chris Day £215,000 

----------- 
£215,000 

----------- 
£9,779 

----------- 
£53,750 

----------- 
£129,053 

----------- -----------
£407,582 

£706,964 £19,558 £116,230 £286,989 £217,508 11.347.269 

Susannah Sl< older Executive of the Department for Business. Innovation and Skills. In March 2013 she moved to th(' 
Department o; Iauergy r,: x; :aim,:, .e Ctiai.gc :1 ,. receives no Director's fee. 

12; The salaries for Paula Vennelis and Cris Day remain unchanged. There is no planned increase for the review in July 201.3

Pay at risk paid to Executive Directors 
in 2012-13 (audited) 

a) Short Term Incentive Plan 2012-13 

The !:ITIP is based on the Post Office balanced 
scorecard for 2012-13. Six measures from  Iho:a 
scorecard were identified for use in the STIP. 
These relate to financial performance (50%), the 
custcmer experience (25%) and achievement of 
specific objectives related to the modernisation 
programme (25%). Financial performance was 
assessed through the use of stretching revenue 
and operating profit targets. Strong growth in the 
business during the year delivered revenue, 
excluding Network Subsidy Payment, of 
£1.02 billion, which was between target and 
stretch performance. This growth in revenue, 
couplec with cost control; meant that operating 
profit of £94.2 million was in excess of the stretch 
hurdle. Significant improvements were made in 
our interaction with customers, with reduc Lions 
:n queue times and call centre targets being 
achieved. Overall, performance exceeded the 
on-target level across all the sixrneasures, and 
was in excess of the stretch hi. rdle for two reasu res 

Chief Executive 

The STIP payable to tile Chief Executive is based 
on the balanced scorecard (80%) and personal 
performance (20%). The balanced scorecard 
element paid out 35.5% of salary, out of a maxirrium. 
of 64% of salary. For the personal element, following 
a review of the achievements of the personal 
objectives by the Chairni an, the Remuneration 
Committee judged that the Chief Executive 
laad achieved 80% of her individual objectives, 
leading to a bonus for this element 01 7.7% of 
salary. Taking account of both the flnaricisil and 
personal elements, the total STIP awarded to the 
:hief Executive for 2012-13 was ;:;3% of.salary. 

Chief Financial Officer 

The STIP payable to the Chief Financial Officer 
for 2012-13 was based on the balanced scorecard, 
with a multiplier applied based on personal 
performance within Ste plan year. I fis bcmhi.s based 
on the balanced scorecard was 40% of salary. 
The multiplier that was applied resulted in an 
increase by a factor of 1 5. Taking account of both 
financial and personal elonipppnts, the total STIP 
awarded to the Chief 8in1.tiicial Officer for 2012-13 
was 60% of salary. 

As shown in the policy section ribove, the intention 
s to harmonise the STIP design for the Chief 

1^inancial Officer with that of the Chief Executive 
and remove the multiplier. These changes will. 
be subject to Special Shareholder approval. 

I'OSI 
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Directors' remuneration report continued 

---------- ----E-xtubiku1TTNoo oul3-------------- 

b) Long Term Incentive Hart 
awards 2010-2013 
The [TIP award to payout this year is hased on the three-year performance period ended 31 March 2013. The award value for the 
Chief Executive was 70% of salary, with a maximum stretch value of 1.4 times the target award (;98% of salary) No award was made 
to the Chief Financial Officer because he had not commenced employment with the Post Office on the award date. The primary 
performance cortditionfor Lhe 2010 award was operating profit (sliding scale of targets). 

Operating pro fit for the year ended 31 March 2013 (£94.2 million) was between the target and stretch level The resulting payout 
under the 2010 LTIP was 87% of salary for the Chief Executive, Other Post Office employees also participated In this scheme, 
receiving awards of between 25% and 43% of salary. 

Outstanding Long Term Incentive awards 

Under Lhe remuneration policy, LT P awards are granter, anriLirally. The Chief ExetruLive 0tficer and Chief FinarrcialOfficer leave the 
following outstanding awards: 

---------------------------------------------------------------------

'i`ae r .t '. a 0 . :tr,0:h -.va <i C .rto area ac.e ,,eri,,dt 

Pail \Bern IIs.th f,'xerrir. ,cr—firer 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

f'hree years to 
2011 l.TlP 3175.000 £243,000 31 Maref 2(114 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Three L o. u 
2011: :...:1 3175000 3245,000 3! 'r-1;, '-5 

Ole r F octal Officer 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Three years to 
20r' ' 'P £50167 £:70.234 Si March 2014 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Three years to 
2012 LTIP £75,230 £1 05,350 31 March 2015 

" LTIP acvard pro retch because Chief Financial Officer cornrne:aced e rplocment I August 2011. 

Both the 2011 and 2012 LTIP awards are subject to challenging financial and strategic performance conditions based on business 
profitability and the maintenance of the network in line with the Shareholder's obiec Lives. 
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Total pension entitlements (audited) 
Paula Vennells am Chris Day each receive a cash supplement of 25% base pay in lieu of pension scheme membership. 

Paula Vennells accrued benefits under the Royal Mail Senior Executives Pension Plari (an HMRC-ap :proved defined benefit 
occupational pension scheme) until 5 April 2012, when she left the schene 

Accrued benefit et i - alp rrr• aeof 
,r<ate re 

15 3
i>. rr <I ter aF ~a tg , e., £e~~~ Ft ea rme' at • lie -:.nrl. pare lt3I 'lOS 

Age at year end:54

aui , Ai~n'leYfs 0 

at 
t^;_o o at aaa ql -.ts €l~.e 

.o R at &
1;1 vi r i. t~ e ne rcac' ' ~p ti a - inn '~flr 11rr rnx 

Partla Vermeils ~•~C 

Relative, ~~. . -, ice o` tc n }gay (a A,. ited) 
Total people costs at Posl, i ' k:e . i . ed (exclu•ding exceptioiial it:en's) for the year end L 2013 were £251) million, of 
which £T.35million relate dtoDirectors' pay This comparestotolal revenue excluc]mgN'crtwork ubsidary Payment of£1,02billion. 

Outside Directorships 
Subject to Board approval, they Executive Directors are permitted to take on non-executive positions with other companies and are 
allowed to retain the fees received in respect of such positions. Paula Vennells is a Director of Hymns Ancient and Modern and 
received a fee of £5000 in respect of the year ended 31 March 2013. 

I-OS1 
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Financial statements 

Statement of Directors' responsibilities ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report 
and Financial Statements in accordance with applicable law 
and regulations. 

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial 
statements for each financial year that give a true and fair view 
of raehnancialpositionofthe.GroupandoftheCompanyand 
the tn: nnc c al i rerformance and cash flows of the Group and of 
the Company for that period. Under that law the Directors have 
elected to prepare the Group consolidated. financial statements 
in accordance with InternationalFinancial Reporting Standards 
(IFRSs) as adcpted by the European Union and have elected to 
prepare the Company financial statements in accordance with 
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice 
(United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). 
In preparing those financial statements, the Directors are 
required to: 

• select suitable accounting policies and apply them 
consistently; 

• present information, including accounting policies, in a 
manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and 
understandable information; 

• provide additional disclosi.ires when compliance with the 
specific requirements in IFRS is insufficientto enable users to 
u nderstand the impact of particular transactions, other events 
avid conditions on the Group's financial position and financial 
performance; 

• state that applicable accounting standards have been 
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and 
explained in the financialstatements;and 

• prepare the financialstatementson rho going concern basis 
unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company will 
continue in business. 

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting 
records, which disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, 
the financial position of the Group and of the Company to 
enable them to ensure that the Group consolidated financial 
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 
of the TAS Regulation and. the Company financial statements 
comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also 
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and. 
Company and hence lox taking reasonable steps for the 
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities, 

The Directors confirm that tc the best of their knowledge 

• the Groupconsolic.l.ated financial stalerrienls, prepa~red 
in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU and in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 
give a true and fair view of the asset; liabilities, financial 
position and profit of the C roi.ip; 
the Company financial statements prepared in accordance 
with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice, give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, 
financial position and profit of the Company; and 
the management report contained in this report includes a fa'r 
view of the development and performance of the business and 
the position of the Group as a whole and of the Company, 
together with a description of the principal risks and 
uncertainties they face, 
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Independent auditor's report 
to the members of Post Office Limited 

We have audited the consolicl ated financial statements of 
Post Office Limited for the 53-week period enced 31 March 
2013 which comprise the Consolidated income statement, 
the Consolidated statement of comprehensive incomes, the 
Consolidated statement of cash flows, the Consolidated balance 
sheet, the Consolidated statementof changes in equity and 
the related notes 1 to 25. The financial reporting framework 
that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and 
InierrialionalFirrancialReporiing S lore orda(IFRSs)as adored 
by the European Union. 

This report Is made solely to the Company's members, as a 
body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies 
Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might 
state to the Company's members those matters we are required 
to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or 
assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and 
the Company's members as a body, tier our audit work, for this 
report, or for the opinions we have formed. 

Respective responsibilities of Directors 
and auditors 
Ps explained more fully in the Directors' Responsibilities 
Statement set out on page 58, the Directors are responsible 
for the preparation of the group financial statements and 
for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our 
responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the group 
financial statementsin accordance with applicable law and 
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). These 
standardsrequre us to comply with the Auditing Practices 
Board's Ethical Standards for Auditcrs. 

Scope of the audit of the financial statements 
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and 
disc:osuresin the financial statements sufficient to give 
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. 
This includes an assessment of: whether the accounti rig 
policies are appropriate to the group's circumstances and 
have been consistrantly applied and adequately discloser;
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made 
by the Directors; and the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-
financial information in the annual report to identify material. 
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements. If we 
become aware of any apparent material misstatements or 
iricorisis tencies we consider the M mplications for our report. 

0 lstatements 
ohirioii (k. 1, c~_ip financial statements: 

• give a true and fai dew of the state of the group's affairs 
as at 31 March Pt ind of its profit for the 53-week period 
then ended; 

• have been properly prepared in accordance wilts IFISs as 
adopted by the European Union; and 

• have been prepared in accordance with I lie requirements of 
the Companies Act 2006. 

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the 
Companies Act 2006 
I ri otar opinion the information given in the Directors' Report for 
the hnancialyear for which the group financial statementsare 
prepared is consistent with the group financial statements. 

Matters en which we are required to report 
by exception 
We lave nothing to report in respect of the following matters 
where the Companies Act 2006 regrorees us to report to you if, 
i11 olu- opinion: 

• certain disclosures of Directors'  remuneration sped tied by 
law are not made; or 

• we have not received a'I' the information and explanations 
wee require for our audit . 

Other matter 
We have reported separately on the parent company financial 
statements of Post Office Limited for the 53-week period ended 
31 March 2013. 

Angus Grant (Senior statutory auditor) 
for and on 1.hehalf of Ernst & Taut ig hl,P, Statuto i y Auditor 
London 
16 July 2013 

Notes 

1. The maintenance and integrity of the Post Office Limited's website is the 
resoonsibilityof the Directors; the work carried out by the auditors does 
not involve consideration of these mattes arid. accordingly, the auditors 
accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to tae 
financial statements since they were initially oresen;ed on the website. 

2. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and 
dissemination o` flnanclai statements may differ from legislation In 
otrer jurisdictions. 
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---E-xhibit-W-N907404 03--------------- 

Consolidated income statement ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- --
for the 53 weeks ended 31 March 2013 and the 52 weeks ended 25 March 2012 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- -----------
2013 /('I 

Notes £m Em 

Contfnuint oiler- t9oris 
----------- -- - --- ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ ----------- -----------
T'ur, ;v 1,024 980 

_-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Nrt rri 210 180 

1,234 1,1.60 

2 (259) (254) 
------ --------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------------------------- 
00 rating costs 

----------- -----------
(913) (876) 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
1 ,. , : n ~ftt from joint yl~r 

----------- -----------
1 1 32 31 

Opr J ,,C - ..r:a exceptiono). 4 94 fl
- --- ----- ---------r .._. .._------------------------------------------------------------ 
O ~: 

-------------- 
(47) 

----- 
3F) 

r xli r1 98 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------------------

retsl is lurif -. (79) (2. 

(66) C' C 

0t~ 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- 

47 
-----------

23 

8i 2
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
],r , . I 

----------- 
11 

-----------
(30) 

Pro tirsancing arid ictXz don 
----------- 

19 24 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
F1 ; , ; 7 

-----------
(4) (7) 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
P1 : 'Ile 

----------- 
7 

-----------
1 1 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
N: interest 

----------- 
19 

-----------
2 

Pr o.1:..: ,. _ ae 00 18 20 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- 

8 
-----------

31 10 

]Pro. 6, 0ina,ncialyear from continutr;,i o pear..tfmms 30 

t .r , : ni . : i ., . , ,Mail Holdings plc financa 1 ; . . . oear ended tiE March 2012 reported operatlngproittaller moclernisatiori costs butbetore 
other exceptional items of 1:59 million for Post Office Limited. In ,he income statemen_ above the prior vear result has been presented to exclude 
modernisation costs consistent with 2013 where results are reported befo-e all exceptional items 

Annual. Report and Financial St,atements2012-1.3 



WITNO0740103 
WITNO0740103 

Operational Performance 
Ovei %,iekti review reviiav✓ Governanr:e,

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

for the 53 weeks ended 31 March 2013 and the 52 weeks ended 25 March 2012 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- ----------- -----------
2013 202 

No`r•s £m £rn 

Profit for the financial year from continuing operations 49 30 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- ----------- -----------
Other comprehensive income: 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------'-----------
Actu arial gairou ondcincd henctitp<,n„ion schemes l 14 108 

TaX: io:onilotnitalon ii1°:cr .,, tr c: iP , 8 (21) -

To':al corr:prr her .1 income b r 9ie tear 42 138 
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OFFICE 



WITNO0740103 
WITNO0740103 

62 
Financial statements 

Consolidated statement of cash flows ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- --
for the 53 weeks ended 31 March 2013 and the 52 weeks ended 25 March 2012 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- -----------
203 2011 

"cotes Lm Em 

Cash flows from operating activities 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- - ----------
Operatingprofitbeforeexceptionalitems 94 61 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- -----------
Adjustment for: 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- -----------
Depreciation and amorts,3io 4 - 1 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- -----------
Share of profit born to .P , t i it :iales 11 (32) (31) 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- -----------
Perisionoperatingcosts 25 24 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- -----------
Working capital movements: 63 24 

(Increase)/decrease in trade ant: other receivables (138) 1 3 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- ----------
Increase in trade and other payahle s 199 14 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- ----------
H rr+aseir inventories (2) (1 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- ----------

„ rr r .t l rri 1prrrvisions 4 (2 

(26) (27) 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- -----------

s, 133 (27)

------ 
nt 200

----- --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----- --------
rircl prig c firsts (52) (27 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- ----------
r (15) 

08 ~. e rn c a  € rU _, 257 25 

Its 11 12 

era-, 1 .,, ~..: . , - rar•> 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Ir (11) 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Dia a '• 

----------- -----------
ii 40 38 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
l--- , i 

----------- -----------
1 

Tlrc;:  :arty, plant arndegtuprnent 2 2 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Pro,,__._ , ~., v' c . ,. . ,re 

----------- -----------
2 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Purchase ' -C a, : ' :': 5 

----------- -----------
(58) (33) 

Net cash Co:. die w pad day 'rm- i 1 ea: ti dy i a' .. a. ,is ; (24) 7 

Net I :i,3. in 1105 .. .be as tai' 511 ira , se tel tIes 244 44 

Cast: flows from fi.rae : tt':.: ac liv::: :fr.:, 

Finance costs paid (3) (4) 
-------------------------------------..----_ ---------------------------------------------------------------- 
Paymentstofinancr l fsecradrars 

----------- - ----------
(3) 13) 

--------------------_--......-_ _----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
(Repayment)Iprocc rr i ankhorrowinrs (86) 2 

Net cash (outflow) Ira , 'it: "iai .0r - activitie  (92) (5) 

Net acrease in casli a .4 ash ec: di tv is 152 39 
- ._....----------------...------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
'3 i,„ t of exchange .rt = on cash and cash equivalents 

----------- -----------
(1) '1 ) 

---....------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
rr H: and cash egri ::a lcnts at the beginning of the year 

----------- -----------
13 820 712 

Cast, and rash cqu 'err ants at the end of the year 13 971 F3` 0 

Annual. Report and Financial Stateiients2012-1.3 



WITNO0740103 
WITNO0740103 

Operational Performance 
Oc'erciev reveai Governsnc:e 

Consolidated balance sheet -----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
at 31 March 2013.25 March 2012 and 28 March 2011 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- ----------- ----------- -----------
2013 207.2 201.1 

c;ie £cn Ern Em 

Non-currentassets 
----------------- _---------------------------------------------------------------- 
Intangible assets 

----------- ---------------------- 
9 

-----------
- 

------------------..._-__------------------------------------------------------------ 
Property, plant and r 'Wont 

----------- -----------'----------- 
10 11 '. 

-----------
11 1 2 

- ----------- ------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Investments in hi ' _,r, tires and associates 

----------- ----------- 
11 

----------- 
60 

-----------
89 96 

-- - - ----.-------------------------------------------------------------- 
i!

----------- ---------------------- 
19 97 

-----------
-

I, • ~r 4'es 12 10: 

Te LO „ . . .in a e, ' ̂  : i 178 . Di . 108 

C,.. r i: .m.neuu 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- ----------- ----------- 

8 
----------- 

5 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
a "herreceivah'es 

----------- ---------------------- 
1.2 352

-----------
220 241 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
r' i t I " 

----------- ---------------------- 
13 971 

-----------
820 732 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- ---------------------- 
17/18 1 

-----------

D r 1,332. 1 ,02 1028 

-~t 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- ---------------------- 

1,510 1152 
----------- 

1136 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- ----------^----------- 
14 (874) 

----------- 
(563) (579) 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
, : .   sttie-in, . d ,vi _ 

----------- ----------- 
15 

----------- 
(291) 

-----------
(377) (375) 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
1nceleases 

----------- ----------- 
22 

----------- 
(3) 

-----------
(4) (4) 

-------------------------------- -- - ------------------------------------------ ----------- ----------- 
16 

----------- 
(19) 

-----------

ii Hil, 0 90 •wi (1,187); (9(51) (958) 

- ; ,. 6.-

i isrclerfinanceleases 22 (4) (6) (9) 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- ----------- 

14 
----------- 

(24) 
-----------

(2) (5) 
--- -------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

0 . , . 
----------- ----------- 

16 
----------- 

(7) 
-----------

(14) (26) 
--- -------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
'c 1€~nt benefit ohS . 

----------- ----------- 
19 

----------- 
- 

-----------
(206) (316) 

To: :. jai .; a~rr r 11 ,xri (35) (228) (3'16) 

Net w, •ea rli .b1 alb s1 288 (40) (178) 

Equity 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Share capital 

----------- ---------------------- 
20 

-----------
- - 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Share premium 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

----------- ---------------------- 

----------- ---------------------- 
465 

-----------
465 

-----------
465 

Retained earnings 
---------------------- 

(179) 1552) (690) 
---------------------------- ------------------------------ 
Other Fr- -=ry s 

-- ----------- 
2 

----------- 
47 47 

To`aiOcgnity/ detica"t)  288 (40) (178) 

The financial statements on pages 60 to 90 were approved by the Board of Directors on 16 July 2013 and signed on its behalf by 

-------------------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------------------
P A Vennelis CM Day 
Chief Executiv^ ChiefFiriancial Offices 
-------------------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------------------------
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
for the 53 weeks ended 31 March 2013 and the 52 weeks ended 25 March 2012 

------------------------------------------------------------------------ ----------- ----------- 
3

premium 
£m 

----------- ----------- 
Retained 

earnings 
£m 

-----------
01 tier 

reserves 
£m 

tcnzl 

equity 
Em 

At w 1. 465 (552) 47 (40) 
------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
Pr

----------- ----------- ----------- 
- 

----------- 
49 

-----------
- 49 

------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
A~ , I H . pies 

----------- 
19 

----------- ----------- 
- 

----------- 
14 

-----------
14 

----------------------------------- 
Ti 

----------------------------------- 
,:a=rol pension cia:,c — sot 

----------- 
19 

----------- ----------- 
- 

----------- 
286 - 286 

------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
5a_.of interest in associn-c 

----------- 
- 

---------- ----------- ----------- 
45 

----------- 
(45) - 

------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
, r,„,,.-ionofitone taken dirri iy ,..,i,:zity 

----------- 
2 

----------- ----------- 
- 

----------- 
(21) 

-----------
- (21) 

At  uai t 2c,'S 465 (179) 2 288 

Opel a l l vc °sflaid igs[ ,nnr 19 j arI 
ve,r'fui, _' a ind E 4., i , i I . r rh it Was te('Q Y ly€' f(n ilclly- no l Midi I, the crS.iOC"'a3 lee Y'lfjfy.lrl SeptF r79hr 

2012 u i,apdisposr nterestin the is,< i rdi:hair foae1'15rnillirn lother e5t'rvesielatingtoMid,rcgl rr.g:~ 
Lirinitel.l was transferred to retained earnings, 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Snare 
---------------------- 

Retained 
-----------

Other Total 

irernium earnings serves egrah 
tio',eaa, Ern £m £m

A* 28 March 2011 465 47 H781 
------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
Profit for the year 

----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- -----------
- 10 

------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
Acl i anal gain on defined benefit pension schemes 

----------- ----------- 
19 

----------- ----------- -----------
-- 100 

A- 25 March 2012 47 
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

1. Accourr ~I 
Financial year 
The financ: al year ends on the last Sunday in March and for this 
reason these financial statements are made up to the 53 weeks 
ended 31 March 2013(2012-62 weeks ended 25 March 2012). 

Basis of preparation 
The financial statements on pages 60 to 90 have been prepared 
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRSs), as adopted by the European Union and with those parts 
of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting 
under IFRS. Unless otherwise stated in the accounting policies 
below, the financial statements have been prepared under the 
historic cost accounting convention. 

For all periods tip to and including the year ended 25 March 
2012, Post Ottice Limited (the Company) prepared its tnancial 
statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally 
Accepted Accounting Practice. These financial statements fcr 

year ended 31 March 2013 are the first the Group (comprising 
Company and its subsidiary r- rndertaking)has prepared in 

ac _c cone with IFRS as adopted by the European Union 

ingly the Group has prepared financial statements 
nnnply with IFRS as adopted by the European Union 
rue for periods ending on or after 31 March 2013,.  together 

with comparative period data as at and for the year ended 
25 March 2012. In preparing these financial statements, the 
Group's opening statementof financial position was prepared 
as at 28 March 2011,.  the Groups date at transition to IFRS as 
adopted by the European Union. 

The Company is incorporated and domiciled in the United 
Kingdom. The Group consolidated financial staternents are 
presented in Sterling and all values are rounded to the nearest 
Em except where otherwise indicated. 

Basis of consolidation 
The consolidated financialstatements comprise the financial 
statements of the Company and its subsidiary undertaking. 
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, 
being the date on which the Group obtains control, and 
continue to be consolidated until the date when such control 
ceases. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared 
for the saute reporting period as the parent company, using 
consistent accounting policies. All intra-group balances, 
transactions, unrealised gains and losses resulting from 
intro-group transactions are eliminated in full. 

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 
The changes to accounting policies and disclosureswhich have 
been necessary as part of the transition to reporting under IFRS 
as adopted by he i uropeariUnion have had no effect on the 
income statement or net asset position. 

Accounting standards issued but not yet applied 
The following new and revised accounting standards are 
relevant to the Group and. are in issuehiut were not effective 
(and in some instances have not yet been adopted by the 
F. urn pear! Unio r!) at the balance sheet date: 

• Annual improvements to 1F RS 2009-2011 Cycle 
• IFRS 7 (amended) Offsetting Financial. Assets and 

Financial Liabilities 
• IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Classification 

and Measurement 
• IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 
• IFRS 1.1 Joint Arrangements 
• 17215 12 Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities 
• IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 
• IAS 1 (amended) Presentation of It-ems of Other 

Comprehensive Income 
• IAS 19 (revised) Employee Benefits 
• IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements 
• IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 
• LAS 32 (amended) OffsettingFiriaricial Assetsand Liabilities 

The Directorsdo riot expect t hat the adopton of the standards 
listed above will have a material impact on the financial 
statements of the Groi.:.p in future periods. 

Fundamental accounting concept - going concern 
The Group has net assets at 31 March 2013 and tras operated 
at a profit before exceptional items during 2012-13 for the fifth 
year running. 

A funding agreement with government was announced on 
27 October 2010 which provided for: 

• Funding of £410 million for 2012-13 
• Funding of £415 million for 2013-14 
• Funding of £330 million for 2014-15 
• Extension of the existing working capital facility with the 

Department for Business, Innovation sX Skills (BIS) of 
£1.15 billion up to 31 March 2016 

State Aid approval for the funding for 2012-13 to 2014-15 was 
rece veri. on 28 March 2012.  and it was also recognised that the 
working capital facility was no longer deemed State Aid. £410 
million was received on 2 April 2012. 

'Ibis investment will take the form of a government grant and 
enable the Grou.p to modernise the branch network arid the 
continuation of the Network Subsidy Payment recognises the 
major social value that Post Offices provide to communities 
Flew main and local branches are currently being rolled out 
across the United Kingdom. Customers are beginning to benefit 
from a much better retail experience including extended 
opening hours. This programme is designed to make the 
Post Office network more serf-sustainingand, over time, less 
dependant on direct subsidy, 'Ibis programme will not involve 
branch closures. 

The Directors are satisfiedwith the progress made towards 
modernisation during 2012-13 and that the plans in place and 
the substantial investment secured will enable the Group to 
continue to moderniseand to secure its future. However, they 
note that the scale of change required remains significant so 
not without risk. 
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

j. Accounting policies continued 

After careful considerationof the plans for the coming years, 
the Directors continue to believe that Post Office Limited will 
he able to meet its liabilities as they fall due for the foreseeable 
future. Accordingly, on that basis. the Directors consider that 
it is appropriate that these financial statements have been 
prepared on a going concern basis. 

Critical accounting estimates and judgements 
in applying accounting policies 
The Group --lakes car lain eslirnaLes and assurriplioris regarding 
the future.. Estimates arid assumptions are continually evaluated 
based on historical experience and other factors. In the future, 
actual experience may differ from these estimates and 
assumptions. In addition the Group has to make :udgements 
in applying its accounting policies which affect the amounts 
recognised in the accounts. The most significant areas where 
judgements and estimates are made are di scussed below; 

Pension assumptions 
The costs, assets and liabilities of the pens:ons operated by 
the Group are determined using methods relying on actuarial 
estimates and assumptions. These pension figures are 
particularly sensitive to changes in assumptions for discount 
rates, mortality and inflation rates. The Group exercises its 
judgement in determining the assumptions to be adopted, 
after discussion with its Actuary. Details of the key assumptions 
are set out in note 19. 

Pension liabilities are measured. on an actuarial basis using 
the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate 
equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality 
corporate bond cf equivalent currency and term. Judgement 
has been applied in determining that for these purposes a 
high-quality corporate bona constitutes AA rated or equivalent 
status bonds. 

The pension deficit transfer to HM Government on i April 2012.
was taken directly through equity, as in management's judgement 
I.his nansaction was undertaken with Hlvt Government. in its 
capacity as the owner of Royal Mail Holdings plc, the Company's 
parent company, rather than in its capacity as government, 

Provisions 

The Group has recognised provisions where a present legal or 
constroctiveobli ation exists as a result of a past event, where it 
is probable that an outflow of resourceswiil be required tc settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. 
Provisionsare detailedin note 16. Dueto the nature of provisions 
the future amount settled maybe different from the amount 
that has been provided. 

Impai rment of non-current assets 
The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of 
impairment for all non-ca.urent assets at each reporting date, 
Due to ongoing operational losses (excluding the Network 
Subsidy Payment) the carrying value of in tangible assets and 
all property plant and equipment ether than freehold and long 
leasehold property has been impaired to the recoverable amount, 

Revenue 
Turnover from government. financial, mails and telecoms 
ser vices comprises the value of services provided.. Turnover 
from all other products comprises the commission received 
excluding VAT, from the Group's principal activities in piovidiii 
access to a wide range of financial and retail services through 
its network of Post Office branches across the UK and. other 
channels. Turnover relating to line rental for telecoms sery ices 
is recognised evenly over the period to which the charges relate 

and revenue from calls is recognised at the time the call is 
made. Turnover from all other transactionsis recognised 
when the transaction is completed All turnover is derived 
wholly from within the United Kingdom. 

The Network Subsidy Payment is government grant revenue 
recognised to match the related costs of making available the 
network of public Post Offices that the Secretary of State for 
Business, Innovation and Skills considers appropriate. 

Net revenue 
Net revenue is calculated using revenue less the directly 
attributable costs of delivering the service or product. 

Operating exceptional items 
Operating exceptional items are items of income and 
expenditure arising from the operations cf the business which, 
due to the nature of the events giving rise to them, require 
separate presentation on the face of the income statement to 
allow a better understanding of financial performance in the 
year, in comparison to prior years. 

Intangible assets 
Intangible assets acquired separately or generated internally 
are initially recognised at cost and are reviewed for impairment. 
An impairmentloss is recognised in the income statementfor 
the amount by which the carrying value of the asset exceeds 
its recoverable amount, which is the higher of an asset's net 
realisable value and its value in use. 

Amortisation of intangible asse1:swith finite lives is charged 
annually to the income statement on a straight-line basis 
as follows. 

Software to 6 years 

Where intangible assets a; . . _ 'ourS 
on acgi.aisitioiitti:, atrove=range of assc lives is not applied. 

Property plant and equipment 
Property, plard and equipment is recognised at cost, including 
attributable costs in bringing the asset into working condition 
for its intended use. 

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets is provided on a straight-
line basis by reference to cost and to the remaining useful 
economic lives of assets anti', their estimated residual values. 
The lives assigned to major categories of tangible fixed 
assets are: 

Range of asset lives 

Latid am l bii iir Iii.is 

Freehold land l int 

Freehold 
---------------------------------------------------------------

F'reeholdh ii '1i :s tJpto50years 
---------------------------------------------------------------

Leasehold buildings hidings The shorter of the period of the 
lease, 50 years or the estimated 
r.. ,. 'ii ringusefullife 

Plant <i-;d rn-v ririery -'era 
--------------------------------------------------------------- 

air 1 _, ions ~. 

t .: n. iH n it,: fir' •d  , -

V. (ar. in .. p' 'rC ,, Pi U .: . , :,ie. l i in;'ipe. i sri ,) _Ps 

recu xablearnountoriacgi:ii ie above' ranges of 
ass< 1,. es are not applied. Tl , ! :r.tly the case for plant 
and r ;•irery,motor voL . ;a -1  i i i rs and fixtures 
and equipment. 
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Impairment reviews 
Unless othe . { ' edin these accounting policies, 
assetsare reviewed to in.pairmentif events or changes 
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be 
impaired. The Group assesses at each reporting date whether 
sc.ach indications exist. Where appropriate, an Impairment 
loss is recognised in the income statement for the am,oun thy 
which the carrying value of the asset (or cash generating unit) 
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of an 
asset's net realisable value and its value in u.se, 

Leases 
Finance leases, where substaritiallyall the risks and rewards 
incidental tc ownership of the leased item have passed to 
the Group are capitalised at the inception of the lease with 
a corresponding liability recognised for the fair value of the 
:eased item or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease 
payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance 
charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a 
constant rate of interest on the remainingbalance cf the liability. 

Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter 
of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term 

Leases where substantiallyall the risks and rewards of 
ownership of the asset are retained by the lessor, are classified 
as operating leases and rentals are charged to the income 
statementover the lease term. The aggregate benefit of 
incentives are recognised as a reduction of rental expenses 
over the lease term on a straight-line basis. 

Investments in joint ventures and associates 
Investments in joint ventures end associateswithin the 
Group's financial atstatements are accounted for under the 
equity method of accounting. Under this method the investment 
is carried in the balance sheet at cost plus post-acquis_tionchanges 
:n the Group's share of the net assets of the joint venture/associates 
less any impairment in value. The income statement reflects the 
Group's share of post-tax profits from the joint venture/associates. 

Inventories 
Inventories include printing and slalioriery,relail and Loller y 
products, is carried at the lower of cost and net realisable valise 
after adjusting for obsolete or slow-moving stock. 

Taxation 
'['he r'ha rge for current incnrt'e tax is based on the resells for the 
year as adjusted for items which are not taxed or are disa' [owed. 
It is calculated using tax rates in legislation that has been 
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. 

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all 
taxable and deduc tible temporary differences and unused tax 
assets and losses except: 

• initial recognition of gcodwill; 
• the initial recognition of an asset: or liability in a transactienthat 

is riot a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, 
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit and loses; 

• taxable temporary differences associated with investments 
in subsidiaries,associatesand interest in joint ventures, 
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference 
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary 
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and 

• deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it 
is probable that taxable profit will he available against which 
they can be utilises. 

Deferred tax assets and liaibil itiesare measured at the tax rates 
that are expected to apply to the period when the tax asset is 
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have 
been substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, Deferred 
tax balances are not discounted. 

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the income statements, 
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other 
comprehensive income or directly to equity. In this case, the tax 
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in 
equity, respectively. Further details on deferred tax cyari be 
found in note 8 to the financial statements. 

Pensions and other post-retirement benefits 
People working for the Company were employed i.''y Royal Mail 
Croup Limited and seconded to the Company unti 131 March 
2012. On 1 April 201.2 they were transferred to be directly 
employed by the Company Membership of occupational pension 
schemes is open to most permanent UK employees of the 
Company. All members of defined benefit schemes are contracted 
out of the earnings-relatedpart of the State pension scheme, 

'['he pension assets of the defined benefit schemes are measured at 
fair value. Liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the 
projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent 
to the current rate of return on a high-quality corporate bond of 
equivalent currency and term. The resulting defined benefit asset 
or liability is presented separately on the face of the balance sheet. 
Full actuarial funding valuations are carried out at intervals not 
I ormally exceeding three years as determined by the Trrtstees and 
actuarial valuations are carried out at each balance sheet date and 
form the basis of the surplus or deficit disclosed. 

For defined benefit schemes, the amounts charged to operating 
profit, as part of staff costs, are the current service costs and any 
gains and losses arising from settlements, curtailments and past 
service costs. The net difference between the interest costs and 
the expected return on plan assets is recognised as net pensions 
interest in the income statement. Actuarial gains and losses are 
recognised immediately in the statement of comprehensive 
income. Any deferred tax movement associated with the 
a:tuarL.lgairis and losses is also recognised in he statement 
of comprehensive income. 

For defined contributionschemes, the Grot.:rp's con fributioris are 
charged to operating profit, as part of staff costs, in the pt tied to 
which the conl rib.:itict is relate. 

Foreign currencies 
The Runctinnal and presentational cr irreency of the Group 
is sterling CL). 

Tr drisac Lions iri foreign c ri. r re ncies are recorded at the spot 
exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary 
assets and liabilities denornin ated in foreign currencies are 
retranslated at the functional rate of exchange ruling at the 
balance sheet date. Currently hedge accounting is not applied to 
any monetary assets and liabilities. All differences are therefore 
taken to the income statement, 

Trade receivables 
Trade receivables are recogni sad and carried at original 
invoice amount less anal bowance fc r any non-collectible 
amounts. An estimate for doubtful debts is made when 
collection of the full amount is no longer probable, 
Had debts are written of f when identified. 
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued 

1. Accounting policies continued 

Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs in relation to the working capital loan facility 
are recognised as an expensewhen incurred unless they are 
directly attributable to the construction or development of 
a qualifying asset, in which case they are capitalised using 
the weighted average cost of borrowing for the period of 
construction/development. 

Government grants 

Government grants are shown separately in the income 
statement to match the expenditure tc which they relate 

Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present 
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, 
it is probable that an outflow of resourceswill be requiredto 
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of 
the amount of the obligation, if the effect of the time value of 
money is material,provisionsare determinedby discounting 
the expected future cash flews at an apprcpriate pre-tax rate. 

Financial instruments 

The classification of financial instruments included on the 
balance sheet is set out below. 

Financial assets 

Financial assets are classified into the following categories: at 
fair value through the income statement, loans and receivables, 
and available for sale as appropriate based on the purpose fur 
which they were required. Financial liabilities are classified as 
either fair value thrcugh the income statement or as financial 
liabilities measured at amortised cost, 

Financial liabilities - interest-bearing loans 
and borrowings 

All loans and borrowings are classified as financi alli abilities 
measured at amortised cost. 

Financial liabilities - obligations under finance leases 

All obligations under finance lease and hire purchase contracts 
are class tssss tied as fir rncialliabilit:iesmeasured at amortised cost. 

Derivative financial instruments 

The Group a ses derivative financial instruments to manage 
its exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. Such 
derivative financial instruments are stated at fair value. 
l- edge accounting has not been claimed for foreign exchange 
derivative instruments. 

Fair value measurement of financial instruments 

The fair value of quoted investments is determined by reference 
to bid prices at the close of business on the balance sheet date. 

Where there is no active market, fair value is determined using 
valuation techniques. These include using recent arm's length 
market transactions, ,referenceto the current market value of 
another instrument which is substantallythe same; and 
discounted cash flow analysis and pricing models. Specifically. 
in t Ire absence of quoted market prices, derivatives are valued 
by using quoted forward prices for the underlyingcurrency an•d 
discounted using quotes: interest rates. Hence derivative assets 
and liabilities are within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy as 
defined within IFRS 7. 

For the purposes of disclosing the fair value cf investments 
held at amortised cost in the balance sheet, in the absence of 
quoted market prices, fair values are calculated by discounting 
the future cash flows of the financial instrument using quoted 
equivalent interest rates as at close of business on the balance 
.Sheet date. 

Derecognition of financial instruments 

A financial asset or liability is derecognised when the contract 
that gives rise to it is settled, sold, cancelled or expires. 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash 
at bank and in hand and short-terry, deposits (cash equivalents) 
with an original maturity date of three months or less. In 
addition, the Group uses Money Market funds as ; readily 
available source of cash, and these funds are also categorised 
as cash equivalents. 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash 
equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined 
above, net of bank overdrafts. Cash equivalents are classified 
as loans and receivables financial instruments. 

2. Segmental reporting 

In accordance with IFRS 8 'Operating segments; an upei ating 
segment is defined as a business activity whose operating 
results are reviewedby the chief operating decision maker 
(CODM) and for which discrete information is available. 
The Group's CODM is the Executive Committee as defined 
in the Corporate Governance section on page 45. 

The CODM has determined the operating segments based 
an the information reviewed by them for the purposes cf 
allocating resources and assessing performance, Operating 
segments have not been aggregated in order to present 
reportable segments. All segmental activities are located 
wholly within the United Kingdom. 

The CODM assesses the perforrnanceof the operating segments 
based on net revenue. This is calculated using segmental 
revenue less the directly attributable costs of delivering the 
service or product. The net revenue measure excludes the 
effect of indirect costs and the effects of non-recurring 
expenditure such as redundancy costs and asset impairment. 
Interest income and expenditure is not allocated to segments as 
this type cf activity is driven by the central treasury function. 

Assets and liabilitiesas recognisedon the Group balance sheet 
are not considered to be segmental assets or liabilitiesbut rather 
are managed by the Gros aft s central functions. The information 
reviewedby the CODM does not include assets or liabilities 
split by segment. A description of the activities of the business 
segments is included from  page 12 of the Operational review. 

Revenue from a major customer represents approximately 27% 
of the Grcup's total revenue in 2013. This revenue was reported 
within the Mails & Retail segment, 
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-- a,Irc — -€xhibit /ITNDD740183 ----

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- ----------- ----------
2. (7A 3 

Directly 
attributable Net 

Revenue costs revenue 
Em £m £M 

hi Itet 1 409 (5) 404 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

~n'.0 c i h.~rvrl.e 
----------- 

281 
----------- -----------

(1) 280 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Gov- to. ent5,, rvicps 

----------- 
164 

----------- -----------
(30) 134 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
C'r ler.crrrs 

----------- 
129 

----------- -----------
(85) 44 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
C7ther 41 

----------- -----------
- 41 

Sr.r h tc ra1 1,024 (121) 903 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------• 
Net workS1.:hsr tyPtsyrrienl 

----------- 
210 

----------- -----------
- 210 

Total 1,234 (121) 1,113 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- ----------- ----------- 

u re< ! 

Revenue costs revenue 
En Em Em 

r N i1 tail (4) 388 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
~7narlr

----------- ----------- -----------

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
tiovr>rm,rwi-i'4 rvicrc; 

----------- 
i F,4 

----------- -----------
(28) 1 3" 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
elr corn 

----------- 
120 

----------- -----------
(7`.9) 41 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- 
41 

----------- -----------
0) 

Hr ih t';r l S+S CJ (114) 4 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
rYetwot k tF -IS r S rd 

----------- 
11 4)

----------- -----------

NI dl. 1 ,16 1 (114) 1 0-It' 

, n  r' iiiB)rou rP:t\sc r 0 11"0:'I"Iy'l ilg if an 'in in r.'tli nn It rind pSCflf N 'Inn On •rtlO'1 ''1  "0 Clicdbwl v , 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -----------
2013 2()12 

Fan

Jnderlying vc 5nrr,rit rlr t reverrtre 1,113 1 046 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
1nil: rentcosrs 

-----------
(1,051) (1,016] 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Sham of po= ,t -tae prolr fn am jcrni ventr.rrr sand rssocaak s 

-----------
32 J1 

Operating profit before exceptional items 94 61 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
r7per sting errr! Stir n- I ' rns 

-----------
(47)

0pero2tingprofit 47 23 

.'roiit on disposal of p;roprrty, pool "r nc egr .~rpment 2 
----------- 

1 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
oss on sale of notwiate 

-----------
(30) -

Profit before financing and taxation 19 24 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Inoncr r::o 

-----------
(4) (7) 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
rrairce at rrnex 

-----------
1 1 

Net pr=nsiorrs interest 2 2 

Profit before taxation 18 20 
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued 

3. Staff costs and numbers 
Employment and related costs were as follow; 

2013 1012 
People cost .•: eR Il•, ire : re ytrn;ctudn, coats: £m Ern 

Wagesanr) : 7 if ,, 215 211 
- -.. -------------------------------------------------------------------------- --------------------- -----

Sociala'a v a w 19 17 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- -----------
Per sio1, coal s Cnol.e 1 31; 25 24 

Total 259 234 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- ----------- -----------
Period end employees Average employees 

2013 201 2013 1011 

I 7,886 7,70; 7,842 7,734 

Pc •

 A! 2')! 5: 
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

2M 3 2012 

11]' on 1,345 1,290 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- -----------
(Do , <, A I -'.. 4,511 4,833 

31177]'! Cha --` 1 1,585 1,781 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- - -------- -----------
Networkand Crown transto matlonprngral.rrnes 445 94 

Total 7,886 7,798 

4. Operating profit froj r, "n'7` ~', ,-1 operations 2w.`n om < nrrcptional itcnis 
., -', ,T ) - n , " ,,, ". " ':t:0....4 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -----------
2013 1012 

£m £ir, 

Si: 478 483 

Bureau deCh.ir. ,i < ]gnL r i _e .y s; On': 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

.2)!':] ' ,ss',s 1 
-----------

1 

Depreciatiion - 1 

Operating lease charges - Land an4i 7: nldli010 20 25 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

-Ve!Iiri i ' i': 'nt 
----------- ----------- 

62 62 

S PRY" `'.: - Y 'liegrout, I ' " t ~ ' ' iidOthenServSr ,'S: £OOO I::nm 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

----------
331 

----------- ----------- 
I ., 

103 1.')6 

5. Ope -.i) 15 excepry 1< Li,:-ms

2013 2(11 ; 
£m Fn`< 

G< ' . .;wnt 98 
-------------=-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- ----------
Br :. (4) 73) 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- -----------
N: i I :, (52) 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- -----------
36., V. ''. (11) 1 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- -----------

(12) 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- -----------
1rnpaaln ,e"t nr r' w sets ("i 0: 9) (25) (17) 

1r1,1, ,r- ,< a ,_ Jrrt . , 1,- is , r' ) (41) (19) 

TotaL. 07111111 .r, !"0' '"07 2" ~ E" (47). (38) 

DtrF_ 100":33 ("(33 1)70))))! olI,d 2120€: :t0 . l a1K : .,1, , W -r7 411, ,(0y1-03' ir r.) thecarryn . - . ;..:rrofintangibleass(,:-. and all property 
plant and r opment other titan firer _id and long leaseholri property lias been impaired to the recoverable amount, 
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6. Directors err i its 
1'he )irectorsreoc (afcfiowinge r  im(nts: 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -----------

2013 201.2 
£000 £000 

ion(_oninl7iI ndLT[P but lrl sbsii~i;r~ ~ =r 
:n lieu of 1.129 904 
---- ------ ------ ---- ----------------------------------------------------- ---- ----- -- --------------------------
Conlrib I ir, to i)ension scli  ar ~t ~_ s 
-----------...------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ ---- 

1 
-- ------ ----------- 

-- - 58 

Amounts  rec. tc rle i ode r'!oi n Incentive Pans 218 -

Directorsaccr IH.ringtheparicdnnder. 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -----------

2013 2012 
Number 

6
 ----------

€' I7i` =7
_.------...- ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- ----------- 

2 

'st paid
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -----------

2
OW ;C:u 

_ipplementsroc
698 403 

---- -- - ---- ----- ----- -------------------------- ------------------------------- 
ati 'OS to pens on schemes 

-----------
1 47 

315 284 

7.Nel finance costs 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -----------

2013 201.2 
£xn Ern 

Interest receivable 1 1 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Interest charge, unwinding discou,it 

-----------
0) (1) 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Interest payable on loans 

-----------
(3) (6) 

Total (3) (4) 

8. Taxation 
(a) Taxation gains recognised in the year 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -----------

2013 2012 
£m £;m 

Corporation tax credit for year (10) (11) 

Tax under provided in previous years - 1 

Current tax    (1O (10) 
------------------------------------------------- ------- ---- --------------------------------------------- 
Deferred tax (- 

- ----------- -----------
(21) 

Income tax credit reported in. heNcarsol.dstad ncomestatemen. (31) 0 

Deferrec. tax of £21 million has been charged to equity relating to actuarial movernents in the yeti remel t benefit surplus 
This of [sets the deferred lax credit of £2' rnlllion thathas been reported in the consolidated income starermment. 
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

8. Taxation continued 

(b) Factors affecting current tax credit on profit on ordinary activities 
The tax assessed for the year differs from the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 24% (2012 26%), The differences are. 
explained below: 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -----------

2013 2U1Z 
£m £:n 

Profi ni,c. ry< ( ti l ies} e%,retax 18 20 

Profit on ordinary activities multiplied by the standard rat« 4 5 

Net decrease in tax charge resulting from recognitiono 0 re r -i (35) (15) 
----------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------- ----------- -----------
Expenditure disallowable for tax 1 2 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- -----------
Adjustment in respect of prior period - I 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- -----------
Losses from disposals ineligible for relief 7 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- -----------
Effect of group relief surrenders to other companies - 5 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- -----------
Associatesljointve e7o xincluded:nGrouppretaxprofit (8) (3) 

Total current t, r. " ,, %c ad 
 

(31) (1 O) 

(c) Deferred ax 
Deferred tax assets relates to the following. 

-------------------------------------------------------
Lossesavrrllatrleforvtt; I tturetaxable no tow 

------------------------ ---------------------- -----------
(5 lax : e ee': Income statement 

2013 , ei o 2013 ;012 
£m f.m £m ern 

(21) 
-------- ----------- -----------

21 - 21 

In., 21 

(d) Factors that may affect future tax charges 
`file Group has urirecogniseddeferred lax assets of £190 million (2012-£337rni11 ion), cornprising£133 million (2012-E157 munition) 
relating mainly to fixed asset timing dlfferences,f.5 7 million (2012-£128 million) relating to tax losses that are available to offset 
against future taxable profits arid £0 million (2012-E52 million) relating to the retirement benefit obligation.Tfie Group has rolled 
over capital gains of £3 million(2012-£3 million); no tax liability would be expected to crystallise should the assets Into which the 
gains have been rolled be sold at their residual value, as it is anticipated that a capital loss would arise. 

Finance Act 2012 reduced the main rate of corporation tax to 23% with effect from 1 April 2013. The effect of this change on defer red 
tax balances is included in these financial statements and is; detailed above. In the 2012 Autumn Statement, the Chancellor of the 
Exchequer announced that the main rate of corporation tax will be 21% for the year commencing I April 2014 and in the March 2013.
Budget he announced that the rate will be further reduced to 20% with effect from I April 2015. In accordance with accounting 
standards the effect of these rate reductions on deferred tax balances has not been reflected in these accounts due to the relevant 
legislation not having been substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. A reduction to 20% would, based on losses and 
temporary differences at 31. March 2013, reduce the Group's unrecognised deferred tax assetsrsy £25 million. 

Under the Postal Sere ices Act 2011, trading losses which arose due to pension contributions and which are unused at 31' March 2013 
will be extinguisher' The estimated gross value cf the losses extinguished is£175nnl lion The unrecognised losses carried 
forward disclosed above are stated net of this amount. 

(e) Tax effect of exceptional. items 
There is a tax credit on exceptional items of £nil (2012-£nil). This is calculated on a'with and without' basis assuming that losses 
are surrendered firstly to joint ventures and secondarily to companies in the Royal Mail holdings Group. 
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9. Intangible assets 

2013 201.2 201.1 
Cost £m Elgin Em 

(' At 26 March 201 2, 28 vlarch 2011 , 29 IV1arch1201 0 1 
..,. 

83'~-, 166 1:,5 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Addilioris 75 

-----------
1 7 1.2 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Disp seals 

-----------
(1

208 18.`:3 166 

P' ;at X5 res 

eho'd le=csels:alal 11 k1,A r Total 
Err CYi1 On LITI . lS Em 

Cu

78 17 113 34 1 6')0 939 
------------------------------------------------- ----------- 
~s.c 4 

--------------------------------- 
- 

--------------------_------------
1 - 1 : 18 

-... ----------------------------------------------- ----------- 
; lsals (4) 

----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- 
(1) 

----------- -----------
(5) 

------------------------------------------------- ----------- 
Y7ars`ers from Royal Mail Group Limited 1 

----------- ----------- ----------- 
1 

----------- ----------- -----------
2 

At 25 March 2012 79 17 114 34 1 709 954 

Reclassification - 1 (1) - - - - 
-------------------------------------------'------ -----------------------------------------------------------------------------
Add'_tions 9 1 9 - 22 41 
--------------------------------------- ----------- 
Disposals 

----------- 
(1) - 

----------- ----------- 
- 

----------- 
(1) - 

----------- -----------
(12) 

At31 87 18 42 1 719 981 

Depreciation 

At 28 March 201 67 16 113 34 1 666 927 
------------------------------------------------- ----------- 
Depreciation 1 

----------- ----------- ----------- 
- 

----------- ----------- -----------
- 1 

------------------------------------------------- ----------- 
Impairment (see note a) 4 

----------- 
- 

----------- ----------- 
1 

----------- 
1 

----------- -----------
1::3 i 9 

------------------------------------------------- ----------- 
Disposals (3) 

----------- ----------- ----------- 
- 

----------- 
(1) 

----------- -----------
(4) 

At 25 Mr7 ': 2 114 34 709 943 

-- -- ----------------------------------- ----------- ----------- 
9 1 

----------- ----------- 
- 

----------- 
9 

----------- -----------
22 41 

-- - -------------------------------------------- ----------- 
-, 

----------- 
(1) •- 

----------- ----------- ----------- 
(1) - 

----------- -----------
(12) (14) 

77 17 114 42 1 719 970 

------------------------------------------------- ----------- ----------- 
10 1 

----------- ----------- 
- 

----------- 
- - 

----------- -----------
- 11 

1 11 

11 12 

Depr ' rates are dis  d rvi, x'iri acr cu-lung policies (note 1), No r„Ieprec'iation is provided on freehold land, which represents 
£3 rri r7n (2012-£3 mil:ion) of the to] al cost of properties 

lurk the year the legal ownership eta number of properties were transferred ron,i Royal. Mail Group Limited to Post Office Limited 
<ition. 

OFFICE 



WITNO0740103 
WITNO0740103 

74 

Financial statements 
-Opm xarnAr~armrZIotiurc~ 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

11. Investments in joint ventures and associates 
The foll owing entities have been included in the consolidated finarlcialstatemeritsu.sing the equity method: 

Joint ventures 
During 2012-13 and 2011-12, the Group's only joint venture investment was a 50% interest (1,00051 ordinary A shares) in ?Firs I: Rate 
Exchange Services Holdings Limited, whose principal activity is the provision of Bureau de Change. First hate Exchange Services 
Hcldings Limited is a company registered in the United Kingdom. 

Associates 
During 201.1-12, the Group's only associate investment was a 49.99% interest (4,999 £0.01 ordinary A shares) in Midasgrange Limited, 
whose principal activity is the provision of personal financial products. This investment was disposed of during the year ended 
31 March 2013. At the date of disposal the carrying value of the Group's investment was £32 million. Proceeds of £2 million were 
received giving a loss on disposal of £30 million which has been recognised in the consolidatedinc:cme statement. 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -----------

Joint 
venture Associate Total 

Em Em Em 

Share of net assets 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- -----------
Total net investment at 26 March 2012 67 22 89 

Share of pest-tax pre div idcnd profit/(loss) 33 (1) 32 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- -----------
Investmentinassociate - 11 11 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- -----------
Dis,-- -:x, - (32) (32) 

Divide:n (40) (40) 

Tota' rtr t in ar w -.t 7 ttt" -r  3 60 - 60 

Joi'it 
Venlu:? ?.ar, o(, site I ot,:I 

Em Eric Em 

Share of net 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Tc i .r 9. 1, 73 

-----------
23 96 

---_-_---__---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
} i . i. _,~ .,• ,. s) 32 

-----------
(1) 31 

-----------------------------= -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
I') vi (38) 

-----------
-- (38) 

`IY io nte1i_ f'i 0 2 67 22 89 

------------------------------------------------- ----------- ----------- 
20013 

----------- ----------- ----------- 
11012 

----------- -----------
2011 

joint Joint Joint 
venture Total venture Associate rota venture Associate "total 

Share of assetsandliabilities: Em Em Em Em En, Em Em Em 

Current assets 184 184 180 38 213 151 25 176 

Non-current assets 3 3 < 3 18 21 2 17 19 

Share of gross asset r 187 187 ` 183 56 275) 153 42 195 
-------------------------------------- 
Currentliabilities 

----------- -----------'----------- 
(127) (127) 

----------- 
(11 (7 ) 

----------- 
(34) 

----------- 
(1 9(2 

----------- 
(lC" 

-----------
(19) (09) 

Share of netas-r, , 60 60 57 22 89 73 23 110 

Share of revenue amd OroAt: 

Revenue 75 
-------------------------------------------------
Profit/(loss) 19 .. to _ 33 

---- ----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- -----------
75 75 49 124 74 39 11 3 
---- ----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- -----------
33 12 (1) 1 29 (4) 5 
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12. Trade and other receivables 

2013 201.2 2011.
Em Em Em 

Current: 

Trade receivables 32 39 45 

?repayments and accrued income 71 ' 39 27 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

rit receiv 240 
-----------

1 ? £3 1 a8 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- 

9 
----------- 

i) i1 

Ta ""al 352 11 

Non-current: 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Prepayrrlentsand ace rued income 

----------- 
10 

 -----------

The Group receives and disburses cash on behalf of government agencies and other clients to ra..as' ri LIAr ' rn o:.:.gh its branch 
network. Amounts owed from/to governm€ nt agencies and other clients are disclosed separately as client receivables (as above) 
and client payables (see note 14). 

As at 31 March 2013 trade and other receivables, of 37 million (2012-£5 million) were impaired and fully provided for. During 
the year £2 million (2012-£4 million) of 1:he provision has been utilised and an additional £4 million (2012-£2 million) has been 
provided for. Trade and other receivables of £8 million (2012-£7 million) were past due b.. t not impaired. The ageing analysis of 
le past dm amounts areas follows: 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -----------

2013 2012 
Em f;m 

Provided for or not yet overdue 24 32 

Past due not more than one month 7 3 
------------------------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------- 
Pastduemorethanonemonthandnot 

----------- - ----------
1 3 

------------------------------------------- ----------------- ------- ------- -------------- ------------------ 
Past due more than two months 

----------- -----------
-

Total 
-- — 

32 39 

The fair value of trade and other receivables is not materially different from the carrying value. 

13. Cash and cash equivalents 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- ----------- 

7013 
-----------

201 7 2011 
Em Em Em 

<, P. 1fEi ~< etwork- 879 758 704 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

~nnhar•k dep 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

----------- 
6 

----------- 

----------- 
19 

-----------
34 

~iar ments 86 14 

Total ca i 
. 
^. . 971 820 782 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise amounts held physically in cash, cash deposits available on demand c:rr within three months 
or less. Where interest is earned it is at a floating or short-term fixed rate. The fair value of cash and cash equivalents is not 
materially different from the carrying value=. 
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14. Tracieancl other payahles 

2013 
£m 

2012 
Em 

1011 
Em 

Current: 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Tradepayahlo° 

----------- 
43 

-----------
32 36 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
AcernaisH r iiL `,> "', ,, -i , ----------- 

110 
-----------

140 121 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- rsrl" ' n , ' ,- ej nt.S 

----------- 
50 

-----------
48 67 

10 9 10 

H, , 528 332 313 

IT).:. ....':. 1 I " „ " i "~h mi l" - . r 0THr , I ,- rf  r 'i, ,- A 
, 

- - ;y 

/`if 1rH 1) 0otCi(, , corr.patiies01.101 1rhe Royal Mai IIoicingsGroup 6 9 12 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
C'r

----------- 
18 

-----------
10 6 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
13, 1- I n 

----------- 
7 

-----------
3 10 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
ti c 

----------- ----------- 
102 

-----------

Total 874 303 379 

Non-current: 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- -----------
Other payables 24 2 5 

Of the £200 nnilliongovicelrnrrierlt grant receaivedi 98 million has been 0 catch against income st rteni 2nt expeaclltu.reiii 
accordance with the terms and conditions of the grant The rama1 e 02 million has been deferred into the balancesheet as 
disclosed above, The fair value of trade and other payables is not mater Illy different from the carrying value. 

15. Financial liabilities inr°°.  - ,1 1 er 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- -----------

1013 -Oil? 2011 
£ni t:m Em

Dem i'r1 en , t ,,r, F wr , r 1t- • aT 7 , , a1° 1).y c rl. ...rat.1 291 377 5 

TO'- a.re on average l day after the year 
end (-i)17Iday).T I1 " r rie..eofborrowirgsisnotrnateriallydrfferentfromthecarryirigvalee.0rmaturityitisexpectedthat 
further loans will I- , ,_ ern down under this facility, which expires in 2016. The endrawn committed facility, in respect of which 
all conditions r nt had been met at the balance sheet date is £859 million (2012-£773 million), The average interest rate or1 
the drawn rin' In l..l ; is 1.0% (2012 0.8%). 

The facility ra c. rrentlyrestrictedto fending the cash and near cash items heldwithin the Post Off:ce liniltednetwork, 

The facility (including drawn down loans) is secured by a floating charge over all assets of Post Office Jnaiteci and a negative 
pledge over cash and near cash items "-he negative pledge ".s an agreement not to grant security aver the assets or to set up 
a vehie ' 'le that has the same effect. 
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--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Crown 

Conversions Network 
project transformation Otter Total 

Em Em Em Em 

9 - 5 14 

F;ption ilttems - 10 12 22 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

1 - - 6 6 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

1 1 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

(3) .,, (17) 

7 i; 26 

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
4 8 7 19 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
• 3 2 2 7 

7 10 9 26 

3-123 

/i,mr charged in financing costs relate to the unwinding of discounted long-term provisions. 

C he , project >wn Conversions .fro erct relates franchisin past <a of Crown offices and onerous property lease provisions are expected 
ohs utilised w lthi r 5 years. 

1`! uncial assets art '. 1 

-------------------------------------- ----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- 
2+ ;s 

----------- ----------- ----------- -----------
20112 2011.

Non- A orr ''Jcn 
Current cnrrea t Total Ci i real cut rent Total CrI C7 - < :f.fn' nt Ti tat 

Em Fin Em ni Em 3m , 'r i £rn 

red 971 - 971 - 820 - 732 
-------------------------------------- 

i".
----------- 

1 
----------- ------..- -- ---------------------- 

1 - 
---------------------- -----------

- - -
------------------------------------------------------- 
1 (291) 

------------------ 
(291) 

------ ---.----------------- 
7)  - 

----
5) 

-- ----- ------- ---------- 
it;~:-:ons 

----------- 
(3) (3) 

----------- 
(4) 

--- - . - 
(7) 

---------- ---- 
is ; 

- -------- -- ----------- -----------
X13) 

7 ": i az ba.i i ~~rr~sl 
(11 a f 678 (4) 671 9) ~4 

u~a ~ 1 .lnc:lt iu, i ,i i.,ini , ._;.>.u,~, ,~ ., ~. .~ . i ~ u. . i . , ,;>.,. a ,d; . ,;.,,;1

'rhe Gro1 r s, other financial instruments such as trade receivables and I  payebles, which art se directly from 
operations said a: e. disclosed further in notes 12 and 14. 
The Group enters into derivative transactions, which create derivative asserts and liabilities. principally forwarder i rency 
contracts. The purpose is to manage the currency risks arising from the Group's operations. 

'I"he rnain risks arising from the Group's financial assets arid liabilities are interest rate risk, liruidity risk, foreign currency risk 
and credit r isk The Board reviews arid agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they art- surnn-i arised below: 

Interest rate risk 
The Group's exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates to the Group's debt obligations and interest bearing 
financial assets. The BIS loans to Posf Office Limited of £291 million (2012-£377 million) are at short-dated fixed interest rates - 
average maturity) day (2012 average 1 day). On maturity it is expected that further loans will be drawn down under this facility 
which expires in 2016. The total interest bearing financial assets of the Group of £92 million (2012-E62 million) are at short-dated 
fixed or variable interest rates, 
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17. Financial assets and liabilitiescontinued 

The table below sets out the carrying amount by maturity of the Group's financial instruments that are exposed to in! erect rate risk 

Financial year ended 31 March 2013 
Average 
effective 
interest Within .2 2-3 More than 

rate 2 year ye ,. T; years 5 years Total 
46 £m £m £m £m 

Fixe _:rp e 
- ----------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- -----------
Sr ,  n " :r ceoso 0.5 6 - 6 
------.._-- -------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- -----------91S1 jr' 1.0 (291) - (291) 
------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- -----------
Urli c'siinder`inancelea ec 10.0 (3) (4) - - (7) 

Flo ; - ~} 
------------------------------------------------------------------------ ----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- -----------
~in ,  0.5 86 86 

------------------------------------------------------------------------ ---------------------- ---------------------------------
CH r' . . - 8:c ' - 879 
------------------------------------------------------------------------ ----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- 

f f~ P( r 678 (4) - 674 

JH CS. ti, 1. CHIt .j .i iE IC' t 
-- -------------

Average 
effective Within 25 More than 

interest rate I year year- years S years
fm £n: trn 53m £';n 

Fix, 
-------------------.----------------------------------------------------- ----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- -----------

Li . a .. .. _„ 0.7 19 - - i-9 
------------------------------------------------------------------------ ----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- -----------
Ll > I ar_ 0.8 (377) - - 377) 
------------------------------------------------------------------------ ----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- -----------
0d ntior 1nr'nr H i.. 

I. :35  9.0 (4) (3) (3) - (10) 

Floating rat 
------------------------------------------------------------------------ ----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- -----------
Moneym  ~ztr,n , ,.ants 0.8 43 -- - - 43 

Non-interestbearing 
------------------------------------------------------------------------ ----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- -----------
Cassh in Post Office 758 - - - 758 

Net totallinancial <, s!(liabilities) 439 (3) (3) - 433 

Foreign currency risk 

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk resulting from balances heldd to operate Bureaude cirarige services. The Group's 
foreigr, currency risk management ob ective is to minimise the impact on the income statement of fluctuations in the exchange 
rates. The Grcup alms to hedge 90% of significant forecast future currency balances (principally, but not restricted to, US dollar 
and Euro) to match the anticipated holding period of the currency. The Group hedges its foreign currency risk principally through 
externalforward foreign currency contracts with First Rate Exchange Services Holdings Limited. 

Credit risk 

Credit risk refers to the risk that a courrterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in Einancialloss to the Group. 
R inancaal credit risk arises from cash balances (including bank deposas and cash and cash equivalents) held by the Group and 
business credit risk arises from exposures to customers. Business risk includes commissions receivable and client-related 
settlements for amounts paid out of the Post Office network on their behalf. 

The Group aims to minimise its financial credit risk through the application of risk management policies approved by the Board. 
Con:tnterpartiesare limited to major banks and financial institutions.The policy r=strictsthe exposureto tiny one coimtorparty 
by setting appropriate credit lirriits, 

Businesscrec.it risk is monitored centrally. The individual relationships and the contracts attached to them a -e n:.tan agedby 
dedicated teams and procedures are in place to monitor any concentrations of credit risk. The level of had debt iticurrec:i for the 
Group is less than 1% (20'.2 less than 1°£) of turnover. 
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Capital management 

The Grc i.ip'ss objectives when managing capital (defined as the net of borrowings and amounts due under finance leases and cash 
and crash equivalents excluding cash in the Post Office network) are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to 
maintain an optimal capital structure in order to support the business and maximise stakeholder value. In managing the Group's 
capital levels the Board and the Executive Committee regularly monitor the level of debt in the Group, the working capital 
requirernentsand the forecast cash flows. 'I he Board and Executive Committer plan accordingly following this review pocess 
in order to meet the Group's capital management objectives. 

Liquidity risk 

The Group's primary objective is to ensure that the Group has su fficientfunds available to meet its financial obligations as they 
fall clue. This is achieved by aligning short-term investments and borrowing facilities with forecast cash flows. Typical short-terns 
investments include money market funds and short-term batik deposits with approved counterparties. Borrowing facilities sre 
regularly reviewed to ens. me contfr..tiity of funding. g. The Unused facility for the Group of £359 mi lliori - (2012£7 73 million) expires l r
:n 2016. 

Sensitivity 

As a result of the mix of fixed so I Maria le rate f'inanc:alinstruments and the curr rncy hedge programmes in place, the Group 
has no material exposure to ris, , interest rate or exchange rate prices. 

The tabies below set ciat the gross ii,,~cotinted)contractu~.itca,3h flows of the Group's fmancla'liahilflies, For loan,, dl ance 
.eases,theser ,715 l nj <)•_'~U'171~"t)8`" ~]^~ >~ ._„~~'CI1. eel. 

2013 

Fiance 
RIS loan lease Total 

ten Em Em 

291 4 295 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- 

- 
-----------

4 4 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

the s 
----------- -----------

«. ri 291 8 299 

------------ ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- -----------
2012 

Finance 
1315 loan lease Total 

r r ;m, m4. lilt ,ies-irr: Fm Fm am

377 4 ;cif 

~1 1ethani yearbutr<< rnsre ho i2„ isira 4 4 

2 yearsbutnor s 4 4 
.....-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Mule h_,rr ors 
---------------------------- -----------

- -

Total   377 12 339 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- -----------
2011 

lea 1ctal 
~- rn En Em

7.5 d ?79 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
r,°7 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

-----------
3 

----------- 
8 

T' 16 7 
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18. Hedging programmes 
Details of the Group's derivative financial iristruments. esed to manage the risks :dentified above are as to llcws 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

tea. 

C' 1 I ; --:,Icy 
;.1. gas 

Tc2d.

Con eney hedges 

2053 
Assets 

r.m 

The Group mitigates its foreign currency r isk exposure principally through external foreign currency forward contracts with 
First Rate Exchange Services Holdings Limited. Al the year end the gain on unmatured currency hedges was El m illion and taken 
to the incnrne statement as hedi e acco uni rug is not claimed The hedges mad ire in April 2013. 

Derivative values 
AL any point in little, the derivatives above are eilher'in the money which means the hedged rates are better than the current 
market rates or 'out of the money' which means that the hedged rates are worse than the current market rates. The resulting gains 
and losses as at the balance sheet date are recognised in the income statement. An associated financial asset or liability is created 
in the balance sheet (as detailed above,) The financial asset or l i abl lity reduces to zero as the derivative approaches maturity. 
The Group's hedging transactions are ,settled net, 

19. Pensions 
On 1 April 2012, almostall of the pension assets and labilitiesof the Royal Mail Pension Plan(RMPP)were transferred tc 
HM Government. On this date the RMPP was also secliaaalisedwilh Royal Iviail Group Limited anc,i Peal Chloe Limited responsible 
for their own sections. All Post Office Limited employees were transferred to be directly employed by Post Office Limited on the 
same date. 

loyalMail Group Limited is the principal employer in the Royal. Mail Senior Executive Pension. Plan (RMSEPP) and Post Office 
Limited became 2r participating employer with effect from] April 2012. Post Office Limited conrmnues to account far approximately 
7% of the RMSEP_' scheme as it has done previously. 

Prior to 1 April 2012. Royal Mail Group Limited had the legal relationship with the Trustees a f both (IMPP and RMSEPP and, as 
such, theTrusteesheld Royal Mail Group Limited liable for the actuarial deficit in the scheme. All employeeswere employedby 
Royal Mail Group Limited and seconded to Post Office Limited under an agreement between Post Office Lim ited and Royal Mail. 
Group Limited. Post Office Limited met the full costs of employmentand was responsible for the funding of the pension deficit 
attributable to these employees. Consequently, Post Office Limited recognised a balance sheet deficit on full adoption of IAS 19 by 
Royal Mail Holdings plc, based on employee numbers over 12 years which represented approximately 7% of the total balance sheet 
deficit at that time. The net pensions i.nterest,deficit recovery payments and actuarial gains or losses were also allocated on this 
basis. The current service cost, regular future service contributions and curtailments were computed separately for Royal Mail. 
Grcup Limited and Post Office Limited based an common factors/rates. 

The disclosuresin this note relating to the year ended 31 March 2013 reflect the Post Office Iirrilted sectionalisedRMPP scheme 
which is independently operatedby the Group and the approximate 7% share of the RMSEPP scheme. The comparative figures 
for the year ended 25 March 2012 and l he opening position at 28 March 2011 represent approximately'% of the previous combined 
RM PP and RMSEPP plans, 

The disclosuresin this note show how the value of the assets and liabi ities have been calcr.alated at the balance sheet date. 

The Group participates in pension schemes asdeteiledbelow. 

Nan.

W  I 1'i I . 'H... . 0.. . j ...t.: f -

Dri i Jl c 1l ...., , 

--------------------------------------------------------------
Elr;=lhl litt 

UK ) It 
-- ------- --------- ------------------------------- - --

T.11 I f Pit 
--------------------------------------------------------------

I r f _ l7('` H . I ' i 71:1 

The ow tie inc cion' staternentfcr tire defined. rontrihution schemesand the Group contributions to these schemes Was 
£1 nul l ice: . i . --£;1 mllh 'luring the year. A new defined contribution plan (RMDC P) was Iaunchedin April 2009. New recruits 
Dining frcal )I PT inch 20' ;are able to begin haying ccniriblaiions to the new plan after they have worked for die Group fora year. 
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Defined benefit 
Both RMPP and RMSEPP are funded by the payment of contributions to separate trustee administered funds, ̀ l"he Latest full 
actuarial fundi ng valuation of both schemes w.as carried out as at 31 March 200911 singthe projected unit rr.etf-:iod. For RMPP, this 
valuation was concluded at £103 billion deficit. For RMSEPP, the valuation was concluded at £100 million deficit. RMPP includes 
Sect ions A. Band C each with different terms and conditions: 

• Section A is for members (or heneficiaries of members) who joi ned he fore I December 1971: 
• Section B is fcr members (or beneficiaries of members) who joined after 1 'December 1971 and before I April 1987 or to members 

of iieciion A who chose to receive Section B benefits; 
• Section Cs for members (or beneficiaries of members) who joined after i April 1987 and before 1 April 2008. 

A series of changes to RMPP and RMSFPP began to take effect on 1 April 2008. 

The changes encompass: 

• the plans closed to new members froze 31 March 2008, 
• all pensions and benefits earned b efore 1 April 2008 are still linked to final salary at the time of retire:rnerrt; 
• frcrn I April 2008, dr fined benefits building up for employee members of the plan are earned on a career salary basis; 
• employees can cont inue to take their pension on reaching 60 but the normal retirement age increased to 65 for benefit seamed 

from 1 April 2010; 
• from 1 April 2010 it is possible to draw pension earned before the change to norm2[retirement age at 135, and continue working while still 

contributing to the Pension Plan until the maximum level of benefits has been ri ac'ried; and 
• RMSEPP was closed to future accrual on 31 December 2012. 

Payment of £23 mi llion (2012-E23 million) was made by the Group during the year in respect of regular future service 
con(ribrdions,riearly all relalirig L•o R ftIPP. The regular future service conlribuliorrsfor RMPP, expressed as a percerilage of 
pensionable pay, has remained at 17.1% (201217,1%), effective from April 2010. This rate is not expected to change materially during 
2013-14. or RMSEPP, these ccntributions have remained at 35.9% (2012 35.9%) until its closure. 

The Grcup pays 7% of the total deficit payment required to fund. the deficit in RMSEPP and a paymerrtof £2 mif:ion (2012 less than 
El. million) was made by the Group during the year. Follow " ` i'tid clearance granted on 21 March 2012 and the si.rbsequent 
transter of the historical pension deficit to HM Governor: ri o P r .I 012, no RMPP deficit payrnerit was made during 201112 or 
2012-13. or RMSEPP, deficit recovery payments will be £1 mi 11 r annum, from 1 April 2010 tc 31 January 2024. 

A current liability of £nil (2012-£2ril) tray been recognisccl L y., rierits to tyre pension schen-resrelating to redundancy. During the 
year, payments of 122 million (2012-£.3 million) relating to n. irl.anc:y were made. 

The following disc .osi ires relate to the gains/losses and srrplus/deficitin the scheme recognised for RMPP and RMSF PP defined 
lens fit plans in the financial statemr nts. of the Group:

? Major long-term assumptions 
The size of the RMPP pension surplus, which is large in the context of I pre Group and its finances, is materially sensitive to the 
assumptions atop Led. Small c han ges in these a.tssuamptions could hrawr - a significant u, it:ac.t on the surplus and overall inr„arne 
spate: meat c barge. The major liar t term assi.:rmptions were: 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- -----------

At31 Mrarch At 25 Nlarca 512€ March 
2013 2012 2011 

%Pa %t>a %pa 

4. 3 ' G..`3 -i 5 
i  1' ¶0 -, 2.3 2.:3 2.8 

------------------------------- -----------
3.2 3.::3 3.5 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- --------------------
F,  PP 3.3 i 3.:3 35 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -----------
1 3.2 .3 3.5 

17;1. 

Sc' on A or P,% 'P 3.3 2.:3 .i.5 
------------- -------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- -----------
Rate of increa r ear ac fi'rred pensions 2.3 23 2.8 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------2.3 ----------- ----------- 
Discount  rate 4.8 5. F;.5 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- -----------
Inflation assumption (1,,P0 3.3 3.5 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- -----------
Inflation assumption (CPI) 2.3 2 :3 2.8 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- -----------
Expected average rate of is'ti.,r n on assets n/a 5.9 65 

In June 2010, the government announced that it was intending to change the inflation measure used to determine statutory 
minimum indexation in deferment and in payment from RPI to CPI from. April 201:. Where relevant, the inflation assumption 
has changed from BPI to CPI. 
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19 Pensions continued 

The above assumptions relate tc both defined benefit plans with the exception of the expected average rate of return on assets 
witch was computed for the combined assets of the plans. The expected average rate of return on assets was a weighted average 
of the long-term expected rate of return of each principal asset class (see Section b).The expected average rate of return was 
computed at each balance sheet date based on the market values and long-term rate of return of each principal asset class as at 
that date. The change in [AS 19 that will be implemented with effect from I April 2013 means that the expected average rate of 
return on assets is no longer required. 

The fo'l'lowing table shows the potential impact on the R-VIPP assets and pension surplus of changes in keys assumptions: 

2013 
£m 

C1 .. (4) 

Cl1 ,, a i ),., 4. 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
C l . H a " ... .. H)LUJ

CIa. ,c, -;i I'. iii ..sof t 'i' rJa

An I ; (4 

Comparative information in relation to the potential impact of changes in key assumptions has not been included as this would 
represent Post Office Lirnited's share of the combined RMPP scheme and the above 31 March 2013 information is in relation to the 
sectionalised RMPP scheme and thereforercaanparisan would notbe meaningful, 

Mortality 
The mortality assumptions in < i I PH uectionalised scheme are based on the latest self administered pension scheme (SAPS) 
mortality tableswithappropi ac ~ :c;rs(106% for male pensianersarld11)1% for femalepensioners).Parfuture 
improvements the as Li r n cons allu n H lm cohort projections wit ha 3.25% floor, These are detailed hcP' 7vv: 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Avx~ ,O, 2013 

-----------

Vu: : • ~ @I 1 a'-er 26years ors 2 ,
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Fc . I r i Hr nber 

----------- 
29 years +rs 

-----------
2` 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Frc nun, r i I I I H c Hat. ----------- 

29 years : r5 
-----------

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Vc : currei ,u yea oLJ . ail : LilA number 

---------- 
32 years s2 pars 

---------
35 ,fairs 

b) Plans' assets and expecaed rates of return 
The assets in the plans and the expected rates of return for the Group were: 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -----------

Long-term 
expected 

Market rate of 
value return 
2013 2013 

SectionalisedltMPP tim %pa 

Rgti tic=s 29 n/a 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Bonds 

----------- 
205 

-----------
n/a 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Property 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

--------- ----------- ----------- 
n/a 

Otter assets 9 n/a 

Fair value of R 1v1PP a ,:;et. 243 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Present, value of RMPP liabilities (144) 

Sur plus in,planbeforelFRIC14 adju °ran 'u: 99 

Less IF'RIC 14 adjustrnerit (3) 

Surplus in plan after IFRIC 14 adjustment 96 
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--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -----------
Long-term 
expected 

Market rate of 
value return 
2013 2013 

Em %pa 

146 n/a 
-I -- ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ - --------------------

!- 193 
-----------

n/a 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- 

19 
-----------

n/a 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- 

3 
-----------

n/a 

P 361 

(347) 

14 

are (at appra, °. r2, 4 ,: 1 I 1 

L on tt.. :a cestleet,represerlting the surplusinplat...  mil (Ion and 
El ml )n for P I _ r .l~;PP respe( %ely,net of tax of r✓ 3 m at a rare of 35% on thee ement of the surplus which is 

Long term Longlrerm 
expec:Ie;l expee:Ied 

Market Market rate of rate of 
value value return return 
012 2011 2012 2011 

-I £m %pa %pa 

3,385 4 2,,13 7'7 82 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------- zc ----------- 

25,610 
----------- 

21 399 
----------- 

=7 
-----------

62 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- 

1,417 
----------- 

1,59) 
----------- -----------

6.5 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- 

333 
---------------------- 

41e IA 
-----------

42 

~,ctty F: - rmhr -1 plans ;30,745 27,685 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

L r the r uhitw' ii 
----------- 

(33,667) 
-----------

)32,1 86, 

(2922) 01,911 

'C11 05) 1 .11 FY~ 

re is no element of the aho:eve pit .elrl value ofliahilikes that arisesfrom plans (hat are wholly uult LIldn'd. 

c Jove lent in plans' assets and liabilities 
nges fair value of the plans' assets are analyser as toll ws. 

aectiona'. sed 
RMPP 2613 

atr fim 

' ' ofperiocl 8 
----------------------------------------------------------- 

(1,953) 

25 

I 1 8 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

~E~(,aeh rltr 11 

values) 46 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

(2) 

t 7t and of pwrr rff.) 243 
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19. Pensions continued 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Share of 

RMSEPP 2013 
Assets Em 

Cc cc .. ~. 

Mv i Hi t H ii ,

----------------------------7---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
FI 1- , c1 rctnrri) 1 
-- ------- ------------- ------- ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------
A.t .. . I cc I,aes; 1 

i3crc 1u . t is - 

Shai rs: ~  I15   a'. . : ci pe. Asa- 25 

2012 201t 
ASH )„iris £111 frlai 

Shareot. _. i cc.  oo ot . 3c t: - d 
------------------ ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

23 1,797 
----------- 

C'c i . . c3 26 46 
--------------=------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
Mo. , ,. . .. HO cJ (3) 

-----------
2 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
F,I 1,  ,.. ,, ,3c1(1 10 

-----------
11 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
F'LI-. . , c ), orrce"Irrc 124 

-----------
120 

Actooriclu ,(?.d I i o oc[eO5esiri tll:irketvalues) 1:31 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
CBenefits paid to rneni . t: (82) 

-----------
-5) 

Share of assets in Coors ar'. ta;.a a er 1. u, pe ioc:. 2,129

Changes in the presentvaiue of the defined henefitpenson obligations are analysed as follows 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------. s 
FIMpp 204 3 

Li. .. . Em 

I i i I (2,313) 

Pr 1 i 'u I 2,239 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
C'l i 1 (24) 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
C11 : (2) 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Fit (9) 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Rjr 1, (8) 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
li~ 1 i. I. - .i ._ . , . 1_ ,: i (29) 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Li 1 I : >.., 

PP
Liar .  10 .11 1 ..v€ a.14 c

toe.....::
Iw i➢. ai i "I, 011 rst 

t 

A2. 

+.144) 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Share of 

£t: SEPP 2013 
Liabilities Em 

Share of liabilities in RMSEPP plans at i regil: nirig of period (22) 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Current service cost - 

Curtaliment costs' - 

Finance cost (1) 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Er~ I - -

i a i 1 1) 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Share of liabilities in RMSEPI, at end of period (24) 
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--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -----------
2012 2011 

Liabilitiescominrec plans Em E... 

Share of liahillhrs in -omhined mans atb'3 rtns 7  of oericd (2,239) (2,361
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Currentservicecost 

-----------
(23) (25) 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Curtailment costs * 

----------- -----------
- (3) 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
?inance cost 

----------- -----------
(122) (132) 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Employee cxl!r ' r,. 

-----------
(10) (11) 

Actu..ariol'i- i, ,~ , 1 1, ,.F ,-, . )* - 1 (23) 20/ 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Bendf ' 

-----------
82 86 

Shareoi l.sc+i ,ri J , )! orvs (2,335) (2,239) 

* The curtailme,i, „ . ,,; r ;  r_ , i , mrI i .r 1 i. , n.eo i „ed cii a consistF nt ,a , s cr 2 I hr I 'S r ,it o i ants. Estimates ofboth are 
Included: for example, in any redundancy previsions raised. The curtailment costs: above represent :he costs associated with those people paid 
compensation in respect of redundancy durin g the accounting period. Such pay merits may occur in an accounting period su hsequent to the recognition 
of costs in the income statement. 

d) History of experience gains and losses 
The cumulative amount of actuarial gains and lossesrecognisedsincetransitiontoIFRSasadoptedbytheEuropeanUnion on 
28 March 20111 s a gain of £122 mlElic it as recognise d it i the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ---------------------- 

Sectionalised Share of 
-----------

RMPP RMSEPP 7% share of combined plans 

2013 2013 2012 201  2010 201)9 
Lin !Fin Sm Ena Sin Em 

243 25 2,]58 1,944 41. 1 1 .407 - ------------------------------------------------ ----------- ----------- ----------- 
(144) (24) (2,374) 

-------- -- ----------- 
(2,260) (1,882) 

99 1 (206) (316) (475) 

46 1 131 3:3 71 . ' (384) 
-----------------------------------------------------___------------------------------------- 

. . 'adjusts c.ui so 
---------------------- 

(20) - - 
-----------

(1) 17 (1) 

------------------------------------------------------------------------ ----------- 
2013 

----------- 
2(13 

----------- 
2012 

----------- 
2011 

-----------
2010 2009 

% % % % % % 

d , 5 m„r r,  a a % ofscheme asset, 18.9 5.5 6.1 17 17.4 (27.3) 
------------------------------------------------------------•----------- 

75c5 ii miiu.[.imSl2iiiL.i.PS1,ls,15 
---------------------- ---------------------- -----------

'0 of schE' ie a,1 1 's (13.9) 1.4 0..0 0.0 (2.0) 01 
----------_...--... -----------------------------------------•----------- 

e71,r e i ns m s ~' sf sic sne liabilities 
----------- 

- 
----------- 

0 
----------- 

8.8 
----------- 

14,1 
-----------

23.E 25.3 
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

19. Pensions continued 

e) Recognised charges 
An analysis of the separate components cf the amounts recognised in the p: rformance statements of the Group is as follows 

21)1.3 
5d?ctBoetr'th ed 

PMPP 
Errs 

Ar, I :'Ti, 'r  

24 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Ai , I

i 2 

TC. 26 

In 9 

E;r (11) 

VVE i, , . (2) 

Dtc: . 24 

P 
-- 
F

------------- ------ ------- ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
2,239 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Fr ~., , . .

286 

To i~ , r ,. ,,. . ,. a, ; r 286 

A1. a .'si zul . 5 YO .sd i..k ;it vI. Itil .:co.

A 1 A . . ,. . 

• ri assets (11) 

l ; s ecoverable through plan refunds (3) 

is (all experience adjustments) 43 

`son liabilities (20) 

r:iie,
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------•--------------

r lalassun i _ (9) 

A:ri rl )ilities (29) 

Tots u .ta•:•• 1aw .a) s i ;:::.ter ee ?'n -ie ta'.nt1e -tit r; (o , a; r' ei roll , it oe;, e 14 
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---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
2013 share 
of RMSEPP 

fm 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
w.

------------------------------------------------------`-___---------------------_--__--_--_--_--------------------.______--------
~~. I 'Ft t r 11 F1( cv' note l6)

"n e al drc' }„ U lj a e 4i a I +tib: is 1 

~~ restonpt 16 

- r>ctedreturnn nassets (18) 

Net pensions inter a •f (2> 

Share of net pensions interest (at approximately 7 °sF 
1_—______ 

- 

Net charge to the income statement before deduction fir air -

Analysis of amounts recognised in the statement of corn  ae sic rrr in ha. Ao.. a% w1a. it ;li1. Fg, ;sa
financial
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Actcalr- ly <. 38 
------------------ --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

<~~ expeet'. (18) 

iarialgal: c c adjustrneits) 20 

rience adju 5 

sal chang(,,, irie (23)

(1 8) 

i wt€ :iri I , dI' re ) -,is ~1 l tl': s A( -ie Y II ' in ;'ha ti✓ al ;fa IH 0k' r& . i' ^1' lit 
a,. 2 

1 ,@ ,. .y s .. ..l c atg aYi;k h.ai !left S'l N
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

19. Pensions continued 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -----------
2012 2011 

(orn!)-n'--I piIns SCm £:ra 

Analysis of amounts recognised in the income statement. 

Analysis of amounts charged to operating profit before excepti unai items: 
- ----------------------__------------__-__--__----------------------------------------------------------------------- -----------
(;utt lt '1-'r 'ai; .r, .rn,- 23 5 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Ana of Tr ant LS 11221 ;Ye( to ,p, at , ...r r"ptional it,l ras: 

-----------

- --- --- ------------- 
L s .H- i ~' -ijl 1r 

------------------- ---- ------------------------------------------- 
'Villn.ip.0 I . rt F;W -uu1 t6) 

-----------
- 2 

Tots. "t rr er ap, n .o0 or"..fjt 23 27 

Ara=n 21 ....f 121 ...;at . '".. ci H tr. ..1. .. ' oo
-------------------7 ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ i 1 

-----------
1749 1,881 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
1 . 'CJ DL" 

-----------
(1 ,775) (1,7)4) 

r"  °si .• p . ..,: (26) 167 

51 :.0 iF (. l:l ; : 2 (2) 1.2 

Net1i1 17" ' ,.1. 11  , 1: 1:,H.110017 1'l'l 21117
21 9 

Ar i >,sis of amour . r  t,. F 111:11:1,.11.
Gros ",, financial ,41: 1.e? am 'S 

Act, I r- _ -  ,, .. -,1 , •i j 3,644 2,1 84 

GesS n' 
-----------

(1,775) (1,714) 

470

3 . (,onib1r . i (5) (8) 
_---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

L3 ' si=ibilit 'or 16 )(-riUuedplans 
-----------

(320) 2,962 

3" 5) 2,954 

T, ua al gai ,-  : 'l llilOd in the st,atentent of comprehensive income in the Royal Mail 9101. .
0 -o :F financial sti 122 eao s 1,544 3.4 4 

Shy, 11* ctuati.t 171112. .'.:.: re 02 ISa 1. i, th s¢.:."ei en of '.102:131'.=..1w:.",5)71 - is ;amn; e ('.=,'t a nproximately 7%) 1.08 270 

20 C i od up sl- - 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- 

2013 
-----------

2012 20. , 
s s 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
O res of £) Ear. 

----------- 
51,000 

-----------
51,000 51,000 

Tot." 51,000 51 ,1100 51,000 

AII.0111c - 

Car 50,003 50,003 50,003 

Tot. ., 50,003 50,003 50,003 
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21. Commitments 
Capital commitments contracted for but not provided in the financialstaternerltsamount to £48 million (2012-C15 million) 

'( 11 , (" ml , Vs T ,mi"'E 4- ~~'•,I I ~~•n~i s nr:m i, I *a<s , r 1 Fir , "I f _,1< -)r rig leases 

IT equipment 

2013 2013 201.1 201 
Em k,'r: _. Em En Em 

VV t 1 sir' 16 16 I f.7 15 ,' i 6 1.6 . -------------------------------------------------------------- 
~. 42 

------ 
+4 

--------------------------------------
4. - - 

------------------------------------------------------------•----------- 
3e n tO yc.,,grs 

---------------------- 
38 43 

---------------------- 
4! - 

-----------
- -

Total 96 103 1.0 15'^ 16 16 

1 1 Ica l Asa „) ithies 
7(3+  2 012 201 

Present. Present 
vela' of value of 

minimum minimum 
if9 9111&:.x1 re ;ast. ,1tnunitn lease Minimum lease 

^ -rents pay =:nts payments payments I;)ayments payments 
Em Em Em Lm Em 

V ~{ 3 4 4 
--__------_--------------------------------------------- ----------- ---------------------- 

vF  4 8 
----------- 

6 
----------- 

12 
-----------

9 
---....------ ------------------------------------------------------ ---------------------- ----------- ----------- -----------

"T`r;al • ;•s U. 7 12 10 16 1.3 
------------------------------------------------------------------------ ~~ r,a~pYS

---------------------- ---------------------- 
(2) - 

-----------
Ni) — 

Tres ntescan o n farm lea epc y°ur ,ts 
------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

2 7 10 
----------- ----------- ----------- 

11 
----------- 

13 
-----------

Of which. 
------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

Nnt, 
----------- ----------- ---------------------- -----------

4 
------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
~r -I- current 

----------- ----------- ----------- 
:i y ----------- -----------

9 9 

The aggregate finance charges aaocated, for the period in respect of Iinance leases was £7:3x,6:59 (2012-i 11,011,232). The fa:i i vrlue of 
finance lease liabilities is not materially different from the carrying value, 

The Group has finance lease contracts for equipment. The leases have no terms for renewl, purchase options or escalation clauses 
and there arena restrictions concerning dividends, borrowings or additional l(saases. The leases have an avera3e term of six years.

closures 
., Prltuf e 

-• ~.ITy ' [K -,.r, ,Il ~,., rir'J F`r t'j ` /' , rC, 'lt"J 

----------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Principal artivsties

l+i t' Exchange Services Holdings I irrliled Jlrlt ft. rl tni i hu man cle Change 

r=, rates 
), !Ewing Company p y was an associateof Post OfficeLimited during the year. The Group's interest was cisposedof in 

er 2012. 
--------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------- ---------------------------------------- ---

-c, Country of incorporation % Holding di it 'a tc , vux :!sk

angeLimfted United Kingdom 50

/r,i s'_arehdldingsrreegciiLy shares 
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

23. Related party disclosures continued 

Related party transactions 
During the year the Group entered into transactions with the following related parties. Tt nsacticns were in the ordinary 
course of business The transactions entered into and the balances outsta sdi ng at the fin r -ii vnsar end were as follows: 
----------------------------------- -------- -------- -------- -------- -------- -------- -------- -------- -------- -------- -------I 

Amounts owed to 
Sales r erg; ;.> r'i .Sr -<a - „ :es ➢ .[r }a, +:£ , nai£ related party inducting 
to outstanding loans 

2013 21`"  255 ccc 2013 201.2 2011 
Em Sc - . Em 1, - in Em n [in £m £:m £m 

RoyalMah Group Limited 371 30- 9 37 33 5 - - 4 8 11 
----------------------------------- 
Camelot Group plc 

-------- __------ -------- -------- 
10 

-------- -------- -------- -------- ------- - ------ --------

----------------------------------- 
Rome- Limited 

-------- -------- 
- 

-------- -------- 
- 8 

-------- -------- -------- -------- 
8 8 - 

-------- -------- 
- 2 

--------
1 1 

-----------------------------------'-------- 
Midasgrange Limited 

-------- 
35 41 

-------- -------- 
30 1 

-------- -------- -------- -------- 
1 3 - 14 

--------'-------- 
10 - 

--------
1 

----------------------------------- 
First Rate Exchange 

-------- -------- -------- -------- -------- ------------------ ---------------- --------

Services Poldings Limited 27 31 30 125 128 132 .>. 3 9 11 ' 8 1 

The sales to, and purchasesfrom, related parties are made at normal market prices. Balances outstandingat file year end are 
unsecured, interestfree and settlementis made by cash. Royal Mall Group Limited is a subsidiarycompany of the Group's parent 
company, Royal Mail Holdings plc. Camelot Group plc was an associate within the Royal Mail Holdings Group but was disposed. 
of in 2010;1.1. Romer Limited is a subsidiary of Royal Mali Group Limited.Midasgrange Limited was an associate of the Group until 
September 2012 and First Rate Exchange Services Holdings Limited is a joint venture of the Group. 

The Group trades with numerous government bodies on an arm's length basis. Transactions with these entities are not disclosed 
owing to the significantvoll.a.me of trarisactionsthat are conducted, 

Separately: 

• the Group has certain loan facilities with government (note 15); 
• almost all of the pension assets arid . iabilitiesof the Royal Mail Pension Plan were transferred to government (note 19); 
• the Group has received a government grant of £200 million, £98 million of which was recognised. through the : ncome statement 

(note 5) and £102 million of which is deferred income within trade and other payab'es (note 14); and 
• the Group has receiver] the Neltwork Subsidy r' , ' "7.,n t from government (note 1). 

Key management comprises Executive and H. I . ,(,uttve Directorsof the Post Office Limited 3oardand the members of the 
Executive Committee at 131 March 2013H -e rernurrerationof the key management personnel of the Post 0111cc Group 
i s Vl' ni l'  :- n. -n5 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -----------
201.3 
£000 

2012 
£000 

Shortrrc , ni o,, ccrr 1115 3,568 3,077 
-----------------__ --- ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Po ,( ,n. :,71c ;gn tt n -it- 

----------- -----------
119 232 

Other long let . ci 'c -n is 651 - 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Terminationbcrlcfits 

----------- -----------
- -

Total 4,338 3,309 

24. Post balance sheet events 
In accordance with the funding agreement with government announced on 27 October 2010..  for which State Air: approval was 
received on 28 March 2012, Post Office Limited received £413 nc illion of funding on 2 April 2013. 

On 21 June 2013, Post Office Limited launched a consultation with rnentbers of the Royal. Mail Pension Plan, on a proposal to 
change the terms of the plan, which will conclude on 25 August 2013. Post Office'l,imited will consider the feedhackhefore making 
its final decision and communicating it to colleagues. 

25. Immediate and ultimate parent company 
At 31 March 2013, the Directors regarded Roy is Mail Holdings plc as the immediate and ultimate parent co;npany. The largest 
group to consolidate the results of the Company is Royal Mail Ilolciirigs plc, a company registered iri the United l<,ingdom. 
Royal Mai. Holdings plc tin rincialstatemer its ianheobtgtinsdIron i-he ton panywebsitrs,www.royalniailgrotap.mm. 
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Independent auditor's report to the members of Post Office Limited ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

We have audited the parent company financial statements of 
Post Office Limited fcr the 53-week period coiled 31 March 2013 
which cornpri se the Company balance sheet, the Company 
statement of total recognised gains and losses, the, Company 
reconciliation of movements in Shareholder's funds and the. 
related notes 1 to 18. The financial reporting frame=wcrrk that has 
been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United 
Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom. Generally 
Accepted Accounlirrg Practice). 

This report is made solely tc the Company's members, as a 
body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies 
Act 2006. Our audit work has been under taken so that we might 
state to the Company's members those matters we are required 
to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose, 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or 
assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and 
the Company's members as a body, for our audit war k, for this 
report, or for the opinions we have formed. 

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors 
As explained more fully in the Directors' Responsibilities 
Statement set out on page 58, the Directors are responsibe for 
the preparation of the parent company financial statements 
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our 
responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the parent 
company financial statements in accordance with applicable 
law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). 
Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing 
Practices Board's Ethical. Standards for Auditors. 

Scope of the audit of the financial statements 
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts arid 
disclosures in the financial statementssufficient to give 

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the 
Companies Act 2006 
In our opinion the information given in the Directors' Report 
for the financial period for which the financial statements 
are prepared is consistent with the parent company 
financial statements, 

Matleraa on which we are required to report 

We  i_ig to report in respectof the following matters 
where me Companies Act 2006 requires Li s to report to you 
if in our opinion 

• adequate accounting records have not been kept by the 
parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not 
been received from branches not visited by us; or 

• the parent company financial statementsare not ir, 
agreement w Rh the accounting records and returns; or 

• certain disclosures of Directors' remuneration specified 
by law are not made; or 

• we have not received all the information and explanations 
we require for our audit. 

Other matter 
We have reported separately on the consolidatedfinancial 
statements of Post D' fice Limited for the 53-week period ended 
31 March 2013. 

reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free Angus Grant (Senior statutoryauditor) 
from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error for and on behalf of Ernst & Young :,LP, Statutory Auditor 

This includes an assessmentof: whether the accounting London 

policies are appropriate to the parent company's circumstances 16 July 2013.

and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; 
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
the Directors; and the overaa presentation of the financial 
statements. in addition, we read all the financial and non- Notes: 

financial information in the annua: report to identify mater. al 1. The maintenance and integrity of :he Post Office Limited'swebslteis the 

inecrosistencfeswith the audited financial statements. If we 
responsibilityol the Directors: the work carried out by the auditors does 
not involve consideration cf these matters and, accordingly, the audi:ors 

become aware of any apparent material misstatements or accept no responsibilitytcr any changes that may have occurred to the 
inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report, financial statements since they were initially presented on the website 

Opinion on financial statements 
In our opinion the parent company financ al statement 

• give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs 
air at 31 March 2013; 
have been properly prepared in accordance with United 
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and 

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of 
the Companies Act 2006. 

2. Legislation In the United Kingdom governing the preparation and 
dissemination of financial statements may differ from ie gis1rr.tiori in 
ether jurisdictions. 
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Balance sheet of the Company -----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
at .31 March 2013 and 25 March 2012 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- ----------- -----------
2013 2011.2 

Notes Em f.;rn 

Intangibleassels 2 - - 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------,,,,:--------- 
Tangible assets 3 ii3 

-----------
11 11 

investment i4 4 
------------------_------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Investrnr~ ' , i - ;e `tiresandassociates 5 1 5 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

' is . e pli.as 
----------- 

13 
-----------

100 - 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

s o ocivable n one yerir 6 
----------- 

10 

• 122 13 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
St~ lc[S 

----------- -----------
8 6 

"ors re c 1 i - 6 352 226 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

i 7 
-----------

92 62 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- ----------- 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
~'

----------- -----------
879 7513 

1,332 1 ,032 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Current l b9itiem. 

-----------

g chin Wit innr r v"e' 9 (877) (587) 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

10 
----------- 

(291) (377) 

. , .. 164 88 

286 104 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

~,
----------- 

1 
-----------

(28) (8) 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

-- 
--------- ----------- 

(26) (14) 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

1, .a -ion 
----------- 

l :? 
-----------

- (206) 

232 (1i •1) 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
E~~

----------- 
14 

----------- 

-----------
- 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
F  i rn 15 

-----------
465 465 

oss account 15 (233) (589) 

Sl rr .older'ssurplus/(deficit) 232 (1 54) 

I f financial statements on pages 93 to 110 were approved by the Boarc. of Directors on 1E7 July 2013 and signed on its behalf by 

t ViuiJs CMDay 
'i of Executive ChiefFi:iancialOfficei 
-------------------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------------------
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Statement of total recognised gains and losses -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- --
for the 53 weeks ended 31 March 2013 and the 52 weeks ended 25 March 2012 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -----------
2013 5(5 2 

Notes

Profit for the financial year i 3 76 37 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- -----------
Actuarial gains on defined bens?it pE n ;em schemes 1 17 1 0)3 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- -----------
Taxation on items taken directly to equity (23) --

Total recognised gains for the financial year 70 3 

There is no staterrientof lilatarnatl ens profit.; and losses as the deans al stature } u on in i 1 Jc th,: historic cost 

accounting convention. 
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Opening Shareholder'sdeficit 15 (124) (269) 

MIal re :ogniso4 ain for _de ñri ico Ivi i 70 145 

ars erof p cnrsio ndrrlirirto wtrco nr en 13 286 -

Closing Shareholder's sturplusl(de. fici 1,) 232 (124) 
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Notes to the Company financial statements 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

1. Accounting policies 

The following accounting polices apply throughout Post Office 
I,inute i (the Company): 

Financial year 

The financial year ends on the last Sunday in March and 
accordingly, these financial statements are made up to 
the 53 weeks ended 31 March 2013 (2012 52 weeks ended 
25 March 2012). 

Basis of preparation 

The financial statements on pages 93 to 110 have been prepared 
in accordance with applicable UK Accounting Stancardsand 
law, including the regiuirementsof the CompaniesAct 2006. 
Unless otherwisestated in the accounting policies below, fh:e 
financial statements have been prepared under the historic 
cost accounting convention. 

As permitted by Section 408 of the CornpaniesAct 2006, Post 
Office Limited has not presented its own profit and loss account. 
The result dealt with in the accounts of the Company amounted 
to £76 million profit (2012-£37 million profit). 

No cash flow statementhas been presented art ti-e Company 
is part of the Post Office Limited Group which has presented 
a consolidated cash flow statement within its Group 
financial statements. 

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption conferred 
by FRS 29 not to disclose financial instrument informationas 
the Company is part of the Post Office Limited. Group which has 
presented such disclosures in its Group financial statements. 

In making an assessmentof the Company's ability to continue 
as a going concern, the Directors have considered the going 
concern assessments made in relation to the Group (see note 1 
on page 65) and are of the view that it is appropriate that 
these financial statements have been prepared on a going 
concern basis. 

Changes in accotinLing policy 
The accounting policies are consistent with those of the 
previous year. 

Intangible fixed assets 

Intangible assets acquired separately or generated internally 
are initially recognised at cost and are reviewed for impairment. 
An impairment loss is recognisedin the profit and loss account 
for the amount by which the carrying value of the asset 
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of an 
asset's net realisable value and its value in use. 

Aare rt'satlonof intangible assets with finite lives is charged 
at l `) the income statement on a straight-line basis 
as , 

SI l to 6 years 

Where i;,tangible fixed assets are impaired to their recoverable 
amount on acquisition the above range of asset lives is 
not applied. 

Tangible fixed assets 

Tangible fixed assets are recognisedat cost, including 
attributable costs in bringing the asset into wcrkng condition 
for its intended use. 

Depreciation of to ngible fixed assets is provided on a straight-line 
basis by reference to cost and to the remaining useful economic 
lives of assets and their estimated residual values. The lives 
assigned to major categories of tangible fixed assets are; 
---------------------------- -----------------------------------

Ra Inge of asset lives 

Las; 
a. - 

, 

Not drg c i uss. 

y ; 'rings t j v. jrr 
---------------------------------------------------------------

I ldings tfl.EI:SITJOLL.. UI hIlt:.,?E15I01„n -.._ 

lease, 501. rs or the e stir Sri 

renrairnntrnsef 1l it= 

2-12yr us 

l fl Ji_. 
ii .,r 2 -1 5 y .rs 

,iblelixeri ire impaired to their rec:overab. 
rirnouo s u n acquisiticn the above ranges of asset lives arc not 
applied. This is currently the case for plant and machinery, 
motor vehicles and trailers and fixtures and equipment. 

Impairment reviews 

Unless otherwise disclosed in these accounting policies, fixed 
assets are reviewed for impairment if events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired, 
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether such 
indications exist. Where appropriate, an impairment loss is 
recognised in the prof it and loss account for the amount by 
which the carrying value of the asset (or cash generating unit) 
exc: eecisits recoverable amount, which is the higher of an 
asset's net realisable value and its valise u t use. 

Leases 

Finance leases, where substantiallyall the risks and rewards 
incidental to ownership of the teased item have passed to the 
Company are capitalised at the inception of the lease with a 
corresponding liability recognised for the fair value of the 
leased item Cr, if lower, at the present value of the minimum 
lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the 
finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to 
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance, 
of the liability. 

Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of die 
estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term. 

Leases where substantiallyall the risks and rewards of 
ownership of the asset are retained by the lessor, are classified 
as operating leases and rentals are charged to the profit and loss 
account over the lease term. The aggregate benefit of incentives 
are recognised as a reduction of rental expenses over the lease 
term on a straight-line basis. 

Investments in joint ventures and associates 

Inveslrrier::ts in joint ventures and associates within the 
Company's financial statement arre stated at cost less airy 
accumulated impairment losses. 

Investments in subsidiaries 

Investrner)ts 1rr subsidiaries within the Company's financial 
statementsare stated at cost less any accumulated impairment 
losses. The carrying value relates solely to the Company's 
investment in ?ost Office Management Services Limited, a 100% 
subsidiary of the Company and is less than £1 million. 
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Stocks 

Stocks, whichinclude printing and stationery,retail and lottery 
products, are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable 
value after adjusting for obsolete or slow-moving stock. 

Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is generally provided in full on timing differences 
at the balance sheet date, at rates expected to apply when 
the tax liability (or asset) crystallises based on substantively 
enacted tax rates and law, Timing differences arise from the 
:reclusion of items of inccme and expenditure in taxation 
computations;n periods different from these in which they 
are included in the financial statements. 

Deferred tax is riot recognised in the following instances 

• on gains on disposal of fixed assets where, on the basis of 
available evidence, it is more likely than not that the taxable 
gain will be rolled over into replacement assets and charged 
to tax only when there is a commitment to dispose of those 
replacement assets; 

• on unremitted earnings of subsidiaries and associates where 
there is no commitment to remit those earnings; and. 

• deferred tax assets are recognised only to the; extent that the 
Directors consider that it is more likely than riot that there will 
be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of 
the under lying timing differences can be deducted. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted. Deferred 
tax is charged or credited directly to reserves if it relates to 
items that are credited or charged directly to reserves. 
Otherwise it is recognised in the profit and loss account. 

Pensions and other post-retirement benefits 
?eople working for the Company were employed by Royal Mail 
Group Limited and seconded to the Company until 31 March 2012. 
On 1 April 2012 they were transferred to be directly employed 
by the Company. Membership of occupational pension scnerries 
is open to most permanent UK employees of the Company-
All members of defined benefit schemes are contracted out 
of the earnings-related part of the State pension scheme. 

The pension plans assets of the clef tied benefit schemes are 
rneasuredat fair value. Liabilities are measi..i.redt.on an actuarial 
basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at 
a rate equivalent tc the current rate of return on a high-quality 
corporate bond of equivalent currency and term. The resulting 
defined benefit asset or liability is presented separately on the 
face of the balance sheet, net of any associated deferred tax 
balance. Fullactuarial valuations are carried out at intervals riot 
normally exceedingthree years as determined by the Trustees 
and, with appropriate updates and accounting adjustments 
at each balance sheet dale. form I.lie basis of the surplus or 
deficit disclosed. 

For defined benefit sclrerries, the amounts charged to operating 
profit, as part of staff costs, are the current service costs arid 
any gains and lossesarising from settlements,curtailmetitsand 
past service costs. 

The net difference between the interest costs and the expected 
return on plan assets is recognised as net pensions interest 
in the profit and loss account. Actuarial gains and losses are 
recognised immediately in the statement of total recognised 
gains and losses (STRGL). Any deferred tax movement associated 
with the actuarial gains and losses is also recognises: in the STRGL. 

For r: eti pied contribution schemes, the Company s contributions 
are charged to operating profit, as part of staff costs, in the 
period to which the contributions relate. 

Foreign currencies 
The functional and presentationalc urrency of the Company 
is sterling (f). 

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate 
r uing at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and 
I iabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated 
at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. 
All differences are taken to the profit and loss account. 

Debtors 
Debtors are recognised arid carried at original invoice amount 
less an allowance for any non collectable amount:;. An estimate 
for doubtful debts is made when collection of the full amount 
is no longer probable, Bad debts are written off when identified, 

Financial assets - investments (current assets) 
Financial assets- investments in the balance sheet comprise 
short-term depe its and money market fiords. All financial 
assets investor iisarectassifiedasloansandreceivablesand 

moriisedcostusingtheeffectiveinterestrate 
roe t : .[, r d losses are recognised iii the profit and loss 
accou. . investments are dlerecognised or impaired, 
as well as through the amortisation process-. 

Financial liabilities - interest-bearing Moans 
and borrowings 
All loaris arid borrowings are classified as ft narici :il liabilities 
measured at amortised cost. 

Financial liabilities - obligations under 
finance leases 
All obligationsundier finance leases are classifiedas financial 
liabilities measured at am ortised cost. 

Borrowing costs 
Borrowing costs in relation to the working capital loari facility 
are recognised as an expense when incurred unless they are 
directly attributable to the construction or development of 
a qualifying asset, in which case they are capitalised using 
the weighted average cost of borrowing for the period of 
r;unistrucucrs/development. 

Fair value measurement of financial instruments 
The fair value of quoted investments is determined by 
reference to bid prices at t he close of business on the balance 
sheet date. Where there is no active market, fair value is 
determined using valuation techniques. These include using 
recent arm's length market transactions; reference- to the 
current market value of another instrument which is 
substantiallythe same; and discounted cash flow ana:ysi s 
and pricing models. 

For the purposes of disclosing the fair value of investments 
held at amortised cost in the balance sheet, in the absence of 
quoted market prices, fair values are calculate.:` by discos: nting 
the future cash flows of the financial instrumentusing gt.,oted 
equivalent interest rates as at close of business on the balance 
sheet date, 
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Notes to the Company financial statements continued 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

1. Accounting policies continued 

Derecognition of financial instruments 
A financial asset or liability is derecogaised when the contract that gives rise to it is settled, sold, cancelled or expires. 

Government grants 
Government grants of a revenue nature are recognised to match costs in relation to the performance of certain specified activities. 

Auditor's remuneration 
The [en iu nerationi plaid to audilors is disclose.d in tilt Group firnincial slaternenls (ncf.e 4J. 

Directors' emoluments 

Thee emoluments paid to Directors are disclosed in the Group financial staterrients (note 6). 

2.11.08 g u;le assets 
2013 0)111 

Cost rim F_iri 

A H ch2012 aritaan.vi vi1 183 166 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
l~dd .~ 7 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

----------- -----------
25 

----------- ----------- 
1 

------ 

At 31 M'vMc. a 2111 3 ao 1115 Ala .i. r: 208 i t s 

Alw, rc ", 4 u..cdi Ell iY '.' .'., 
---........._........................ .................... 

A ivi t 
--......--..------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

i< 6 
- 

C..1 
----------- -----------

183 166 
--- ------------------------ 
lriii~. , . . ; . 1 

--- --------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- -----------
25 1 

'7 

---.---- ----------------- 
At 31 Wfarc_h 201.3 

---------- 
dxnd . ilia -,n 

----.-------------------------------------------------------------------- 
: ta. s 

----------- -----------
208 1 73 

Net Look value
-__---------------------_.....__--_...._-__---.---------------------------------_----_--_--_---------------------------------- 
At 3. MVi :rch 2013 &ncj 36 as : j "0... 

-----------

Die Throve intangible asst <; i late to software 

3. Tangible f :c . . 
------------------------------------------------------------ ----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- -----------

Larrrc 

Ares 
Lon- jia=,rt M 'ra .cntl and 

,i°pld Vehi, s... ,. .,..,. o r:Lfitf Tw:il 

axa 1 ~z ni rca tic tin ,ri 

Cos, 
-------------------------------------------------'----------- 
At ;1, f"` ;'r. 3"' ..' 

----------- 
79 

----------- ----------- 
17 114 

----------- 
34 

----------- -----------
1 709 954 

------------------------------------------------- 
Re , I a 

----------- ----------- 
- 

----------- ----------- 
1 (1) 

----------- 
- 

----------- - ----------
- - - 

------------------------------------------------- ----------- ----------- 
9 

----------- ----------- 
- 1 

----------- 
9 

----------- -----------
- 22 41 

------------------------------------------------- 
I:):1 

----------- ----------- 
(1) 

----------- ----------- 
- - 

----------- 
(1) 

----------- -----------
- (12) (14) 

At 1/i. a . .11'.. ,. 87 18 114 42 1 719 981 

All . :11 r 7' 69 16 114 34 1 709 943 
------------------------------------------------- ----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- 

------------------------------------------------- 
In, 
------------------------------------------------- 

----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- 
9 1 - 

----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- 

----------- -----------
•- 22 

----------- -----------
41 

Dis oa, (1) (9.) - (12) (14) 

At31 iv 261.3 77 17 114 42 1 719 970 

Net'. x 
------------------------------------------------- 
Al a ii:i 

----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- 
10 1 - 

----------- -----------
11 

Del _ i e'' .1 ; ii ,n accounting policies (note 1). No depreciation is provided a . .ich
L':_ Won : riii la: co  of properties. 

D fa the .er the legal ow nerstiip of a number of properties were transferred from. Royal Mail Group Limited to Post Office 
Lim ed for o consideration. 
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4. Investment in si i 

The carrying value 00 .2 relatcissol, 1, to the Company's investment in Post Office KI in nt Services Limited, a 1Uc~ 
subsidiary cf the Company. 

5. Investments in joint ventures and associates 

2013 zulr 
LIT] i:; Tl 

Ina.est,ticrlt i.l io:nt ° lcn. urk;s a.id assucia,lers 1 5 

Joint ventures 
During 2012-13 and 201.1-12, the Company's only joint venture investment was a 50% interest (1.000 £i ord i 'ry A shares) in First Rate 
Exchange Services Holdings Limited with a carrying value of £0.6 million (2012-£0.6 million,, o}, 

provision of Bureau de change. First Rate Fxchange Serv_ces Hcldings'i,imited is a company rn , , re rl , 2. -i gr;cm. 

Associates 

During 2011-12, the CGonipiny's only issociate> investment was a 49.99% interest (4,999 £OO1 ordinary A shares) in Mid6.sgrange 
I,imit:ed with a carryirigvaAlui l iosepi-itic:ipal activ-ty is the provision of personal financial products. 
Tins investrne itisasDisposedra'r1. iiaw, 1iF year ended 31 March 2013. 

6. Debtors 

2013 2012.
Re savable vertu ~n o ie Y gar Em i;rn 

-Iedebtors, 32 39 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
-)r i-:aymr„r nC accrued income • 

----------- -----------
71 39

l r,rrj; 240 138 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
r~,

-----------
9 1.0 

352 226 

rte .. .r, ~. ... ..-

e on' 10 

7. Ct ets 1, r':
-----•--._ _•--_ 

--_._.-----_•--...-------------.. ------.. 
----------.-------------- 

-------------.. 
--------------------------------- -----------

201 3 2012 
Ern ( a 

nw rii ir'r 86 43 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

k 
-----------

6 19 

Total 92 62 

8. Cads at_ bank and in hand 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- -----------

2013 2(112 
Em i:m 

Cash in the Post Office Limited network 879 '/48 

9. Creditors amounts falling due within one year 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -----------

2013 2 (71.2 
Em f;rn 

C Gad~rr~rd .c_da l-Jars 153 172 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Advance customer payments 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

----------- -----------
50 

----------- -----------
48 

Socialsecurity 10 9 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Client creditors 

-----------
528 332 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Obligations under finance leases 

----------- 
3 4 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Amount due to other companies wit klin the Royal Mail Holdings Group 

--- 

-----------
6 

---- --- ------- - ----------- 
9 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Capital creditors 

-----------
18 1 0 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ---------- 
Businesstransfor s 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

------- - ----------- - ----------
7 

----------- -----------
3 

Governrnent gp.. i i 102 

Total 877 587 
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Notes to the Company financial statements continued 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

10. Financial liabilities - interest bearing loans and borrowings 

2013 1012 
Em Erna 

Department of Rosiness, Innovation & Skills loans drawn down 291 377 

Totalfacility 1,150 1.150 

The loans under rite, tact:ity are short dated on a l r:ograrnnio of ii , Inc  management and mature on average 1 day after tile 
year end (20121 day). On maturity it is expected that further loans will "-. c, drawn down under this facility, which expires in 2016. 
The undrawn committed facility, in respect of which all conditions precedent had been met at the balance sheet date is 
£859 million (2012-£773 million). The average interest rate on the drawn down loans is 1.0% (2012 0.8%). 

The facility is currently restricted to fending the cash and near cash items held within the Posf Office Limited network. 

The facility (including drawn down loans) is secured by a floating charge over all assets of Post Office Limited and a negative pledge 
over cash and near cash items. The negative pledge is an agreement not to grant security over the assets or to setup a vehicle that 
has the same effect. 

11. Creditors - amounts falling due after more than one year 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -----------

2013 1012 
£m ~*.n 

Obligations underfinanceleases  4 6 
---------------------------------------------------------------------•------------------------------------- ----------- -----------
Otherpayables 24 2 

Total 28 8 

12. Provisions for liabilities 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Crrown 
Conversions Network 

project transformation Other Total 
Em Em Em Em 

At 26March 2012 9 - 5 14 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Charged in operating exceptiol cal 11:e31Tis - 10 12 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

22 

Charged in operating costs - - 6 6 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
C_hargedinfinancingcosts 1 - - 1 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
(IttIRariorr (3) - (14) (17) 

At 3.1 March 2013 7 10 9 26 

Other provisions of £9 n-iaien (2012-£S million) include proper I y corrir Acts, amourlts from onerous leaseobligationsand personal 
injury claims. 

Amounts charged in financing costs relateto the unwinding of discounted long term provisions. 

The Crown Conversions project relates to past franchising of Crown of floes and onerous property lease provisions are expected 
to be utilised within 5 years. 

13. Pensions 
On 1 April 2012, almost all of the pension assets and liabilitiesof the Royal Mail Pension Plan (RMPP) were transferred tc 
HM Government. On this dare the RMPP was also sectionalised w it h Royal Mail Group Limited and Post Office Limited responsible 
[or their own sections. All Post Office Limited employees were transferred to be directly employed by Post Office Limited on the 
same hate. 

RoyalMai' Group Limited is the principal employer in the Royal. Mail Senior Executive Pension. Plan (RMSEPP) and Post Office 
Limited became a participating employer with effect from I April 2012. Post Office Limited continues to account for approximately 
7% of the RMSEPP scheme as it has done previously. 

Prior to 1 April 2012, Royal Mail GroupGrou.plLirriitedhari the legal relationship with the Triasteesof both RMPP and RMSEPP arid, as such, 
the Trustees held Royal Mail Group Limited liable for the actuarial def icit in the scheme. Al'_ employees were employed by Royal 
Mail Group Lirnited and seconded to Post Office Limited under an agreementbetween Post Office Limited and Royal Mail Group 
Limited. Pcst Office Limited met the full costs of employment and was responsible for the funding of the pension deficit 
attributable to these employees. Consequently, Post Office Limited recognised a balance sheet deficit on full adoption cf FRS 17 
based on employee numbers over 12 years which represented approxi mal ely 7% of the total balance sheet deficit at that time. 
The net pensions interest, deficit recovery payments and actuarial gains or losses were also allocated on this basis. The current 
service cost, regular future :service contributions and curtai lmeents we re computed separately for Royal Mail Group limited and 
Post Office Limited based on common [actors/rates. 
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The disclosures in this note relating to the year ended 31 March 2013 reflect the Post Office Limited sectionalised RMPP scheme 
which is independentyoperated by Post Office Limited and the approximate 7% share of the RMSEPP scheme. The comparative 
figures for the year ended 25 March 2012 and the cpening pcsition at 28 March 2011 represent approximately 7% cf the previous 
combined RMPP and RMSEPP plans, 

The rlisclosur sin this note show how the value, of the assets and liabilities have been calculated at the balance sheet date. 

'['lre Comper . 'in tfcipatrsin pensionschernesas detailedbelow. 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
1 Eligibility 

(RMPP) UK employer e Definedbenefit 

onto: cutivePr -', I  r I , 'H H) LJKseniorexecutives Definedheriefrt 

Define;; entril II 'i. .r t- -,m DL I <Lr') UK ernpioyees Defined contribution 

De flood coot Ili, 
l i" n 

The charge in p .Pi -irid less account for the defined contribution schemes and the Company contributions to these schemes 
was £1 million (2012-£1 million) during the year. A new defined contribution plan (RMDC'.') was launchedin April 2009. New 
recruitsjoining from 31 March 2008 are able to begin paying contributions to the new plan after they have worked for the 
Company for a year. 

Defined benefit 
Both Rlvl'PP and RMSEPP are funded by the payment of contributions to separate trustee administered funds. The latest full actuarial 
funding valuation of both schemes was carried, out as at 31 March 2009 using the proected unit method. ForRMPP, this valuation 
was concluded at 1-110 3 billion deficit. For RMSEPP, the valuationwas concluded at £100 million deficit.RMPP includes Sections A. B 
and (' each with different terms and conditions: 

• Section A is for members (or beneficiaries of members) who joined before 1 December 1971; 
• Section B is fcr members (or beneficiaries of members) who joined after 1 December 1971 and before 1 Apri11987 or to members of 

Section A who chose to receive Section B benefits: and 
• Section Cis for members Cor beaneficiaries of members) who joined after 1 April 1987 and before =1 April 2018. 

A series of changes to RMPP and RMSEPP began to take effect: on 1 April 2008. 

The changes encompass: 

• the plans closed to new members from 31 March 2008: 
• all pensions and. benefits earned before 1 April2008 are still linked to final salary at the time of retirement; 
• from 1 April 2008, defined benefits building Up [Cr employee members of the plan are earned on a career salary basis; 
• employees can continue to take their pension on reaching 60 but the normal retirementage increased to 65 for benefits earned 

from 1 April 2010; 
• from I April 2010 it is possible to draw pension earned before the change to normal retirement age. at 55, and continue working 

while still co ratributi rig to time Pension Plan until the maximum level of benefits has been reached; and 
• RMSEPP was closed to future accrual on 31 December 2012. 

Payment of £23 million (2012-£23 million) was made by the Company during the year in respect of regular future service 
contributions, nearly all relating to RMPP. The regular future service contributions for RMPP, expressed as a percentage of 
pensionable pay, has remained at 17.1% (2012 17.1%), effective from April 2010. This rate is not expected to change materially 
during 2013-14. For RMSEP these contributions have remained at 35.9% (2012 :35.9%) until its closure. 

The Company pays 7% of the total deficit payment requiredto fund the deficit in RMSEPP and a payment cf £2 million (2012 less 
than £1 million) was made by the Ccmpany during the year. Following the State Aid clearancegranted on 21 March 2012 and the 
subsequent: transfer of the historical pension dleficit tea HM Government on I April 2012, no RMPP deficit payment was made during 
2011-12 or 2012-13. For RMSEPP, deficit recovery payments will be £1 million per annum, from 1 April 2010 to 31 January 2024. 

A current liability of Enil (2012-Enil) has been recognised for payments to the pension sclien'ies relating to red.indancy.During the 
year, payments of £2 million (2012-£.3 million) relating to redundancy were made. 

The follcwIng disc'osures relate to the gains/losses and surplus/deficitin the scheme 'recognised forRMPPandRlv[SF:PP defined 
benefit plans in the financial statements of the Company: 
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Notes to the Company financial statements continued 
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13. Pensions continued 

a) Major long-term assumptions 
The; size of the RMPP pension surplus, which is large in the context of the Company and its finances, is materially sensitive to the 
assumptions adopted. Small changes in these assumptions could have a significant impact on the surplus and overall profit and 
loss charge. The maje:r long-term assumptions were: 

Rats of increase in sa farces 

Rate of pension increases -RMPP Sections AI3 

Rate of pension increases - RMPP Section C 

Rate of pension increases - RMSEPP members transferred from 
Section A or B of RMPP 

Rate of pension increases - RMSFPP all other members 

Rata of increase for deferrec. pensions - RMSFPP members transferred from 
Section A ,..,r P of RMPP 

Ran , j a rotor deferred pensions 

Inflation.. s., a ,n; r . 

Inflation assumpfls_.i , J o 
, 

Expected aver r: on assets 

---------------------------------------- -----------
At 31 March At 25 March At 2 R March 

2013 2012 2011 
%pa %pa %pa 

4.3 4.3 4.5 
----------------------------- ----------- -----------

2.3 2.3 2.8 
----------------------------- ----------- -----------

3.2 3.3 3.5 
----------------------------- ----------- -----------

3.3 3.3 3.5 
------------------------- ----------- 

3.2 
------------------------- ----------- 

-----------
3.3 

-----------
3.5 

3.3 3.3 3.5 
------------------------- ----------- 

2.3 
-----------

2.3 2.8 
------------------------- ----------- 

4.8 
-----------

s.l 5.5 
------------------------- ----------- 

3.3 
-----------

3.3 
------------------------- ----------- 

2.3 
-----------

2.3 2.8 
------------------------- ----------- 

4.9 
-----------

5.9 6.5 

In June 2010, the governr; rent announced that it was intending to change the inflation measure used tc determine statutory 
niininuim indexation in deferment and in payment from RPl to CPT from Apri l2011 Where relevant, the inflation assumption has 
changed from. RPI to CPI' . 

The above assurraptions relate to both defined benefit plans with the exception of the expected average rateof return on assets 
which was computec for the combined assets of the plans. The expected average rate of return on assets was a weighted average 
of the long-term expected rateof return of each principal asset class (see Section B). The expected average rate of return was 
cor!:ipr:,ted at each balance sheet date base on the market values and long-term rate of return of each principal asset class as 
at that date. 

The following table shows the potential in-ipact on the RMPP assets and pension surplus of changes in key assumptions 
--------------

2013 
£rnn 

Changes in RPI oar Cd in -hir000f-01a pa 
---------------- ------...---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

(4) 

Changesindisr. s. r rf+0.1%pa 4` 

C d . oa growihof+0.1%pi (6) 

Changes :u CPI assn rnp( ions of +0.1 % pa (1)' 

An additional l yea " 
_ 

I fancy (4)' 

Comparative informaliui r in r elation to the potential illr .;acll of Lila rages in :soy asst.r.r npl torts ryas not been it ci  r.iided as tills would. 
represent Post Office Limited's share of the combined RMPP scheme and the above 3i March 2013 information is in relation to the 
sectionalised RMPP scheme and therefore ccmparison would riot be meaningful. 

Mortality 
The mortality assumptions for the RMPP sectionalised scheme are based on the latest self administered pension scheme (SAPS) 
mortality tables with appropriate scaling factors (106% for male pensioners and 101%for female pensioners). For future improvements 
the assumptions allow for 'rriediu m cohort" projectic os with a 1.25% floor. These are detailed below: 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Average expected li fe expectancy from age 60: 2013 2012 

-----------

ZU

For a current 60 year old mole RMPP member 26 years 26 years 26 years 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

For a current 60 year old female RMPP member 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- --------- 

----------- 

--  29 years 29 
----------- 

years 
-----------

29 years 
-----------

For a current 40 year old male RMPP member 29 years 29 years 29 years 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

For a current 40 year old female RMPP member 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

----------- 

32 years 32 
----------- 

years 32 years 
-----------
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b) Plans' assets and expected rates of return 
The assets in the plans and the expected rates of return for the Company were; 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -----------

Long-term 
expected 

Market rate of 
value return 

2013 2613 

Em % pa 

29 7.2 
---I ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

205 4.3 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- -----------

- 6.7 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- -----------

9 7.2

-ors 243 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

M, f' I)ar,rilities (144)

.ii l. ~b, i✓B. ~ 99 

Share rat 11MSFPP 

------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------ 

r:ts for RP/

nt value of plan liabilities fur RiVIS13';'31 

Long-term 
expected 

Market rate of 
value return 
2013 2013 

Em %pa 

146 6.9 
------------------------------------------------------------------------- -----------

193 
-----------

3.9 
------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

19 6.7 
------------------------------------------------------------------------- -----------

3 3.3 

361 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------

(347) 

lus in plan for RMSEPP 14 

Surplus in plan for the POL share (at approximately 7%) of RMSEPP 1 

The expected return cn assets makes allowances for the agreed investment strategies of the arrangements. 

Under United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Iliac tire the Company has recognised a deferred tax liability through 
the statement of total recogniseclgains and losses of £23 rnill!on as the entire asset recorded on the balance sheet has been 
deerned recoverable through reduct 'ionsin future contributions, This is offsetby the recognition through the profit arid loss 
account of a deferred lax asset of £23 million in respect of tax losses, 

Combined plans 

;JI Ll iti es 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

r he corrlbr, l plans 

Pres' iLie t t 1' 

)efl~ 1 I con'ibr -

------- ----------- ----------- 
Lon , teen 

----------
Long-term 

E'Xpee:i cOO ex ceo:led 

Market Market rate of rate of 
value value return return 
2012 2011 2012 2011 

i'a?) rn, ' ,pa %pa 

3.365 I,262 77 8.2 
--------- ----------- 
25,610 

----------- 
214

----------
57 62 

'- ----- -- 
I417 

----- ----------- 
1790 

----------
r6 65 

-------- ----------- 
333 

----------- 
i 8 

----------
Z 4.2 

-------- -----------
7) 132,1 86' 

(4,301) 

(31 6) 

ided. 
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Notes to the Company financial statements continued 
13. Pensions continued 

c) Movement in plans' assets and liabilities 
Changes in the fair value of the plans' assets are analysed as follows; 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Sectionaiisecf 
RMPP 2013 

Asp. £m 

A =, 2,108 
-- ------------- ------- ----- ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
1,r.. , . 5. (1,953) 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Coo -,,, , x,- 25 

R t t  ,. „ icl 8' 

i ,e. ,,. HL , I; , 11 

Acl.c. . ' .Lc .... 1e ae, Os. r:i: . , ..tl 46 
-- -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Leri ir, ', a. i ors (2) 

Asst .sa: sa u aka sr t( ' Pp at cml of ner'tod 243 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Share of 

RMSEPP 2013 
Assn" £m 

-1 . 1 iv1:c 1 l*'s ~1,. i"o .k ac"1o3 21 
------------------------------ --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
r , id 2 

('1n i Crihi.sl'r accrued i - 

Era ' 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Ei 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

sr. 11 M IEPf'   . 25 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -----------
2012 2011 

A; 1 rns Ens Em 

combined plans as beginning of period 1 ,923 1 ,797 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -----------
C:'c - -girl 26 46 

Vi (3) 2 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -----------
Era - 1 10 11 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -----------
~,~ 124 120 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -----------
AA;"` i I 1 131 33 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -----------
3t (82) (.36) 

Sli ti e ci e:r, on nibs rted planes a) end of p >ricad 2,1 27 1 ,923 
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Changes in the present value of the defined benefit pension obligations are analysed as follows 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Sectionalised 

RMPP 2t713 
Em 

a srrctional i J i.11  of pericd (2,313) 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
. 1 ... ;, .~ b .: 2,239 

(24) 
- ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

;I _.. . (2) 

i 0011Ce COST (9) 

Employee cot i r a ;- (8) 
-------------- -----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Actt.ariril >r (29) 
----------_....---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Berie€its 1. so 2 

Liabilities in:sec for ih .d '_i t[: ~P . t a 1 d s31• Srir.1 (144) 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Shate of 

RMSEPP 2013 
Em 

li des in R MSEPP plans at beginning of period 2) 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
-- 

0' .re of iiabiiifie_a 0.; R , ;L C i c , , .a Os (24).

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -----------
201 2 2011 

~-ombined * sns [So ii fl

11 , , , 1111i,., H ., -I 1, i ,fl ° [[0 (2,239) (2,301 

(23) (25) 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -----------

- (3) 

(122) (132) 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -----------

(7 t': ) C11) 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
1,: 1 , ,in 

-----------
(23) 207 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
e tits s 

-----------
V 86 

reofl [liliesinc~ iod (2,335) (2,239) 

Tiie curtail nront costs in ; oil nI 1 rsa. os .i si 'rcognised on a consistent basis willi the associated compensatloncostsEstirnatesol both are 
included, for example. in any redundancy provisions raised. i'he curtailment costs above represent' :he costs associated with those people paid 
compensation in respect of redundancy during the accounting period. Such payments may occur in an accounting period subsequent to the recognition 
of costs in the profit and loss account. 
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Notes to the Company financial statements continued 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

13. Pensions continued 

d) History of experience gains and losses 
The cumulative amount of actuarialgains and losses recognised since transition to FRS 17 at 29 March 2004 in the statement 
of total recognised gains and lossesis £49 million gain (2012 a gain of £32 million). The Directors are unahleto determine how 
much of the pension scheme deficit recognised in transition to f RS 17 is attrihutableto actuarial gains and losses since inception of 
the pension schemes. Consequently, the Directors are unable to determine the cumulative amount of actuarial gains and losses 
that would, have been recognised to the statement of total recognised gains and losses between inception of the pension schemes 
and transition to IRS 17. 

~ect`orul,.tseri Share I 
RRMPP r1MSEPP 7% share of combined plans 

2013 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 
£m Em Fri Em .Ito Em 

'a r'r1 m  .c' ..f 243 25 2,1.613 1 044 1 ,811 1407 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Pr I H ilties (144) 

----------- 
(24) 

----------- 
(2,374) 

----------- -----------
(2,375) (1 382) 

rnF s 99 1 (206) t . (564) t475) 

Fi " 46 1 141 313 (334) 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
k3 (20) 

----------- 
- 

----------- ----------- 
0 

-----------
47 (1 ) 

------------------------------------------------------------------------ ----------- 
2013 

----------- 
2013 

----------- 
1012 

----------- 
201. 1 

-----------
2010 2009 

% % ,, % % Wi 

Experience adjustmenton ocaetl,otto % 01 sc1hernn. asset', 18.9 5.5 0 t 1 7 17.4 (27.3) 
------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
Experience adjustment on

-------------------------------------------- -----------

%af scheme liabilities (13.9) 1.4 J 00 (2.0) 0.1 
------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
Deficit in the scheme as a % of scheme liabilities 

----------- 
- 

----------- 
-_< 

----------- 
8.8 

----------- 
141 

-----------
2:3.9 25.3 
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e) Recognised charges 
An analysis of the separate components of the amounts recognised in the pertormanc;e s tateme ets of the Compa iy is as ollow; 

2013 
sectionalised 

RMPP 
Em 

service!, cost ... . 

2

9 

s (11) 

r. . (2) 

24 

~tl of 1' 2,239 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

,er of (1,953) 

286 

286 

AA.' "0, a ik  ,Ug .,. ,.a. 1+ 1u a10 d d,,
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Actualil i , _ 1<: 57 --

Bess: exlr (11) 

Actuarial Co ad'ushnents) 46 

'xperience adjustments on 1i ,il. (20) 
------------------------------------------_--_---_-------------------------------------------------------------------------------
ffe - if changes 'nactiaariel (9) 

t ies (29) 

Tc ab vt _rr k ar: >reccf~;xf,; rla :thestatemento,tr x3 ,c 
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Notes to the Company financial statements continued 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

13- Pensions continued 

of Iti'viEPF 
Ecr 

An i,i:o .w,. uti sw iaa ,,kc iceu at• ae: t i .is..0 :dEB 
- --- --- ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

..  16~: 
-- ------------------------------------------------------------------
F: ty .i . i . or trian assets (18). 

A:" ,.t t, :n:aonsir eirst (2); 

of net pensic as nterest (at approximately 7%)
--------

Net charge to the profit and loss account before deductic i t, r t ,r 

Analysis of amounts recognised in the statement of corn re e7 ;iv ir. .oa e i . tl ts` ... iVM,; ti. a of ^n1 G of 
fin a ,-cialst ._, 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Ari,a i return o 1 , ._ 38 
----------------- ---- ---- -- ---- ------------------------------- ---- ------- --- ----------- ---------- -------------------------------
Lc octerl  (18) 

A. ra . eins:?n. II 'xix-t t~=nc adjustments) 20-

Sb . nadjustmen , liahilitic,

changes in acrio: . i< aisut  on liabilities (23)

Actuair k an. of i t , 0 (18) 

Tots..ac - "A..a ai at l; n cc n, 00Ct 111 00 :a :.nA , lit vfa` Fn' -re r-e3 ;tvi In  .00 tI tl tinyv Leta,slI t, ;n, .i C: OiJ '.s 

2 

<. t 't, rl r_. . -, .I:0t, ..g0000 -y. a :ice .a~ ,•  . 0 .., `n _., .a I n ...a 

at 
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--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -----------
207.2 2011.1 

nle-ci r yr C  I rn 

Analysis of o -iio-rrlts recognised in the profit and loss account 

Analysis of a „ta, m'Its charged to o - v <° ing profit before exceptionalitems: 

Current ;r' -v as- 23 25 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
A, alb .is Jr ii* , rl ^rc- ,r) a e, ^r*r ^tip 9 P ;m`e tiq tai tc &s. 

-----------

------------------------------------------------- -----------------------------------------------------------------------------
IosWdo,, "tt 2 

23 

Ott ,k=; ,1:. or, r., w', 'd~ 
iff«. , fit 

:f r "^"° ° inwr' 

1 ,741-1 1 .881 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

~J ~ rtlnan:: 
-----------

01 ,771 (1 714) 

(2F;; 167 

St r ., ai =7 . , 2) 1.2 

It 39 

Lilysis ^ 
Oroupfinaw it to ctr gis is 
------------ ---'-- --- --- ---- ------- -------------
Actt alretiu . ., ( ., , sets k, 184 

2ess:ex(. onplan.c; as' ,` ;;, i 1,71.4) 

Actuarialgai 470 

xperiery _.idjustrm obi 8) 
----------------------.....__......------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
Effer'r liabili kda' .onif.

-----------

A.cti I 4 

Total +'' ^"1' t ,.; `. M., .i:d in the siatei'nerit 01 comptehenaive income in the Royal Mai 11o1diii s 

Grout :ir ;.n, a➢ +a °nn nt - F"% ,, 24 

Share of <-utr a i u g .1zi re ;>' is, li 11 S1 Je .-rem f o`;0" ,la -oR :n, ; rr -W
(at appro ,,ra," , 'e ;. i (18 240 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -----------
2013 2011.2 

E £ 

Az l e is',: , 

Ordi nr .s offal aCh 51,000 51,0(10 

Total 51,000 51,000 
—_-----__—.---_ .—.—.—..—.—_—.—

Allotted a tit s, ed 
--- ------- ------ 
Ordi 

-------'-----------------------
50,003 50.003 

Toi:al 50,003 50,003 

15. Reserves 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------- ----------- 

Share 
-----------

Retained 2013 
premium earnings Total 

£m Em £m 

Be 11 , .W . 2u JV u;r 2 465 (589) (124) 
---- - -- -------------------------------------------- ------------- ------------- 

•
---------------------------------

76 76 
----- ---------------------------- 

~_ on ccl_ned benefit 
----------- ----------- 

- 
-----------

17 17 
-- ---------------- - - --..---.. -------- ---------------------------------------------------------------

a > r ~n Icons taken directly toe i 
----------- 

(23) 
-----------

(23) 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
srcar of pension deficit to governrri rd - 286 286 

.t 31 March 2013 465 (233) 232 
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Notes to the Company financial statements continued 

16. Related party disclosures 
Details of transactions ions with related parties are disclosed in the Group tinancial statenerits (note 23). 

17. Post balance sheet events 
In accordance with the funding agreement with government announced. on 27 October 2010,.  for which State Aid approval was 
received on 2d March 2012, PostOffice. Limited received £4151 million o funding on 2 Apri12013. 

On 21.June 201.3, Post Oft ice Limited launched a cons ultz.itiori with members of the Royal. Mail Pension Plan, on a proposal to 
change, the terms of the plan, which wia conclude on 25 August 2013. Post Office Limited will consider the feedbackbefore making 
its final decision and communicating it to colleagues. 

18. Immediate and ultimate parent company 
At 31 March 2013, the Directors regarded Roya. Mail Holdings plc as the immediate and ultimate parent company. The largest 
group to consolidate the results of the Company is Royal Mail Holdings plc, a company registered in the United Kingdom. 
Royal Mai. Holdings plc tin ancialstatelnerits can be obtained from the company website, www.royalniailgrol..ip.c;om. 
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Thank you 
The Post Office is a unique part of our society and is grateful to 
all those stakeholders who work so hard to support our work as 
a commercial business with a 

public 

purpose. In particular, we 
would like to thank: 

• the three government ministers with whom we worked 
with curing 2012-13 - Edward Davey, Norman Lamb and 
Jo Swinson - and all those at the Shareholder Executive 
at the Department for Business, Industry and Skills; 

• the Natior:al Federation of Suhpostmasters, in particular 
George Thomson (General Secretary) and Mervyn Jones 
(Commercial Director), and its Executive Committee; 

• Communication and Managers' Association (CMA) sector of 
Unite, in particular Brian Scott (Assistant National Secretary); 

Communication Workers Union (C; WU), in particular 
Andy Furey (Assistant Secretary) and Dave Ward 
(Deputy General. Secretary), 

• Oi:rr colleagues at Royal Mail Group Limited, in particular 
ChairrnanDonald Brydon and Chief Executive Moya Greene; 

• Al I the members of the Stakeholder Forum who are working 
to help us define the public purpose of the Pcst Office; 

• The consumer, business organisations and public interest 
groups with whom we work, including Consumer Futures, 
Age UK and Citizens Advice; and 

• All the business partners and suppliers with whom we work, 
including 3ank of Ireland(UK) plc, Fujitsu., government 
departments and agencies and many others, 

But most of all, we'd like to thank our subpostmasters, their 
teams and all our colleagues who work for the Post Office -
thosedirectly serving communities across the UK and those 
who support this great business. 

POST 
OFFICE 



WITNO0740103 
WITNO0740103 

ExhlbitWTNO0740103 - - - - - 

Notes. 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



WITNO0740103 
WITNO0740103 

Exhibit WTN00740103 

Dr-signed and produced by MercharrtCantoswww.n ierchantcanlos.corn 

Printed by Linney Group Limited. 

The Post Office Annual Report has been printed on Regency Satin paper whica contains material
from responsibly managed forests, certified In accordance w::.th the FSC (Fores: Stewardship MIX 

Council). P,egeicy Satin is made from 10% recovered fibre, using an ECF (Elemental Chlorine Free) """VVV/1 
~✓{ 

r-Mt'a 5001 hi

nteachin  arid isrnanufaeaured under slriot environrnerdal rnana ernenl s sterns, in g process a
8 

g it FSC 
I"5G C006198 adherence to the international LSO ].4001 standard, EMAS (Eco-Management ement & Audit Scheme) and t Ido 4...w .~ «y 

IPPC (Integrated Pollution Prevention and Control) regulation. 



WITNO0740103 
WITNO0740103 

Exhibit WTN00740103 

POST 
OFFICE 

Post Office Limited is registered ;.n England and Wales. Registered number 2154540. Reg, tered Office is 1480;.d Street, London EC1V 9HQ. 
The Post Office, Post Office and the Fost Office logo are registered trademarks of Post Office Limited. 


